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WHIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Tho e

Centaur concluded a radical transformation programme to reshape the Group into a much simpler business focused on two
sectors: the marketing and legal professions.

We successfully completed the divestments of our non-core legacy businesses in financial services, human resources,
business travel and meetings, and engineering for a gross consideration of £21.75m.

The Group now censists of Xeim, the new name given to our marketing businesses at the beginning of last year, and The
Lawyer.

The simplification enables the Group to focus on growth, capitalise on synergies and deliver shareholder value.

As we look towards Centaur's next stage of development, we announced our Margin Acceleration Pian 2022, MAP22. This is

our three-year plan to improve EBITDA margins to at least 20% by 2022 through a combination of profitable revenue growth
and operating cost efficiencies.

The formation of Xeim enabled significant cost reduction during 2019, as duplicate brand management and processes were
etiminated. Additionally, the simplification of the Group facilitated the reduction of central overhead costs by £5m on an
annualised basis. The benefits of this will be seen in 2020.

Xeim focused on growing its profitable revenue and rationalised its portfolic of low margin/loss making businesses, delivering
a considerably enhanced margin.

Influencer Intelligence continued to develop its international offering to remain at the forefront of the fast-growing influencer
marketing sector;

Marketing Week launched a digital subscription platform and redesigned website; and
We built on the success of the Mini-MBA programme and launched a new marketing brand course.

The Lawyer continued its growth through the successful launch of the Litigation Tracker and the Marketing Leadership Summit
event was a successful addition to The Lawyer's events portfolio.

The Group reported an adjusted® operating loss in 2019 of £1.1m (2018: a loss of £2.2m). On a statutory basis the Group
made an operating loss in 2019 of £8.4m (2018: a loss of £20.3m). The Group's performance improved during the year with the
benefit of trading seasonality and initial cost savings from the Group’s simplification.

Xeim and The Lawyer combined have increased adjusted EBITDA' by 21% due to cost savings in Xeim and revenue growth in
The Lawyer.

A final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share is proposed, which, together with the interim ordinary and special dividends of 3.5p
pet share, gives a total of £5.7m (4.0p per share) paid out as dividends relating to 2019.

From 1 January 2020, Centaur has adopted a new progressive dividend policy targeting a pay-out ratio of 40% of adjusted
earnings, subject to a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share.

1 See financial performance review for explanation of adjustad results and atternative performance measures
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“In September, the
Board launched
MAP22, its strategy
for driving revenue
growth and improving
EBITDA margins to at
least 20% by 2022

COLIN JONES
Chiaiy

k2

Annual Report and Financial Statements fo- the yea- ended 31 December 2019

N CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

2019 was a year of significant
transformation for Centaur. The Group
started the year with a clear strategy to
simplify its structure through business
divestments, efiminating central costs
and repositioning the Group to focus
on two sectors, the marketing and
legal professions, where it has leading
brands and competitive advantage.

The Board is pleased with the progress
Centaur has made against this strategy

and it enters the new financial year well
positioned for its next stage of development
under its Margin Acceleration Plan 2022
{MAP22),

Strategy

During the first half of the year the Board
focussed on the divestment of its smaller,
non-core businesses. These divestments
were completed quickly and successfully,
generating gross proceeds (before costs
and working capital adjustments) of nearly
£22m and a proft on disposal of £7.8m.
The use of these proceeds is set out below,

Centaur also received a number of offers for
The Lawyer, but the Board determined that
retaining this business was a more attractive
option and offered greater opportunity to
create value for sharehoiders. This decision
has been vindicated by the strong financial
performance of The Lawyer throughout
2018.

The divestrments were the trigger for a
significant restructuring and simplification of
the Group during the second half, Central
functions were reorganised, law margin or
unprofitable products were eliminated. and
annualised cost savings of £56m had been
delivered by the end of the year.

Centaur's management is now focussed
on growing its two remaining business
units — Xeim, which brings together the
Group's marketing brands, and The
Lawyer, the leading business information
brand for the legal profession. Both offer
scalable digital products and services in
global marketplaces that are undergeing
disruption.

In September, the Board launched MAP22,
its strategy for driving revenue growth and
improving EBITDA margins to at least 20%
by 2022. The immediate focus for 2020 is to
develop the two business units, increasing
and broadening their client bases, investing
to expand their product offerings, driving
further operating efficiencies and continuing
to develop new subscription-based digital
capabilities.

Group performance

In 2019, Centaur achieved Group revenues
of £48.9m, an adjusted operating loss

of £1.1m and a statutory operating

loss of £8.4m, but these results do not
fully refiect the impact and timing of the
strategic initiatives taken to restructure the
portfolio and simplify the Group.  Ajthough
the disposals were completed by the
summer, they were followed by a period of
transitional services provided to the various
buyers which meant that most of the cost
reductions arising from the simplification of
the Group could not be implemented until
the final quarter. The full benefit of these
savings will be seen in 2020,

Underlying revenues for the Giruup (alle
adjusting for businesses sold and closed)
fell by 2%. A strong performance from

The Lawyer, up 9%, was offset by a 4%
decline in Xeim revenues. The results from
The Lawyer were particularly pleasing given
the distractions of the sale process in the
first half, and it also improved its adjusted
operating margin. The Xeim portfofio
continues to face challenges, particularly

in its MarketMakers business, and the
revenue perfarmance was mixed. However,
the benefits from the strategy of focusing
on profitable revenue can be seen in the
improvement in its adjusted operating
margin from 8% to 10%. Swag Mukerii
discusses trading pericrmance in more
detail in his review beginning on page 8.
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Governance and people

I joined Centaur's board in September 2018
and succeeded Neif Johnson as Chairman
in July 2019, Neil played an important

role in the strategic review that led to our
divestment programme and the dramatic
simplification of the Group that followed.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Neil for his valuable contribution to
Centaur's strategic development.

Since | became Chairman, the Board has
taken a number of key decisions regarding
Centaur's strategy, management and
dividend policy. Those decisions have

given me the opportunity to consult with our
shareholders on multiple occasions and |
thank them for their support. We are also
pleased to have welcomed a number of new
shareholders to the register.

in September, we said gocdbye to Andria
Vidler as CEQ after six years spent driving
Centaur's transition from a traditional print
publisher to a digital provider of insight,
content and data. The Board would

like to thank Andria for her unwavering
enthusiasm, commitment and leadership
during this time. | was delighted that Swag
agreed to replace Andria as CEQ. Swag has
an in-depth understanding of Centaur and,
as the orchestrator of the MARP22 strateqy,
was the ideal candidate to guide Centaur
through its next stage of development.

Simen Longfield succeeded Swag as
Centaur's new CFQ in November 2019,
Having spent ten years as CFC of BMI
Research, Simon’s extensive financial
experience and understanding of B2B
information markets will be vakuable assets.

| am also pleased to welcome Carol Hosey
and Leslie-Ann Reed as new independent
Non-Executive Directors. Carol will
succeed me as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and brings with her over 20
years of experience in senior HR and
remuneration roles. Leslie-Ann Reed,

an experienced Non-Executive Director
who has spent over 25 years in financial
management, will become Chair of the Audit
Committee in succession to Robert Boyle.
Robert and Rebecca Miskin will retire as
Non-Executive Directors on 31 March 2020
and the Board recognises their valuable
contribution over the last decade.

Centaur prides itself on being a business
that operates with integrity, transparency
and accountability, and the Board remains
committed to the highest stanctards of
corporate governance. More detail on our
governance policies are set out on pages
37 to 40. Cur Section 172 Statement on
pages 27 to 28 also highlights the significant
proegress made in developing Centaur's
values and culture and in particular ensuring
that diversity, inclusion and environmental
ambitions are areas of focus across all parts
of the Group.

Since joining Centaur, | have been greatly
impressed by the energy, hard work and
good humour our employess have exhibited
during a period of significant change and |
would like to thank them for their dedication
- | know it has not always been easy.

Our people are ocur primary asset and our
success is built on the back of their efforts
and commitment.

Capital allocation and
dividend

The divestments during 2019 provided the
trigger for the Board to review Centaur's
dividend policy. After discussions with
shareholders, in September the Board
announced a new progressive dividend
pelicy, to apply from 2020, with a target
pay-out ratio of 40% of earnings subject to
a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share. This
reflects the smaller size of the Group and
the desire for a more sustainable distribution
to shareholders which grows in line with
eamnings. Pursuant to this policy, the Board
is recommending a final ordinary dividend
of 0.5p per share, equivalent to £0.7m,
payable in May 2020,

The interim dividend of £5m paid in October
2019 was largely funded from the proceeds
of the business divestments, including the
special dividend. The Board was intending
to propose the payment of another speciat
dividend in May 2020, but has decided

to defer this decision until there is more
visibility around the impact of coronavirus on
the Group’s cash flows.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Cutlook

Training and events provide an important
revenue stream for Centaur and, not
surprisingly, the Group has recently started
to see customers delay decisions arcund
event attendance. At this stage Centaur
expects to postpone a number of second
quarter events until later in the year but, until
there is more certainty around the timing
and impact of coronavirus, it is impossible
to provide guidance around the full year
results.

The Group has a stronger balance sheet,
including cash of £9.3m at the end of 2019,
and trading in January and February was in
line with the Board's expectations. Global
health concerns apart, Centaur has bagun
2020 as a far simpler and more focused
Group, with new energy to address the
many opportunities we see in our markets.,
We will continue t¢ develop strong, recurring
revenue streams, invest in new digital
products to grow our customer base, and
capitalise on the synergies of our simplified
portfolio as we progress toward our MAP22
objectives.

COLIN JONES
Chair

17 March 2020
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Centaur is an international provider of
business information and specialist
consultancy. From our origing as an
advertising-supported trade publisher,
the Group has evolved rapidly in recent
years as we have moved to focus

on the paid provision of business
inteligence, consuitancy, training,
events and lead generation. building
on the reputation and trust established
from our higtory in providing highly
valued thought-leading content.

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

At the end of 2018 and following a

strategic review, Centaur initiated a radical
transformation programme to concentrate
our efforts on two attractive sectors: the
marketing and legal professions. These
large, international and growing industries
are facing considerable compettive and
technological disruption, creating demand
for the intelligence, insight and expertise that
our businesses offer.

In order to create this more focused group,
Centaur began a far-reaching programme
to divest our smaller and ex-growth
businesses in financial services, human
resourcas, business travel and meetings
and engineering. During 2019, we disposed
of 21 of our 28 brands, raising net cash

of E16.4m and establishing the platform

to drive margin enhancerment through
profitable revenue growth and margin and
cost synergies.

Centaur now has strong, well-established
brands that have been serving these sectors
for decades - brands such as Marketing
Week, Econsultancy and The Lawyer. We
continue to evolve these brands and have
developed a track record for innovation,
generating revenue from new products

and services that our customers need

1o respond to the rapid changes in their
sectors. This has ailowed Centaur to
develop strong and continuing relationships
with many large international enterprises.

™ Read more about The Festival of
Marketing on page 10
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The completion of our divestment pregramme in July 2019 allowed us to set
about laying the groundwork for the next stage of Centaur's development.
The centrepiece of this is our Margin Acceleration Plan 2022 (MAP22), a
three-year plan to improve margins, targeting an EBITDA margin of at least
20% by 2022.

Three-year plan to improve EBITDA margins, targeting at least 20% by 2022
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A new Centaur
The new Centaur is a much simpler business consisting of Xeim, the new name adopted by
our marketing business at the beginning of last year, and The Lawyer. This has allowed us
to streamline management, improve efficiency, eliminate silos and reduce complexity within
the Group, a process which has allowed for a significant reduction in business unit costs and
central overheads.
The simplification has enabled us to have a clear focus on the reporting of the Group's
revenue calegories. We interact with customers by using the power of our brands and
generate different types of revenue streams. This creates both cross-seling opportunities and
operational synergies, whilst also giving visibility of how the Group's revenues are derived.
From 2019 onwards, we will report revenue for Xeim and The Lawyer under the following
categories:
Pramium content comprising subscription-driven paid content services;
Marketing services through campaign management and markeating automation;
Training and advisory from marketing consultancy, digital learning programmes and face-
to-face fraining;
Events including sponsorship and delegate revenus from conferences, awards and large-
scale events;
Marketing and advertising solutions including digital advertising, display and bespoke
client campaigns together with sector focused job advertisernents; and
Telernarketing services comprising lead generation and data services.
The chart below shows which brands derive revenue from each category:

Training hMarketing and
Premium  Marketing and Advertising  Telemarketing
Content  Services Advisory  Events Solutions Services

EEonsultancy (inc.
Oystercatchers)
Influencer intelligence
and Fashion &
Beauty Monitor
Marketing Week

{inc. Mini-MBA}
Festival of Marketing

Excullance in marketing

Nem

Creative Review
/Design Week

Reslly and
MarketMakers

The Lawyer

The Board believes Centaur's transformation has helped improve the quality of the Group's
revenue streams. The developments in both Xeim's brands and The Lawyer mean that 62%
of our underlying revenue (2018: 56%) arose from repeatable and recurring sources, whereas
only 14% of revenue came from marketing and advertising solutions. The strength of preduct
innovation is reflected by the fact that £5.5m of revenue, or more than 11%, was generated
from new revenue streams created since 2015, exciuding acquisitions.

“ Premium Content

* Marketing Services

# Training and Advisory

® Fvents

Marketing and Advertising Solutions
Telemarketing Services

Annual Report and Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 December 2019
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Excellence in marketing
Xeim takes its name from excellence in
marketing and its purpose is to accelerate
performance for marketers. The Xeim
portfolio brings together the Group’s
marketing brands to deliver business
information and specialist consultancy
1o the marketing sector. It achieves this
by providing the advice, intelligence and
connections that marketers need to set
thermselves apart from thelr peers, Our
market-leading brands and industry experts
provide insight, analysis and proprietorial
content, attracting cver six million digital
contact points every menth,

Xeim includes the following brands:

Influencer Intelligence - A leading
source of intelligence for brands and
marketers on influencers and celebrities
and their digital reach. It is at the
forefront of the fast-growing influencer
marketing sector with plans for further
intermational expansion during 2070;

Econsultancy — The autheritative guide
to marketing best practice, and a
leadling provider of training and research
in digital marketing transformation.
Strengthened through the addition of
Cystercatchers, the specialist agency-
focussed consultancy Centaur acquired
in 2016, with its skills in pitch partnering
and its senior networking club;

Festival of Marketing - An annual
learning and networking event that
has become the largest global event
dedicated to brand marketers,
which underpinned its strong margin
performance in 2019;

Marketing Week — For aver 40 years,
the most influential source of marketing
information in the UK. During 2019,
Marketing Week launched its digital
subscription service and redesigned its
website to make it easier 1o find news,
insight and opinion;

Mini-MBA — As part of Xeirn’s eLearning
developmient, the strength of Marketing
Week's brand has enabled Xeim to
create its fast-growing programme,
which has aftracted over 8,500
marketers and professionals since its
launch in 2016. A new marketing brand
course, available to Mini-MBA alumni,
was introduced in September

2019; and
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THE INSIGHT'S
IN THE DATA
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Turning case reporis
into actionable market
intelligence.

d all i ments from 185

this comprehensive, aggregated «data is available to you to s
and downtoad via cur new online portal, delivering timely and targeted in

THE LAWYER

Litigation Tracker

»  MarketMakers — The UK’s number one
B2B telemarketing agency, the industry
leaders in lead generation. This brand
includes Reaily, the award-winning
marketing services business that
delivers creative campaigns to drive its
clients’ return on marketing investment.

By bringing these brands together under
the Xeim umbrella, we have been able to
capitalise on their synergies, manage the
brands more effectively, and cross-sell to
our clients a broader range of services in an
integrated and coordinated manner.

Subscribe today for exclusive acress.
Visit thelawyer.com/litigation-tracker

Xeim's immadiate pricrities include
capitalising on the success of Influencer
Intelligence and expanding digital learning
reveriues across Marketing Week and
Econsultancy. At the same time, the Board
is focussed on addressing the margin drag
from MarketMakers and recently hired an
experienced managing director to refocus
this business.

In The Lawyer, Centaur owns the most
trusted brand for the UK legal profession

STRATEGIC REFORT

and a leading provider of intelligence to the
global legal market, delivered via a scalable
digital platform. The Lawyer has built on

its heritage and reputation for providing
incisive analysis of the UK legal market to
develop a much more intemational business
providing market intelligence to the world's
largest law firms. The Lawyer now has
over 300 corporate clients, a 12% increase
since 2018. 90% of the top 50 UK and top
50 US law firms in London are corporate
subscribers.

The award-winning editorial team publishes
a series of market reports to help leading
firms benchmark themselves against their
peers. This is part of a strategy that, over
the past five years, has grown paid premium
content revenues that are more than 40% of
the total for the business unit.

During 2018, The Lawyer continued its
growth through the launch of Litigation
Tracker, a digital product that offers near
real-time insight inte the UK litigation
market.

Events are another important source of
revenue, with the Marketing Leadership
Summit a successful addition in 2019 to our
portfolio.

After a strong 2019 performance, the
business is poised for continued growth in
an attractive market. The Lawyer's strategic
priorities include building subscription
revenues, deepening customer relationships

Next steps

In 2020, our focus is operational
execution. We aim to become the “go
t0" company in international marketing
services and the legal sectors to:

»  Avrse businesses on how to
improve their performance and
ROI;

«  Iyfur v customers using data,
content and insight with the
provision of business intelligence
products; and

T specific communities

through media and events.

Our key pricrity for 2020 is to grow

our EBITDA margin through profitable
revenue growth, creating a high-
performance sales operation, driving
subscription products and mairtaining
controt over Group overheads following
the cost reduction programme.

o7
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“2019 marked the start
of a new chapter in
Centaur’s evolution.
As described in the
Strategy section,
the completion
of our divestment
programme has made
Centaur a much
simpler business.”

SWAG MUKERJI
Chief Executive

Annual Report and Financial Statements for tho yea® ended 31 December 2019

Y PERFORMANCE:

Overview of 2019

| am pleased to deliver my first report
to you as Centaur's CEO, having
succeeded Andria Vidler in September.
Having worked closely with Andria
since joining Centaur as CFO in 2016,
| have a thorough understanding of
how the Group has undergone a
profound transformation in recent years
and have set the MAP22 strategy
going forward. | would lke to thank
Andria for her considerable guidance
and support over the last few years.

2019 marked the start of a new chapter

in Centaur's evolution. As described in the
strategy secticn, the completion of cur
divestment programme has made Centaur
a much simpler business.

These divestments were completed shortly
before Centaur moved into attractive
modern offices close to London’s Waterlao
station. Our new home was designed to
foster collaboration, with 270 employees
on a single tlcor, and | think | speak for all
employees in saying that the move has
injected fresh energy and momenturm inte
our businesses.

The move is one example of how Cantaur's
simpler structure has unlocked important
benefits and efficiencies. Through the
elimination of costs needed to support

the businesses sold last year and other
measures, the Group has reduced
annualised central overheads by the end of
2019 by £5m, as promised, and the full year
effect of this will be seen in 2020.

Results for the year

2019 was a complex year for Centaur

with many maoving parts and the reporting
requirements make it difficult to clearly
articulate what has fundamentally happened
to the Group. We earned profits from the
disposed businesses until the day they were
sald, and this is reported under discontinued
operations. During this period, we maintained
the full central overhead functions required to
support these businesses and this is shown
N continuing operatians. Unce they were
sold, we continued to provide services to
these businesses generating income for the
Group from Transitional Service Agreerments
{TSA), the last of which expired at the end

of 2019. We therefore could not eliminate a
proportion of the overhead costs immediatety
after the disposal, although they were
removed by the end of 2019 and will delier
the £5m annualised benefit in 2020.

While both Xeim and The Lawyer grew
their profits in 2019, the impact of the
nigher central overhead resulted in Centaur
achieving an adjusted operating loss of
£1.1m and a statutery operating loss of
£8.4m on revenues of £48.9m. Group
adjusted EBITDA' margin has grown

from 3% to 5%. It should be noted that
the seasonal trading pattern of the new
simplified group will result in the majority of
profits arising in the last quarter of the year.

Centaur ended the year with £98.3m of
cash (2018; £0.1m), having received net
proceeds of £16.4m from the businesses
sold during the year.

Details of the trading performance are
cohtained within the Operational Review of
my report beginning on page 9.

The divestments encompassed the sale

of our financial services division, including
titles such as Money Marketing, Mortgage
Strategy, Platforum, Taxbriefs and Headline
Money to Metropolis Group. Centaur Media
Travel and Meetings Ltd, the owner of the
Business Travel Show and The Meetings
Show, was sold 1o Northstar Travel Media
UK Limited. Centaur Human Rescurces
Limited, which includes Employee Benefits,
was acquired by DVWV Media International
and our engineering titles, including the
Engineer and Subcon, were sold to Mark
Allen Group.

Dividend

The reshaping of the Group was a catalyst
for the Board to review its dividend policy,
having distributed mote than 100% of
cumulative earnings to shareholders over
the previous three years. In September,

we announced a new progressive dividend
policy which targets a pay-out ratio of 40%
of adjusted earnings, or 1.0p per share,
whichever is the higher, This came into force
on 1 January 2020.

We also announced a distribution of £5.0m,
comprising an interim dividend of 1.5p per
share and a special dividend of 2.0p per
share, paid in October 2019, Under the
new dividend policy, we will now pay a final
ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share in May
2020. Dividends to shareholders, ordinary
and special, relating to 2019 therefore total
£5.7m (4.0p per ordinary share).

We had planned to pay a further special
dividend alongside our ordinary dividend in
May. However, we have decided 1o defer
this decision until there is more visibility
around the impact of coronavirus on the
Group's cash flows.

' Excluding the impact of IFRS 18 in order to show a
comparison to 2018
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Operational review

Centaur now comprises two business units,
Xeim and The Lawyer. Xeim is Centaur's
largest business and contributes 83% of
Group revenues, with The Lawyer making
up the balance. Each business unit is run
on a stand-alone basis with dedicated
management teams. As explained above,
the 2013 central overhead did not refiect
the simplified group and going forward,

in 2020, there is a lean central function,
primarily focused upon external governance
and reperting, following the £5m overhead
saving.

.
xelm
Excellence In marketing

Xeim was formed in early 2019 and brings
cur marketing brands inte a single busingss
unit, allowing us to manage them more
effectively, cross-sell our products more
efficiently, eliminate duplication of effort and
enhance their margins.

In 2019, Xeim deliverad a turnover of
£40.7m, a 4% decrease from the previous
year as a result of management action to
reduce low margin and loss-making revenue
streams such as Marketing Week Live,
together with disappointing performances
from MarketMakers and some parts of
Econsultancy.

Xeim also identified further opportunities to
eliminate costs and improve our operational
efficiency. As a result, Xeim increased its
adjusted EBITDA margin from 12% to

16%, achieving a business unit adjusted
EBITDA of £6.3m, which represents a
pleasing growth of 24% from the prior year.
This growth was driven by the introduction
of new preducts such as the Mini-MBA
Brand course, growth in brand margins
and eliminating duplicate costs in the krand
management structures.

As discussed earlier, we interact with
customers by using the power of our brands
and generate different types of revenues
from this. This creates both cross-selling
opportunities and operational synergies

and Xeim's customer centric strategy is
achieving success with its largest customers
as we create more tailored solutions and
integrated services across multiple brands.
Qur Top 50 customers in 2019 renewed
contracts on terms that were 35% higher
than the prior year reflecting the value
created from the additional services that

we delivered. This reflects the new Xeim
operational structure which successfully
cross-sold a wider portfolic of Xeim's
preducts and services and therefore
increased the average value sold to each
customer.

STRATEGIC REPORT

In Xeim, Prernium Content revenues are
generated, in the main, from our Influencer
Intelligence and Econsultancy brands.
Creative Beview has been successfully
put behind a paywall and the recent move
of Marketing Week tc a digital platform,
incorporating a paywall, is showing good
early signs.

The global influencer marketing market,
currently worth an estimated US$5.5bn,

is projected to grow to US$22.3bn by
2024 {source: MarketsandMarkets 2019).
Influencer Intelligence, our market leading
source of trusted information and analytics
for brands seeking to harness the power
of global influencers, continued to perform
waell, with revenue increasing 11% in 2019.

This underpins our growth strategy in

a dynamic sector and is one of our key
subscription revenue growth drivers for
MAP22. In 2020, we are adding ¢.100k
international influencers to our content

and making significant improvement to our
products such as extended analytics on
new social media networks, brand analytics,
campaign management and measurement
functionality.



10

Centaur Media Plc

”
B

W PERFOR

At Econsultancy, we launched a new
platform which has two clear and distinct
customer offerings for subscribers:

Insight: Econsultancy’s proprietary
content now sits behind an
ecommerce-driven subscriber paywall
as part of a fully integrated, easy-to-
navigate service which makes the
content easier to digest and more
practical to use; and

Learning: The platform includes a
dedicated "Econ Learn” section which
brings together all Econsutancy’s digital
learning content. Users can assess
their skills using the Digital Skills index
and follow a tailored learning journey
based on their results, dip inte learning
modules or engage in Econsultancy’s
structured el earning courges - all within
a single intuitive product environment.

Econsultancy saw renewals by value
increasing to 63% in 2019, up from 54%

in 2018. While still lower than desired,

it is pleasing to see that the downward
trend from 2018 has been reversed,
Econsultancy is alse a leading provider

of training and has been strengthened
through the addition of Oystercatchers

into the Econsultancy brand. Qur focus

on blended learning underpins our growth
strategy and is supported by hoth improved
product design and an enhanced sales
team. A key element of the Ovystercatchers
business model is the relationship and
chemistry between agencies and clients
and for 2019 we placed more emphasis on
this important dynamic. While its revenues
have shrunk, the decision to pull back the
team responsible for selling and marketing
Econsultancy in the US to the UK, has
worked and is improving Econsultancy
marging while continuing to provide services
to our US customers. Although the overall
revenues from Econsultancy did not grow
in 2019, billings and margins have, which
will be reflected in improved performance
in 2020,

Marketing Week has shown early positive
signs fallowing the launch of a new digital
platform which incorporates a paywall to
enable e-commerce, impraved search
functionality, new navigation and a
cleaner design. It is possible to upgrade
to a combined Marketing Week and
Econsultancy service via a single log-in,
which gives our customers an efficient
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way of accessing our products. The new
Marketing Week Knowledge Bank allows
Xeim to generate additional revenues from
white papers and research on its website.

The Festival of Marketing, Xeim’s flagship
event, delivered ancther compelling tine-up
of speakers in 2019 and received positive
feedback from delegates and sponsors.
Aftendance was up by 48% in comparison
with 2018 and there was a double-digit
improvement in e-commerce sales. The
VIPs in attendance included almost 200
senior management and CMO level guests.
This gave the Festival a palpable buzz and
generated a positive experience for our
event sponsors and strategic partners.
Speakers at the event included Dave Lewis,
GCEO at Tesco, actress and activist Rose
nMoGowan, TV presenter Davina McCall
and Marketing Week columnist Mark Ritson
who set the scene with a packed session
on brand excellence. This success puts the
event in a strong position far 2020.

eLearning, which includes the Mini-MBA,

a joint initiative with Mark Ritson, has gone
trom strength to strength with revenue
growing 75% in 2019 underpinned by a
47% year-cn-year increase in delegates.
The feedback is overwhelmingly positive
across every intake with an average net
promoter score of +76. Building on this
success, in September 2019 we launched
a new marketing brand course with two
further courses planned for 2020. Tha new
Mini-MBA Brand Management course is
only available to Marketing Week Mini-MBA
alumné and aims to help marketers with the

skills they need to become brand managers.

MarketMakers had a challenging 2019 with
marketing services revenues at Really down
4% year-on-year and telemarketing services
down 3%. This was driven by increased
customer churn within telerarketing
services in the SME sector, reduced spend
from certain key accounts and lower than
anticipated renewals at Really in the first half
of the year. Due 10 the relatively low margins
in this business, the profit impact is limited.

At the end of 2019, Centaur announced the
appointment of Jude Bridge as managing
partner of Oystercatchers and Darren McGill
as managing director of MarketMakers.
Jude was an award-winning marketing
director at Marks & Spencer and Save

the Children and brings deep expertise in
building some of the UK's strongest brands.
Darren has a wealth of experience in senior
commerciat roles, most recently as chief
revenue cfficer at Signal Al, the leading
media information business. Beoth are
already having an impact and will take on
broader roles within Xeim. Jude wil develop
and lead a marketing excellence programme
to onsure bost-in-class marketing practics,
while Darren will develop and lead a sales
excellence initiative to improve customer
retention and sales productivity.

The key drivers of Xeim going into 2020 are
the growth of our Influencer Intelligence and
Econsultancy subscription revenues, the
continued success of the Mini-MBA and
building upon the success of the Festival

of Marketing by attracting new and repeat
delegates and spensors. The disappointing
performances of MarketMakers and
Econsultancy are being addressed and,
whilst improved performances are expected
in 2020, they remain a chalienge.
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THE LAWYER

The Lawyer is a leading provider of
inteligence to the giobal legal market,
generating revenue from digital
subscriptions, live events and marketing
solutions. The Lawyer represented 17%
of Group revenues in 2019 and achieved
a 9% increase in underlying revenue, a
16% increase in adjusted EBITDA and an
adjusted EBITDA margin of 35%.

The successful move to a multi-channel
digital platform continues to support The
Lawyer’s growth. Alongside a 12% increase
in corporate clients since 2018, the website
has seen a double-digit year-on-year
increase in the frequency of subscriber visits
and increased content consumption, with
50% of subscribers now visiting on a daily
or weekly basis.

We have continued to develop The Lawyer’s
premium content business which represents
just cver 40% of its total revenue, with a
growth of 17% in underlying revenue over
the year.

In January 2019, The Lawyer launched

the Litigation Tracker, an interactive tocl

that extends the functionality of The
Lawyer's current market insight products
and provides real-time insight into the UK
litigation market. With over 40 corporate
clients and extremely positive feedback from
users, we are pleased with its reception and
plan to build on this momentumn, including
the addition of further data sets in 2020.

The Lawyer’'s events business also grew

by 17%. propelled by the first new event
launches since 2016. This included the
inaugural Marketing Leadership Surmmit,
which was well-received with a net promoter
score of +57 from attendees.

Encouragingly, our more estabilished events
also performed well with particularly strong
year-on-year growth achieved in our GC
Summit and In-Heouse Financial Services
confarences, cur Eurcpean Awards and our
roundtable events for individual clients,

Revenue from marketing and advertising
solutions continued to be a challenge and
fell by 4% during the year, although the rate
of decling has slowed.

People and culture

Qur exacutive committee is committed

to ensuring we maintain a culture that
supports, engages and empowers
employees to fulfil their potential. it is

this culture that underpins our business
ambitions and we continue to develop
internal training plans and communication
processes 10 ensure our employees’
SUCCESS.

Acrass the Group, the gender balance is
good with a male-fernale ratio of 49:51.

At Board level, half of our non-executive
directors are female, but there is more
work to be done to encourage and
promaote women onto our senior leadership
team which only has a cne-third female
representation.

As a company, we understand the
importance of family and we offer enhanced
maternity and paternity leave. During 2019,
we introduced a wider range of flexible
working arrangements to coincide with our
new cffice environment in London. We have
a high rate of maternity returners (85% in
2018} and 8% of our workforce have part-
time working arrangements.

In 2019 we established a workforce
advisory panel to cover diversity, inclusion,
culture and engagement (DICE) to ensure
that our culture supports and empowers
our employees and promotes their
ongoing development. DICE reports to me
and frequently meets with the executive
committee. There is also a nominated non-
executive director to oversee the working of
DICE. Our policies and waorking practices
embrace an inclusive working environment
and takes a proactive and progressive
approach to supporting diversity. Our
hiring policy is focused on appoeinting the
best person for the job irrespective of race,
gender, sexual orientation or disability. The
Company also offers a range of mental
health, wellbeing and fitness sessions.

In 2019 we continued with our formal
mentoring programme which was launched
in 2G18. We delivered face-to-face coaching
sessions to more than 100 staff at all levels
and now have qualified Mental Health First
Aiders in the business. We ran workshops
for line managers to support flexible and
remote working, and staff continue to
participate in and be advocates of our Mini-
MBA programme.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Summary

In 2019, Centaur radically transformed the
shape of our business. In simplifying our
portfalio and concentrating cur attention
on two key markets, we have a more
streamlined customer-facing group that can
direct its focus at developing its product
offerings and digital capabilities. Cross-
selling, technology platform enhancement
and employee expertise will enhance these
product offerings and quality of revenue.
The Lawver, Influencer Inteligence and

el earning will be key drivers of revenue
growth towards MAP22.

Coronavirus has brought uncertainty to
global markets and whilst our customers
remain committed, some of their decisions
are being delayed. We have carried out
detailed risk analysis across the business
and have postponed two of The Lawyer's
key events from Q2 to Q4. The Festival

of Marketing will go ahead in October, as
planned, and we shail keep our remaining
events under review. We have a strong
balance sheet and an undrawn £25m credit
facility. We will be keeping a close eye on
cash through these uncertain times,

The dramatic scale and pace of change in
Centaur has made this a tough year for our
employees. Centaur's transformation has
only been achievable through their expertise
and cemmitment and | am incredibly grateful
for the energy, resilience and positive
approach they have demenstrated during
this period of change. As we now enter the
next stage of the Group’s development, |
am confident that we have the strategy and
structure and pecple in place to achieve

our MAP22 goal. | look forward to building
towards this in 2020.

SWAG MUKER K
Chief Executive

17 March 2020
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N KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group has set cut the following care financial and non-financial metrics to measure the Group's performance. The KPls are monitored by the Board by
reference to the annual budget and the focus on these measures will support the successful implementation of the MAP22 strategy. These indicators are
discussed in more detail in the CEQ review and Financial Review,

KPP Statistic Cammentary
Jydwebo o2 5 - o ; The growth in total revenue adjusted to exclude the
t impact of event timing differences, as well as the revenue
i contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses.
2%
3%
4%
5%

208 2019

Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue where
adjusted EBITOA is defined as adjusted operating

profit efore depreciation and impairment of tangible
assets, and amortisation and impairment of intangible
assets, other than those acquired through a business
combination. For comparative purposes, the 2019 figure
excludes the impact of IFRS 16 {Leases)

{see Financial Review pages 14 to 21).

B Diluted earnings per share calculated using the adjusted
" earnings, &3 set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
3p
2p

\ &7 5
2018 2019

The percentage by which adjusted operating cash flow
covers adjusted EBITDA (on continuing and discontinued
operations) as set out in the Financial Review.,

*3ee definitions in Financial Review on page 21.
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Commentary

Number of unique delegates attending the Festival of
Marketing.

Number of delegates on Mini-MBA and related eLearning
courses in the year

Number and value of Xeim customers that have sales in
the year of greater than £50,000

Number and percentage of top 200 UK law firms and top
50 US law firms




Centaur Media Plc

“By removing non-
core assets, we
have been able to
achieve a significant
reduction in
overhead costs”

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report ang Financial Statements for the yez- ended 31 December 2019

N PERFORMANCE:

Overview

2019 was 3 significant year for Centaur
as it completed its restructuring
through the divestment programme
described in the CEQO'Ss raview.

Despite the impact of the divestment
programms on the Group and its
emplovees, | am delighted to report
that both Xeim and The Lawyer grew
adiusted operating profit, acjusted
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA margin
in 2019. Combined with the annualised
overhead cost savings of £5m that we
promised at our interim results, the

full year impact of which will be seen

in 2020, this performance has put
Centaur well on the path to obtaining
our MAP22 target of at least 20%
adjusted EBITDA margin by 2022
{without the benefit of the impact of
IFRS 16).

2019 was dominated by the divestment
programme in the (irst haif of the year with
income generating transitional arrangements
continuing long into the second half of

the year. The result of the divestment
programme is a simpler, more streamlined
Group with increased focus on its twe core
businesses. By removing non-core assets,
we have been able tc achieve a significant
reduction in overhead costs and have
recognised exceptional restructuring costs
in the income statement as a consequence
of the cost reduction plan of £2.5m.

Due to the divestment programme, the
Group is required to report its current year,
and also restate its prior year, results in

ling with IFRS & (Non-current assets held

for sale and discontinued operations},

50 that only the results of the continuing
business are reperted as part of revenue
and adjusted operating profit. The results

of the disposed businesses up to the date
of their divestrment are therefore shown in
net income from discontinued operations,
However, as most of the £5m cost reduction
took place in the second half of the year, the
lost contribution of the disposed assets was
not immediately offset by the cost savings.
This caused the Group to report an adjusted
aperating loss for the year, albeft reduced
compared to 2018 due to increases in
business unit EBITDA,

The Group received total cash consideration
of £20.4m from the divestment programme.
After transaction costs of £2.3m and
working capital adjustments of £1.7m,

net cash received from the divestment
programme was £16.4m.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 but took the
exemption not to re-state comparatives
for the prior year. As a result, year-on-year
business unit prafitability is not directly
comparable except at a pre-IFRS 16
adjusted EBITDA level, reflacted in the
discussion below,

Performance

The Group is reporting a statutory profit
after taxation of £1.9m {2018: a loss of
£14.2m} primarily due to the profit on
disposal of £7.8m from the divestment
programme. The Group's adjusted
operating loss of £1.1m is an improvement
from the restated adjusted operating loss

of £2.2m for 20318. This was driven by
significant cost reductions within Xeim
resulting in a 24% increasc in Xeim's
adjusted EBITDA, together with adjusted
EBITDA growth of 16% in The Lawyer. The
adjusted EBITDA for the two business units
is therefore 21% higher than 2018 despite a
revenue decline of 3%.

Reparted revenue of £48.9m represents a
decline of 3% over 2018, On an undertlying’
tasis, Group revenue fell 2% from £48.5m
in 2018 to £47.7m in 2019, Xeim underlying
revenue fell by 4% - increases in el.earning
and Influencer Intelligence revenues were
rmore than offset by reductions due to

the withdrawal from public training within
Econsultancy, and lower revenues at
Cystercatchers, Really and MarketMakers.
The Lawyer showed strong underlying
revenue growth, up 9%, driven by growth in
its subscriptions and events business.

1 Underying 1s a non-GAAP measure — see Measurements

and nen-statutory adjustments section
of Financial review for further explanation
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Excellence in marketing
Influencer Intelligence was merged with
Year Ahead during the year and saw strong
revenue growth of 11%. Xeim substantialty
grew its eLearning revenues in 2019 which
saw 75% revenue growth year on year,
driven by the success of the Mini-MBA and
the launch of the new marketing brand
course. The Mini-MBA saw volurme growth
of 47% with a pleasing corresponding
increase in yield.

Ecensultancy’s training revenue fell in the
vear due to the decision to restructure

its global sales operation in the US and
withdraw from public training, replacing
this with a new set of courses. As planned
the loss in revenue was more than offset
by cost savings and margin improvement.
Econsultancy subscription products had

a difficult period with lower volumes in the
year partially offset by strong improvement
in yields, especially on new business.
Renewal rates continue to improve, both in
terms of volume and yield, but the revenue
benefits will not be felt until 2020, as the
deferred income unwinds.

MarketMakers had a challenging year,
Marketing services revenues at Really
remained flat from the half year and
consequently ended 4% down year on

year. However, our telemarketing operations
struggled in the second half of the year, with
revenue declining 3% in 2019 due to lower
realised revenue on some key contracts and
lower than expected campaign renewals
from its smaller clients.

We consider profitable revenue growth to
be a key pillar to our future success and
accordingly we decided to close Marketing
Week Live and end public training in our
Econsultancy business to focus on more
profitable revenue streams and remove
duplicate brand and management costs of
£2.4m. The impagct of this has been that
adjusted business unit EBITDA (before the
impact of IFRS 16) in Xeim has grown by
24% in the year despite a 4% reduction in
underlying revenue.

Extract from Influencer Intelligence
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THE LAWYER

The Lawyer showed strong underlying
revenue growth, up 9%, driven by:

growth of 17% in its premium content
business, due in part to the launch

of hew products such as Litigation
Tracker, and increases in corporate
subscriptions; and

excellent performance in its events
business, up 17%, resulting from
development of the new Marketing
Leadership Summit and higher revenues
across most of the other events.

Revenue from Marketing and Advertising
Solutions fell by 4%, although this is a lower
decline than in 2018. Adjusted EBITDA has
increased by 16% from £2.5m to £2.9m
with a healthy increase in adjusted EBITDA
margin from 32% tc 35%.
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A PERFORMANCE:

New Accounting Standards

IFRS 16 has been adopted for the current reporting period and the Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective transition
approach where comparative periods are not restated. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules ate
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the right of use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment at a vaiue of £3.7m and lease
liabilities of £4.3m have been presented on the consolidated statement of financial position. This is after £1.6m depreciation expense and
£0.2m impairment charge in the year. The overall impact of IFRS 16 on the income statement was an additional expense of £0.1m with
expenses now classified as depreciation on the right of use asset and interest expense on the finance liability.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2018, after applying IFRS 16 (post-IFRS 16) of £4.4m, is £1.8m higher than if the new standard had not been applied.

giving an adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16} of £2.6m. For the pumoses of comparison, the adjusted EBITOA (pre-IFRS 16} and related margin
have been compared to 2018 in this commentary. For further details of the transition to IFRS 16 please refer to note 20.

Measurement and non-statutory adjustments

The statutory results of the Group are presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {1FRS"). The Group also
uses alternative reporting and other non-GAAP measures as explained below and as defined in the table on page 21.

Adjusted results are not intended to replace statutory results but are prepared to provide a better comparison of the Group’s core business
performance by removing the impact of certain items from the statutory results. The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted
earnings per share are the most appropriate way to measure the Group's operational performance because they are comparable to the prior
year and consequently review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis intemaily.

Statutory operating loss from continuing operations reconciles to adjusted operating loss and adjusted EBITDA as foliows:

2018
Note £m
Statutory toss before tax @03
Adjusting items:
Exceptional operating costs 4 2.0
Impairment of goodwill 10 12.8
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 25
Share based payments 25 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 -
18.1
Adjusted operating loss 2.2}
Depreciation, software amortisation and impairment 3 36
Adjusted EBITDA (post-IFRS 16) - 14
Adfusted EBITDA margin (post-IFRS 16} ' 3%
Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16) 1.4
Adjusted EBITDA margin {pre-iIFRS 16) ) o - o 3%
Adjusting items from continuing operations generated a loss before tax of £7.3m (2018: £18.1m) as follows:
Adjusting item Description
Exceptional operating costs Exceptional costs of £4.7m (2018: £2.0m) include £2.5m (2018: £0.4m) of staff restructuring

costs related to the Group's cost reduction plan following the completion of the divestment
programme in 2019, £2.2m {(2018: £1.3m) of divestment programme related costs and £nil
(2018; £0.3m) of costs relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives.

Impairment of goodwill In 2019, £nil {2018: £12.8m; relates to the impairment of goodwill. The 2018 charge primarily
related to the Xeim portfolio.
Amortisation of intangible assets Amortisation of acquired intangible assets of £2.4m (2018: £2.5m} has decreased in the year

following the full amortisation of certain intangible assets.

Share based payments Share based payments in 2019 of £0.1m (2018: £0.8m) have decreased significantly due to the
raduction in the number of share options from 10.6m to 7.8m. forfeitures and lapses of 0.5m
and 5.6m share options respectively resutted in a reversal of charges previously recognised.
This was offset by an expense recognised for 3.6m new share options granted during the year
and an additional charge recognised on 1.6m share options that vested during the year.

Loss on disposal of subsidiary The loss on disposal of subsidiaries of £0.1m (2018: £nil} relates to the sale of Venture
_Business Research Limited ("VBR").

16
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The Group also measures and presents performance in relation te various other non-GAAP measures, such as underlying revenue. These have
been presented to provide users with additional inforrmation and analysis of the Group’s performance, consistent with how the Board monitors

resufts. The Group's activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore currency movements do not have a material impact on results.

In the year, the Group disposed of VBR which was included in The Lawyer business unit. Due to its size it has not been treated as
discontinued and its revenues are therefore reported as part of the Group’s continuing revenue. However, for underlying reporting purposes,
its revenue (2019: £0.1m 2018: £0.3m) has been excluded. Marketing Week Live, which was included in Xeim, has been closed and
therefore its revenue has also been excluded for underlying reporting purposes.

FERN

At the half year we disclosed our internal profitability performance measure by segment — contribution after portfolio costs ("CAP”). We
repartad CAP for three different segments — Xeim, The Lawyer and Central. CAP was an interim measure so that we could illustrate the
contributions of the business units while the Group was transitioning to the new simplified model.

In crder to increase clarity over the underlying profitability of our business units, Xeim and The Lawyer, we are now reporting the “segment profit” of
our usiness units, being the adjusted operating profit of each segment. Segment profit builds upen and replaces the concept of CAP by including
specific allocations of the central support teams and overheads that are directly related to each business unit, in order to demonstrate the stand-
alone profitability. Any costs not specifically attributable to either Xeim or The Lawyer, remain as part of central costs. This is different from the
concept of segmental reporting used in prior years when central overheads were fully allocated on a revenue basis to the operating segments.

The table below shows the statutory and underlying revenue for each business unit:

Underlying revenue
Premium Content
Marketing Services
Training and Advisory
Events
Marketing and Advertising Sclutions
Telemarketing Services
Total underlying revenus
Underlying reveniue growth

Revenue from closed or disposed
businesses

Tota_l_ statutory revenue

Tt a !)(eim
S 2018
£m

11.2
4.5

3.2

9.6
41.1

. 1.5
A 42.6

The table below recanciles the adjusted operating profit{loss) for each segment to the adjusted EBITDA:

Revenve
OCther income

Operating costs

Adjusted operating profit/(loss)
Adiusted cperating margin
Depreciation, amertisation and
impairment

Adjusted EBITDA (post-IFRS16)
Adiusted EBITDA margin (post-IFRS16)
Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16)
Adjusted EBITDA margin (pre-IFRS16)

£

.-

i

i

§ :
I I 426

I 3t

2018
£m

e : . (39.3)
Ce 3.3
8%

1.8

v - 2w 5.1
£ 12%

By
n

Restated
The Lawyer

Xeim The Lawyer

2018
£m
7.7
6.7
2.0
26%

05

25
32%

2018
gm

2.9

1.8
27

7.4

0.3
7.7

Central
2018
£m

0.8
(8.3)
(7.5)

6.2)

As described above, the Group adopted IFRS 16 in 2019 but took the exemption not to re-state the comparatives for the prior year.
As a resuit, year-on-year business unit profitability between 2019 and 2018 is not directly comparable except at a pre-IFRS 16 adjusted
EBITDA level which for both years includes property rent charges. Both pre-IFRS 16 and post-IFRS 16 adjusted EBITDA for each business
unit for 2018 are provided in the table above. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment for 2019 includes the higher depreciation charge

arising from the application of IFRS 16.

Total
2018
£m

141
4.5
8.0
5.0
7.3
9.6

48.5

1.4
3%
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N PERFORMANCE:

Net finance costs

Net finance costs were £0.3m (2018: £0.2m). The Group reported an opening cash position at 1 January 2019 of £0.1m and has held more
significant cash balances foliowing the divestment programme. Gonseguently, the vast majority of finance costs in 2019 are as a result of the
commitment fee payabie for the revolving cradit facility.

Taxation

A tax eredit of £0.7m {2018: £1.1m) has been recognised on continuing operations for the year, The adjusted tax charge was £0.5m (2018:
a credit of £0.4m;} giving an adjusted effective tax rate {compared to adjusted profit before tax) of nil% (2018: 17%). The Company's profits
were taxed in the UK at a blended rate of 19.0% (2018: 19.0%). On a reported basis, the effective tax rate is 8% (2018: 5%). See note 7 for
a reconciliation between the statutory reported tax charge and the adjusted tax charge.

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations relate to the four divestments made during the first half of the year as described in the CEO's report. The profit from
discontinued operations in 2019 and a recenciliation of the 2018 results compared 1o the results reported last year is as follows:

Discontinued Continuing As reported

2018 2018 2018

£m £m £€m

Revenue ' & ' o 20.2 50.3 70.5
COther operating income - 0.8 0.8
Net operating expenses (13.9) (71.4) (85.3)
Profit on disposal C.1 - 01
Operating profit/(oss) 6.4 (20.3) (13.9)
Finance costs - ©.2) 0.2}
Profit/{loss) before tax 6.4 (20.5) (14.1)

Taxation (1.2} 1.1 ©.1)
Profit/(loss) after tax 5.2 {19.4) 1 4;2)

Earnings/losses per share

The Group has delivered adjusted diluted earnings per share for the year of 0.3 pence (2018: 2.6 pence}. Diluted earnings per share for
the year were 1.3 pence (2018: a loss of 9.9 pence). Full details of the earnings per share calculations can be found in note 9 1o the
financial statements.

Dividends

In October 2019, an interim dividend of 1.5p per share was paid relating to 2019 (2018: 1.5p). A return of cash of 2.0p per share, in the form
of a special dividend, was also announced as part of the interim results and paid aleng with the interim dividend.

At the time of the interim results, the Group confirmed a new dividend policy, applicable from 1 January 2020, such that Centaur will target a
pay-out ratio of 40% of adjusted earnirgs, subject to a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share per annurm.

In light of this new policy, a final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share is proposed by the Directors in respect of 2012 (2018 1.5p), giving a

total ordinary dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 2.0p (2018: 3.0p). This brings the total of ordinary and special dividends

paid to sharehoiders relating to 2019 to £5.7m {4.0p per share), which is £4.3m (3.0p per share) more than the dividends that would have
heen paid under the new policy,

The final dividend in respect of the year is subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting and, if appraved, will be paid on 29
May 2020 to all ordinary shareholders on the register at the close of business on 11 May 2020,

After starting the year with only £0.1m of cash, the £16.4m net proceeds from divestments have been spent on the excess dividends

of £4.3m and exceptional costs relating to the Group's central cost reductions and divestrnent programime of £4.7m while retaining an
acceptable minimum level of liquidity for the Group. The Board was planning a further return of cash as a special dividend alongside the
ordinary dividend in May, However, the uncertainty resulting frorn coronavirus pandemic has caused the Board to take a prudent approach
and there will be a delay in any further special dividends until we have better clarity of the potential impact on Gentaur, if any. The Group
closed 2019 with cash of £3.3m (2018: £0.1m).

1R
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Cashflow

2018

£m

Adjusted operating loss o A B -
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment o 3.7
Movement in working capital S 1.3
Adjusted operating cash flow 7.8
Capital expenditure . (2.8)
Cash impact of adjusting items ’ 0.8
Taxation . 1.2)
Repayment of finance lease obligations CLn -
Interest and finance leases E 0.4)
Lean arrangement fees - 0.2)
Free cash flow [ 2.2
Acquisitions O (1.8
Disposal of subsidiaries cd 0.3
Share repurchases . 0.4}
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders 4.3)
Increase/{decrease} in net cash 4.0)
Opening net cash : 4.1
Closing net cash s Q0.1
Cash conversion R 85%

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. Centaur defines adjusted operating cash flow as cash flow from operations
excluding the impact of adjusting itams, which are defined above. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile iterns not related to the core trading of the Group and includes the Group’s management of capital expenditure, A
raconcifiation between cash flow from operations and adjusted operating cash flow is shown in note 1(b} to the financiat statements. The
cash impact of adjusting items primarily relates to exceptional restructuring costs in both years.

MAP22

As referred to in the CEC's report and our interim results presentation, the Group introduced its Margin Acceleration Programme (MAPZ22) in
September 2019 which targets an adjusted EBITDA margin of at least 20% by 2022 (excluding the impact of IFRS 16). This will be achieved
by the targeted costs savings of £5m per annum together with profitable revenue growth. Targeted cost savings represent roughly half of the
increase in EBITDA required to meet the targeted 20% EBITDA margin. This cost saving target had been achieved on an annualised basis
by the end of December 20319 and the full benefit will be reflected in the 2020 financial performance.

Financing and bank covenants

In Novermnber 2018, the Group agreed an amendment and extension of the existing £25 million revolving credit facility which had been signed
in 2015. The facility's terms include quarterly testing of leverage and interest cover ratios and security has been granted over the Group's
assets. The initial period of the extension was three years until November 2621 with the option to extend by two further single years subject
to bank approval.

The principas financial covenants under the facility are: the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA shall not exceed 2.5:1, and the ratio of
EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1. The Group remained well within its banking covenants during the year and had not
drawn down any of its £25 millicn revelving credit facility at the end of 2019.
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N PERFORMANCE:

Balance sheet
A summary of the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below:

Restated
2018
£m
Goodwill and other intangible assets ’ . _ 78.1
Property, plant and equipment T 1.3
Deferraed taxation : 03
Deferred income s {15.0)
Other current assets and liabilities : 2.0
Non-current liabilities : {01}
Net assets before cash 66.6
Net cash 041
Net assets 66.7

It should be noted that the prior year balance sheet, unlike the income statement, is not adjusted to reflect the divestment programme that
oceurred in 2019, However, trade receivables and other payables in 2018 have been restated to gross up credits of £0.8m which had been
previously reported in trade receivables as described in note 1 (g} (i),

In 2019, goodwil and other intangibles have reduced by £16.9m mainly due to the impact of the divestment programme (£12.8m). Froperty,
plant and equipment have increased mainly as a result of the nght-of-use property assets of £3.7m recognised under IFRS 16. Other
current assets and liabilities have been significantly reduced year-on-year by the divestment programme as shown in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Going concern

After due consideration, as required under IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staterents, including consideration of the Group’s net current
liakility position, the Group’s forecasts for at least twelve months from the date of this report, and the effectiveness of risk management
processes, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. As detailed under the Risk Management section, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group over a three-year pericd to December 2022 and the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the pericd to December 2022,

Conclusion

The Group has successtfully completed its strategic divestment programme and is now leaner and fitter for the future as it focuses on Xeim
and The Lawyer. Cur balance shest is stronger than before with over £9m of cash in the bank at year end and a £256 banking facility that
the Group is not intending to draw down in the foreseeable future. Notwithstanding the impact of coronavirus, we stand in a strong place to
execute MAP22 having met our targeted annualised cost reduction programme of £6m. | would like to thank all the employees of Centaur
for their commitment and patience as the Group has completed its divestment and restructuring programmes.

SIMON LONGFIELD

Chief Financial Officer
17 March 2020
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Alternative performance measures

Measure

Definition
Adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible assets and
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through a
business combination, before the impact of IFRS 16 to remove property rent charges.

Adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible assets and
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through

a business combination, after the impact of IFRS 16 to remove property rental charges.
This measure is new, reflecting the adoption of IFRS 16,

Adjusted EBITDA {pre-IFRS 16} as a percentage of revenue.
Adjusted tax charge as a percentage of Adjusted profit before tax.

EPS calculated using Adjusted profit for the period.

ltemns as set out in the statement of consolidated income and notes 1(b) and 4 of the
financial statements including exceptional items, and volatile items predominantly relating
to investment activities and other separately reported items.

Operating profit/(loss) excluding Adjusting items.
Profit before tax exciuding Adjusting items.

Revenue generated by a segment less its costs of sales and all costs attributable to
marketing, selling, content production and delivery of that revenue. This measure is new as
described on page 17.

Adjusted operating cash flow/adjusted EBITDA (post-IFRS 16).

lterms where the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be non-
recurring in nature as shown in note 4.

Increase/decrease in cash for the year before the impact of debt, acquisitions, disposals,
dividends and share repurchases.

Adjusted operating profit of a segment after allocation of central support teams and
overheads that are directly related to each segment or business unit. As explained in the
Financial Review, central costs were fully allocated in prior years.

Revenue adjusted to exclude the impact of revenue contribution arising from acquired,
disposed or closed businesses (“excluded revenue”).
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% RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management approach

The Board has overall responsibility for the
affectiveness of the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are reguiarly monitored by the Audit
Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
Committee in this financial year can be
fourd in the Audit Committee Regort on
pages 41 to 43.

The Executive Committee, Company
Secretary and the Head of Legal are
responsible for identifying, managing and
monitoring material and emerging risks in
each area of the business and for regularly
reviewing and updating the risk register, as
well as reporting to the Audit Commitiee in
relation to risks, mitigations and controls,
As the Group operates principally from one
affice and with relatively short management
reporting lines, members of the Executive
Committee are closely involved in day-to-
day matters and are able to identify areas
of increasing risk guickiy and respond
accordingly. The responsibility for each risk
identified is assigned to a member ot the
Executive Committee. The Audit Committee
considers risk management and controls
regularly and the Board formally considers

risks to the Group's strategy and plans as
well as the risk management process as
part of its strategic review.

The risk register is the core element of the
Group's risk management process. The
register is maintained by the Company
Secretary with input from the Executive
Committee and the Head of Legal. The
Executive Committee initially identifies the
material risks and emerging risks facing the
Group and then collectively assesses tha
severity of each risk (by ranking both the
likelihood of its ococurrence and its potential
Impact on the business) and the related
mitigating controls.

As part of its risk management processes,
the Board considers both strategic and
operational risks, as well as its risk appetite
in terms of the tolerance level it is wiling

to accept in relation to each principal risk,
which is recorded in the Company's risk
register. This approach reccgnises that

risk cannot always be eliminated at an
acceptable cost and that there are some
risks which the Board wil,, after due and
careful consideration, choose to accept.
The Group’s rigk register, its method of
preparation and the operation of the key
controfs in the Group’s system of internat
control are regularly reviewed and overseen

by the Audit Committee with reference to
the Group’s strategic aims and its operating
emvironment. The register is also reviewed
and consiclered by the Board.,

As part of the ongoing enhancement of
the Group's risk monitoring activities, we
reviewed and updated the procedures
by which we evaluate principal risks and
uncertainties during the year.

Principal risks

The Group's risk register currently includes
cperational and strategic risks. The principal
risks faced by the Group in 2019, taken
from the register, together with the potential
effects and mitigating factors, are set out
below. The Directors confirm that they

have undertaken a robust assessment of
the principal and emerging risks facing the
Group. Financial risks are shown in note 28
to the financial staternents.

Risk number 1 has been updated from

last year's Annual Report to include the
wider risk of failure to deliver a high growth
performance culture. Risk number 2 has
been updated from last year's Annuai
Report te include the wider nsk of sensitivity
to the UK/sector economic conditions,
instead of just the risk related to print
products.
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Failure to deliver
a high growth
performance culture.

The risk that Centaur
is unable to attract,
develop and retain

an appropriately
skilled, diverse and
responsible workforce
and leadership

tearn, and maintain

a healthy culture
which encourages
and supports sethicat
high-performance
behaviours and
decision-making.
Difficutties in recruiting
and retaining staff
could lead to loss of
key senior staff.
Failure to implement

the simplification
programme.

Sensitivity to UK/
sector economic
conditicns.

Eescripﬂion of risk and impact

Centaur's success depends on growing

the business and completing the MAP22
strategy. In order to do this, it depends in
large part on its ability to recruit, motivate
and retain highly experienced and qualified
employees in the face of often intense
competition from other companies, especially
in London.

In 2019 it was exacerbated by:

a. the simplification proegramme;

b. the formation of the Xeim group; and

¢. the reduction of overheads.

Investment in training, development and pay
awards needs to be compelling but will be
challenging in the current economic climata.
Implementing a working envircnment that
allows for agile and remote delivery is
necessary to keep the “millennial” workforce
engaged.

High staff churn (a challenge for all media
and events companies} affects budget,
productivity and continuity for customers.

Developing the 2022 business strategy and
changes required in skill set and culture are
challenging and costly.

Centaur's UK focus makes Centaur highly
sansitive to UK/sector economic conditions.
This risk remained high during 2019

and continues while the terms of the UK
leaving the EU are uncertain. The current
uncertainties caused by coronavirus have
also increased the short-term risk to the
Group,

STRATEGIC REPORT

Risk mitigation/centrol procedure

We regularly review measures aimed

at improving our ability to recruit and
retain empioyees and to track employee
engagement.

The move tc WeWork in Waterloo, a
bright, modern and flexible workspace,
and with good transport connections
should be a compeling environment for
staff and improve our ability to recruit and
retain employees and to track employee
engagement.

Weekly “check-ins” via ENGAGE ensure
we have a weekly “mood” of the business
and an understanding of any key risks or
challenges as they arise.

An employee engagement team has
been set up, known as DICE to focus
on Diversity, Inclusion, Culture and
Engagement along with other key issues
and opportunities that can challenge the
business. This is sponsored by the CEO
and a Nen-Executive Director.

Key senior leaders have had their
reward packages reviewed and, where
appropriate, increased notice periods
and restrictive covenants have been
rtroduced.

A review takes place annually to ensure
flight risks and training needs are
identified which become the focus for
pay, reward and development areas.

All London based staff continue to be
paid at or above the London Living
Wage.

Our HR processes include exit interviews
for all leavers to resolve areas of concern.

Most of the risk impacts Centaur
indirectly from our customers,

Part of the strategic plan for Centaur is
to increase internaticnal crganic growth
in the mid to longer term, focusing on
the US and Asia in particular, in order to
mitigate this risk.

Many of the Group's products are
market-leading in their respective sectors
and are an integral part of our customers’
operational processes, which mitigates
the risk of reduced demand for our
products.

The Group regularly reviews the poiitical
and economic conditions and forecasts
for the UK, including specific risks such
as coronavirus, and the main sectors

in which it operates to assess whether
changes to its preduct offerings or pricing
structures are necessary.

The Board
censiders
this rigk t0 be
broadty the
same as the
prior year,
following the
simplification
programme.

The Board
considers this
risk to have
increased since
the prior year.
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Rank

Risk

Fraudulent or
accidental breach

of our security, or
ineffective cperation
of IT and data
management systems
leads to loss, theft or
misuse of personal
data or confidential
information or

other breach of

data protection
requiremeants.

Regulatory; GDPR,
PECR and other
similar legislation
involive strict
requirements
regarding how
Centaur handles
parseonal data,
including that of
customers and the
risk of a fine from
the ICO, third party
claims (e.g. from
customers) as well as
reputational damage
if we do not comply.

Description of risk and impact

A serious oceurrence of a foss, theft or
misuse of personal data or sensitive or
confidential information could result in
reputational damage, a hreach of data
protection requirerments or direct financial
impact. Sea risk 4: GDPR, PECR below.

Centaur collects and processes personal
data and confidential information from some
of its customers, users and other third
parties.

Centaur is at risk from a serious occurrence
of & loss, theft or misuse of personal data
or confidential information en our software/
hardware due to the actions of a Centaur
employese, partner or third party.

The General Data Protection Regulation
{'GDPR'), which is the data protection law
that came into force in May 2018, involves
much stricter requirements for Centaur
regarding its handling of personal data.
This includes:
customers and employees having greater
rights on how we use their data;

Centaur having to provide specific
information to our customers on how wa
use their personal data;

strict rules around how we conduct our
direct marketing activities;

personal data being kept more securely;
time and access,;

contracts with suppiiers that handle our
data to include GDPR compliant clauses;

new rules about notifying the ICC in the
event of a breach of GDPR;

a short time periced for responding

to “subject access requests” from
customers and employees;

a requirement to dermonstrate how
we comply with GDPR, which means
more onerous internal record-keeping
obligations;

Risk mitigation/control procedure

Appropriate (T security is undertaken
for all key processes to keep the IT
environment safe.

Websites are hosted by specialist third-
party providers who provide warrantiss
relating to security standards.

All of our websites have been migrated
onto a hew and more secure platform
which is cloud hosted and databases
have been cleansed and upgraded.

External access to data is protected and
staff are instructed to password protect
or encrypt where appropriate.

The Group Head of Data ensures

that rigerous centrols are in place to
ensure that ywarehouse data can only

be downioaded by the data team.
Integration of the warehouse with current
databases and data captured and stored
elsewhere is ongeing.

Centaur has a business continuity plan
which includes its IT systems and there
is daily, overnight back-up of data, stored
off-site.

Please see risk 4 below for specihcs
relating 10 GDPR compliance/data.

Centaur has taken a wide range of
measures aimed at complying with the
key aspects of GDPR.

The measures taken inciude:

updating the marketing permissions
on our websites and event
registration pages to ensure
language is specific/unambiguous;

updating the unsubscribe process;

improving our data complaints
procedures;

improving our procedures for
removing individuals from databases
where details are inaccurate/not
neeced;

updating cur standard terms and
conditions across all products;

updating our privacy and cookies
policy and website terms and
conditions; and

amending our contracts with
suppiiers who provide us with
personal data (ie fists} or who handle
data on our behalf.

Movement in
risk

The Board
considers
this risk ta ba
broadly the
same as the
prior year.

i
i3

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year,

Er
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Ranik

Risk

Description of risk and impact

+  arequirement to carry out data impact
assessments for new types of parsonal
data processing undertaken; and

= arequirement to keep under review the
need for a Data Protection Officer.

The Privacy and Electronic Communications
Regulations {PECR) implements the EU
“E-Privacy” Directive and sits alengside the
GDPR. PECR includes specific obligations for
businesses like Centaur regarding how they
conduct electronic marketing calls, emails,
texts, and on their use of cockies and similar
technologies, ameng other things.

In the event of a serious breach of the GDPR
and or PECR, Centaur could be subject

to a significant fine from the regulator {the
ICO)} and claims from third parties including
customers as well as reputational damage.

The maximum fing of 20 milion &uro for
breach of GDPR is much higher than fines
under the old UK data protection legisiation.

The maximum fine for breaches of PECR is
£500,000, and directors’ liability for serious
breaches of marketing rules has recently
been introduced.

The obligations for Centaur under the GDPR
and PECR ae complex and continuing,
meaning this area requires continued focus.

Following the adoption of the GDPR by EU
member states, certain other countries and
jurisdictions worldwide are also reviewing
and updating their own laws relating to
data and privacy. The extent to which
Centaur is required to comply with the laws
in each of these jurisdictions depends on
the circumstances, and there is a risk that
Centaur may not be compliant with all such
faws and cculd therefore be subject to
regulatory action and fines from the relevant
regulators and data subjects.

AP,
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Movement in

Bl sk

More recent measures taken 1o improve
the Company's compliance with the laws
on electronic marketing include:

* a data deletion exercise in order to
ensure data maintained is in line
with our data retention policy;

outsourcing CPTS screening to a
third-party supplier for specific list
screening;

quarterly training for sales and
marketing staff; and

* anewly formed Data Protection
Compliance Committee which is
respensible for menitering Centaur's
angoeing compliance with data
pretection laws.

Recent guidance published by the

GO relating to the use of cookies, and
further changes to the laws relating to
data privacy, ad tech and electronic
marketing expected in late 2019/20, will
further increase the regulatory burden

for businesses lke Centaur, and the
requirements in this regard will need to be
kept under review.

The business has taken advice on what
it needs to mitigate its risk in respect of
the CCPA and has a plan in place for
actioning this.

Staff training will be provided in-house
on key legislaticn, and any changes to it,
where appropriate including PECR.

Centaur’s in-house lawyer keeps abreast
of material developments in data
protection law and regulation and advice
from external law firms is sought where
appropriate. Given the increasingly
global nature of our business and our
customers Centaur’s approach to
complying with data protection laws in
other jurisdictions should be kept under
review.
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Rank Risk

Serious systems
failure (affecting core
systems and multiple

or breach of IT
resuit of a defliberate

cyber-attack or
unintentional avent).

Centaur may incur significant costs and
suffer other negative consequences, such
as remediation costs (including liability for
stolen assets or infermation, and repair of
any damage caused to Centaur's (T netwaork
infrastructure and systems). Centaur may

Desgcription of risk and impact

Centaur relies on its [T network to conduct
its operations. The IT network Is at risk of

a serious systems failure or breach of its
products or functions) security controls. This could result from
deliberate cyber-attacks or unintentionat
network security (as a evenits and may include third parties gaining
unauthorised access to Centaur’s [T network
and systems resulting in misappropriation of
its financial assets, proprietary or sensitive
information, corruption of data, or operational
disruption, such as unavailability of our
websites and our digital products to users or
unavailability of support platforms.

If Centaur suffers serious cyber-attacks,
whether by a third party or insider, any
operational disruption may directly affect our
revenues or collection activities.

controls.

also suffer reputational damage and loss
of investor confidence resulting from any
cperational disruption.

Viability statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,
the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period to
December 2022, taking account of the
Group’s current position, the Group's
strateqy, the Board's risk appetite and,

as documented above, the principal risks
facing the Group and how these are
managed. Based on the resuits of this
analysis, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in cperation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period to
December 2022.

The Board has determined that the
three-year period to December 2022 is an
appropriate petiod over which to provide

its viability statement because the Board's
financial planning horizon covers a three-
year period. In making their assessment, the
Directors have taken account of the Group’s
existing financing arrangements to 2022
{(which allows extensicns to 2023 on similar
terms), cash flows, dividend cover and other
key financial ratios over the period.

These metrics are subject to stress testing
which involves sensitising a number of

the main assumptions underlying the
forecasts both individually and in unison.
The main assumption sensitised included

a scenario where the Group’s forecast
EBITDA dropped by 50%, as well as short
term cash conversion issues. Scenarios
relating to the current immediate risk relating
to coronavirus were alsc considered. In a
scenaric where the Group's EBITDA fell by
86% over the three-year financial planning
horizon, and without management taking
mitigating actions, the Group would breach
its banking covenants in the fourth quarter
of 2022, Where appropriate, this analysis

is carried out to evaluate the potential
impact of the Group's principal risks actually
oceurring, such as failure to deliver a high
growth performance culture, UK economic
conditions, breach of security, data
compliance and systerns failure. Sensitising
the model for changes in the assumptions
and risks affirmed that the Groug would
remain viable over the three-year period to
December 2022,

Risk mitigation/contrel procedurs

Centaur has invested significantly in

its T systerns and where services are
outsourced to suppliers, contingency
planning is carried out to mitigate risk of
supplier failure.

The ongeing development of CRM (PCI
cempliance} and finance systems.

Movement in
risk

The Board
considers
this rigk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year.

e

Lockton's, our insurance advisor, has EER
advised us in relation to additional cover

that is appropnate to ingure against a

serious failure of IT network security

g2 2

Our policies were upgraded in 2018 to
further ensure cur staff are clear and
accountable for their IT compliance. This
is checked on an ongoing basis.

In 2019 Centaur also implemented a
number of security improvements to
better protect and monitor our network,
systerms and data eg CloudStrike,

New starters recelve both Terms and
Conditions plus the staff T policy.

Going concern basis of
accounting

In accordance with provision 30 of the

UK Corporate Gavernance Code 2018,
the Directors’ staterment as to whether
they consider it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements and their
identification of any material uncertainties,
including the principal risks outlined above,
to the Group's ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial
statements and for the foreseeable future
can be found on page 36.
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The Board recognises its responsibility

to take into consideration the needs and
concerns of all our stakeholders as part

of its discussion and decision-making
processes. By understanding and
communicating with our key stakeholder
groups, we can factor their insights and
concerns into these discussions and ensure
that we act in a way most likely to premote
the success of the Company for the benefit
of members as a whole.

Our people are our most important asset
and are crucial to our success. Having the
right people with the right skills at all levels
in our organisation is critical to building a
quality, sustainable business and delivering
our strategy. Our culture is characterised

as customer focused, commercial, diverse,
grounded and innovative with a Can do, Will
do, Now! attitude.

The Board alsa recegnises the impertance
of develeping the values and culture of

the Company and the necessity for high
standards of business conduct throughout
the Group to suppert its strategy. These
values and standards are cascaded to

the business from the executive directors,
through the Executive Committee and the
senior leadership team, and to empioyees
via town hall gatherings and other formal
and informal methods of communication.

During 2019 we established a workforce
advisory panel to cover Diversity, Inclusion,
Culture and Engagement (DICE). This
cornprises ten employees from across

the Group and is led by one of cur senior
leadership team. DICE reports to the CEO
and Carol Hosey has been appointed as
the Non-Executive director sponsor of
DICE. Her role is to ensure that employee
sentiment is clearly communicated to the
Board.

She will also ensure that our gender,
diversity and environmental ambitions are
realised with actionable plans.

More information on people, talent
development, heaith and safety, diversity,
gender pay, anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy, environment, emnissions
and charitable donations can be found in
the Corporate Responsibility section on
pages 29 to 31.
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The table below sets out our key stakehoider groups. Each stakeholder group requires an individual engagemerit approach to promote
effective and mutually beneficial relaticnships.,

Stakeholder Group

2.

Qur shareholders
piay an important
role in monitorng
and safeguarding the
governance of the
Company.

Without custamers there
is no business.

The Company has a
diverse workforce which
is recognised as a key
asset of our business.

At 31 December 2019
there was a total of 565
employees based in
London, Portsmouth and
New York,

How we engage?

Formal docurmented shareholder
roadshow meetings, post results
presentations and market updates.

Other ad hoc sharenolder meetings as
required and requested.

Annual General Mesting.

Coensultation prior, during and post
strategic decision making or execution.

Every day we interact with a wide variety
of existing and potential customers. This
is with a view to understand customer
requirements/feedback, to manage their
expectaticns and to generate profitable
revenue.

Bi-monthly Exacutive Committee
mestings.

Monthly Leadership tearn meetings.
Weekly team meetings.

Quarterly town halis to ampioyees are
recorded for viewing by cur Portsmouth
and New York offices.

A weekly online sense check
questionnaire (“ENGAGE").

A guarterly engagement survey.

Annual appraisals and objective-setting
process.

DICE established so that all employees
have a voice and their views are
considered.

Meetings with suppliers as approprate,
together with negotiations on the terms
and conditions of supply.

The Company supparts local
communities and charitable
aorganisations through direct fundraising
and donations. During the vear, the
Company supported two charities.

Why we engage?

We worl 1o ensure that our shareholders
and their representatives have a good
understanding of, and are supportive of,
our strategy, business model, opportunity
and culture.

To help our customers achieve their

goals. Customers provide repeatable and
recurring revenues and some customers
provide significant revenue. The impact of
strategic decisions on our custorners are
carefully considered and moenitored on an
ongoing basis.

To ensure that communication is clear and
understood throughoul U Curnipary.

The Company is working hard ta drive
its status as a destination employer by
creating the right environment and culture.

ENGAGE analyses general motivation
and sentiment. This is anonymised and
therefore encourages employees to be
honest about issues or probiems.

Quarterly employee engagement surveys
for all employees to have a voice with
measurable KPI's benchmarked. The
Company believes that diversity enhances
business performance and environment.

There are certain strategic suppliers
wha underpin the business aperations.
Strategic decisions consider the impact
on these suppliers, in terms of capability,
scale, value for money and risk.

To be a good corporate citizen and give
back to the communities and charities
that are important to our employees.

What matters to this
Group?

Strategy and business
maodel, long term
share value growth,
sustainable dividend
policy, financial stability
and culture,

Innovative products.

The custorner
experience.

Customer satistaction.

Opportunities for
employee development
and progression. Agile
working patterns.
Opportunity to share
ideas and make a
difference, diversity and
inclusion and climate
cansideration.

To ensure that Centaur
can corrply with agreed
terms and conditions.
The values of our
suppliers and thair high
standards of business
conduct,

Innovation and product
development.

Inclusion of employee
sentiment and what is
important to them.
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N CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Our people

P TR

Centaur Media is committed to developing
a culture of environmental awareness and
sacial responsibility and we seek, where
appropriate, to incorporate environmentally
and socially responsible practices into the
way we deliver services and products to
our customers and procure goods and
services from third parties, The Group has
a whistleblowing policy in place enabling
employees to report any concerns about
improper practices, including relating to

its environmental and social responsibifity
practices.

»

We have adopted an online application
(ENGAGE) which gives employees the
opportunity to provide feedback on a weekly
basis and enables management to get a
regular temperature check cn motivation
and real time feedback from their teams.

R SR ot

We are committed to the safety of our

staff. We have a health and safety policy
which sets cut Centaur's responsibilities
and those of its staff concerning heaith and
safety in the workplace, Our Health and
Safety Committee, which is responsible for
overseeing the application of this Policy,
meets at least every six months and reports
directly to the Board on ail material related
matters. Due to the nature of the business
and following our move to WeWork serviced
offices in Waterloo, risk of work-based
accidents is relatively low, but the Group
takes its responsibilities for the health and
safety of its employees seriously, Cur Office
Manager is rasponsible for maintaining a
safe environment for employees and an
accident book is available to all staff in
Reception. We periodically carry out internal
health and safety reviews, taking follow

up action to maintain standards where
necessary, and undertake staff training in

STRATEGIC REPORT

relation to fire safety. Where work-related
activities take place, which have a higher
risk attached - such as travel, marketing
events and outdoor activities — additional
planning is undertaken which includes a
risk assessment and mitigation plan. To
minimise risk to the health and safety of our
employees in the event of a major disaster
or emergency, our business continuity plan
is regularly revised and tested.

L

Centaur Media strongly encourages diversity
across the Group and is committed to
recruiting and promoting the most talented
pecple from the widest poof and providing
equal opportunities for all employees and
prospective employaes. To suppert this aim,
the Group has an Equal Cpportunities Policy
which covers recruitment and selection,
prometion, training and development and
standard contract terms for all staff. We also
support apprenticeships which increase our
talent pool and demonstrates the Group's
commitrment to reaching out to young
pecple from a variety of backgrounds.

We offer internships and work experience
opportunities for people from a variety of
backgrounds.

At 31 December 2019 one of our six {17%)
Board members was female and one out of
five {20%) of cur Executive Committee was
fermale. The percentages fluctuated during
the year due to changes in the Board's
membership. From 1 April 202G, following
the appointment of two new Non-Executive
Directors, one-third of the Board will be
fernale.

As at 31 December 2019, our workforce
overall was 51% female (288 employees}
and 49% male (277 employees). We proudly
support flexible working opportunities, and
8% of staff are employed on a part-time
basis.

-

y &, ¢

We carry out an annual analysis on Gender
Pay and will be submitting and publishing
the result for 2019 at the beginning of April
2020. The report can be found at www.
centaurmedia.com.

A S N LV
PR 1}
We implemented the provisions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 in 2016
and adopted an anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy. Our Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement is published on
our website in March each year at www.
centaurmedia.com.
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Some of our other measures taken at
Wells Street, prior to our move to WeWork,
included:

Foliowing the move to WeWork at Waterloo
we now benefit from WeWork initiatives that
span across three operational programme

Environment and climate
change

30

i B - P
Climate change remains one of the
greatest chalienges of our times and every
company has to play its part in minimising
its environmental footprint. Centaur Media
operates in the media sector, predominantly
in the United Kingdom, and consequently,
whiie Centaur recognises that its business
has an impact on the envirenment, including
through the use of energy and paper, our
impact on the environment is less significant
than that of companies operating in many
other sectars. As we continue to increase
our digital capabilities and products, and
to reduce our reliance on print advertising,
we are reducing our use of consumabie
items such as paper and plastic over time.
The majority of our employees worked out
of a single location at Wells Street, London
untit we moved to WeWork in Waterloo,
Lendon during Novermber and December
2019, We have only one other UK location
in Portsmouth which means that the
Group has been able to take advantage of
consolidating building-related environmental
impacts and benefiting from Group sharing
of iterns such as photocopiers. The Group
also has a small serviced office in New York.

The Group actively seeks to minimise
adverse environmental impacts and to
promote good environmental practices
wherever possible. We increasingly aim
to ensure that our major suppliers are
environmentally responsibie. For example,
our main paper and print supplier holds the
ISO 14001 (envircnmental management)
accreditation and is certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council and Programme for
the Endorserment of Forestry Certification.

We donate used computer eguipment

to Camara Education, which is a social
enterprise dedicated to improving education
in disadvantaged communities across

the world. Donations made by Centaur

in 2019 have benefited schools in Kenya
and Tanzania. Each will impact at least 24
children and the donated equipment will go
on to benefit at least 1,500 children.

‘

use of energy-efficient lighting, including
replacing existing light fittings with
energy efficient LED fight fittings in

the Wells Street building including all
comman parts;

installation of motion sensors in offices
to control lighting;

analysing and adjusting the timing

of boiters and chillers for office air
conditioning to increase energy
efficiency;

stopping the use of non-recyclable cups
and reducing the use of paper hand
towels;

buying paper that is Forest Stewardship
Council {‘FSC' accredited which means
that the paper has been sourced in

an environmentally friendly, socially
responsibie and economically viable
manner;

active engagerment in the recycling of
cans, ting, plastic, glass, cardboard

and paper, including the replacement of
traditional waste bins with recycling bins
throughout the Wells Street building as
part of a centralised recycling system
originally rolled out in 2015, together
with a monthly regort showing the
percentage of waste collected that was
recycled;

use of follow-me printing and recycling
of printer cartridges where possible;

increasing the use of aguecus inks,
which limit the release of volatile arganic
compounds;

use of eco-friendly taxis and courier
vehicles that are less than three years
oid, and use of cyclist couriers, where
possible;

cycle to work scheme and other
measures that facilitate cycling to work
by employees, such as the provision of
showers, changing rooms and lockers,
as well as bike storage facilities at the
Walls Strest building; and

encouraging staff to use public
transport by provision of season ticket
loans.

pillars: energy, materials and health. They
have eradicated single-use plastic from
100% of EMEA sites, reducing waste
disposal and ocean pollution. By influencing
the wider supply chain they prevent more
plastic from entering their buikdings. They
partner with Creator Awards winner
BioBean to recycle four tonnes of coffee
per month, which are turned into burnable
logs. Office recycling bins and increased
waste streams are in 100% of UK buildings.
WeWork look for opportunities to upcycle
their waste streams into new products using
circular design and turn textiles and plastics
into new materials for their spaces. They
have achieved "Zero Waste to Landfil” for
100% of their EU) sites. WeWork ensrgy
initiatives are focussed around global
continuity, growth impact reduction and
innovation making current operations as
energy efficient as possible. WeWork
spaces are designed to promote wellbeing
shnwrasing innovative design for healthier
and wellness-focused work environments,
using a robust indoor environmental quality
sensor network and using healthy and
sustainable cleaning products and methods
in their buildings. They also promote
wellbeing and social impact through regular
community led events. {source: Cperational
sustainability at WeWork EMEA overview
2019)
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We continue to measure our carbon footprint by rmonitoring our energy usage and we are
pleased to confirm that we are compliant with the EU Energy Efficiency Directive ‘Energy
Saving Opportunity Scheme” ('ESOS').

The greerhouse gas {{GHG’) emissions from our operations during the year are set out
below,

PV 2018
. . e Tonnes GO?
Séc;pé 1 (gaé. fuel and car mileage) T 4 72
Scope 2 (electricity and steam) 2 428
Total GHG emissions N 500
Average number of employees I 768
Emissions per employee ; o7

Community

The Group supponis local communities and charitable organisations through direct
fundraising, donation and pro-bone work. During the year, a total of £75,125 was donated
to The Alzheimers Society our chosen charlty partner for 2019. These donations comprised
employee contributions, a Group contribution, and third-party contributions raised through
our events. We used our events to raise meney from third parties including requesting
donations In return for entry for awards and taking collections at the events. In 2018,
£71,443 was donated to Macmillan Cancer Support and £25,713 was donated to The
Connection at St Martin-in-the-Fields. Every year, the Group offers each employee a paid
day off to spend volunteering for the not-for-profit cause or charity of their cheice. Employee
contributions were raised through a range of Company-wide fundraising events including
sporting events and bake sales. We also operate a Give-As-You-Earn scheme through the
payroll and offer employees the option to undertake Volunteer Days.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the
Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

17 March 2020

STRATEGIC REPGRT
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Colin joined Centaur on 1
Septernber 2018 and became
Chair on 30 June 2019, Until
mig-June 2018, Colin was
Finarce Director of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC
(Euromoney), where he worked
in leadership roles for 22 years.
Hg is also an independent
non-exacutive director, and
audit committee chair, at M&GC
Saatchi PLC, and a non-
executive director and trustee
of City Lit., London's leading
adult education college. During
hig time at Euromoney, Colin
contributed 1o its growth to
become a global, multi-brand
information business that

has successfuily transformed
itself from its traditional media
origing into a company that

is more customer-gentric

and subscription-based. He
has extensive M&A expertise
threugh Euromoney’s many
successful transactions. Prior
to joining Euromoney, Colin was
a Director at Price Waterhouse
Europe, where he qualified as a
Chartered Accountant (|CAEW).

Member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees.
Chair of Remuneration
Committea until 5 February
2020.

Swag joined Centaur in July
2016 and has previously

held senior international
general management and
cammercial financial positions
with several blue chip FMCG
companies, including United
Biscuits plc. Guinness

ple and Virgin, where he
operated as a trouble-shooter,
value creator and change
agent, As Group Finance
Director of Biocompatibles
International plc, he co-led the
commercialisation and growth
of the company with the CEQ,
increasing the share price
fourfold in & falling market. Since
then he hag been a C-suite
director of three private aquity
backed businesses in a variety
of sectors with the common
themes of strategy refresh and
turnaround. He has also led

a substantial number of M&A
transactions and mufti-lender
refinancings. Swag qualifisd
as a Chartered Accountant at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and is a Warwick MBA.

Simon joined Centaur on 6
November 2019, He has spent
the past 10 years as CFQO

of BMI Research, a leading
praovider of macroeconomic,
industry and financial market
analysis, which was acquired
by Fitch Group in 2014. During
his time at BM! Research
revenues more than doubled
as the company expanded
internationally with Simon's
support. Prior to this, Simon
was CFO of Newfound, an
AlM-jisted property and leisure
group. Simon began his career
at PricewaterhouseCGoopers
LLP where he gualified as a
Chartered Accountant and
worked in London and Australia.

William joined Centaur in July
2016. William is Chairman

and GEQ of Clear Channel
International. He served as a
norn-exacutive directar of Hays
plc from 2004-2014, has been
a board member of the Donrmar
Warehouse Theatre since

2013 and is an independsnt
non-executive director of Britvic
pic. Wiliam was a Partner and
Leader of European Branding
Practice at McKinsey & Co.

He has previously served in
international leadership roles

at major advertising agencies,
including as European Chairman
and CEOQ of BBDO (Ommicom);
European Chairman of Young
and Rubicam (WPP Group);
Chairman and CEQ of Amimirati
Puris Lintas Narthern Europe
(Interpublic Group); Global
Strategic Planning Director of J.
Waiter Thompson Worldwide;
and CEO of PPGH/UWT
Amsterdam.

Member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees.
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Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Rebecca joined Centaur in
January 2011, She began her
career in media at Reed Elsevier
launching telecom-based
information services across
Europe. She has since worked
across the USA and UK at
Excite@Home, NBC Universal
and Hearst Corporation. In her
current executive consultancy
capacity, Rebecca focuses on
re-aligning organisations using
a data driven, customer-centric
and collaborative operational
approach.

Member of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneraticn
Committees, Rebecca will ratire
from the Board and Committees
on 31 March 2020,

Robert joined Centaur in
January 2010, Robert,

a qualified Chartered
Accountant, was a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
where he was Chairman of the
PwC European Entertainment
and Media Practice for 12 years,
retiring in 2006. Since then

he has been a non-executive
director and chairman of the
audit committee of a number
of public companies.

Chair of the Audit Committee
and member of the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. Robert will retire
from the Boara and Committees
on 31 March 2020.

Chair of the Audit Committee
and member of the
Remuneration Committee.
Robert will ratire from the
Board and Committees on
31 March 2020.

Carol joined Centaur on 5
February 2020. Carotis
currently Group HR Director
at Mace, the international
consultancy and construction
group. She has extensive
remuneration experience at
executive and board level
and has spent over 20 years
in senior HR roles, including
positions at Mitie Group plc,
Nationwide Building Society and
Uoyds Banking Group.

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the
Nomination Committes with
effect from 5 February 2020.
She is also the Non-Executive
Director sponsor of Centaur's
workforce advisory panel known
as DICE.

Leslie-Ann joined Centaur on

1 March 2020. Leslie-Ann

is a Chartered Accountant
and will become Chair of
Centaur's Audit Committee
when Robert Boyle retires from
the Board on 31 March 2020.
Leslie-Ann is an experienced
non-executive director and
chairs the audit committees at
Learning Technologies Group
plc and Induction Healthcare
Group PLC. Sheisalso a
non-executive director of
Bloomsbury Publishing Pic.
Leslie-Ann’s executive roles
have included CFO of the B2B
publisher Metal Bulietin plc
and the online auctioneer Go
Industry plc.

Member of the Audiit,
Nomination and Remuneration
Committees.
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Group Head of HR

Steve is Group Managing
Director of Xeim. He oversees
the Xeim brands comprising
Marketing Week, Festival of
Marketing, Creative Review,
Econsultancy including
Oystercatchers, Influencer
Intelligence and Fashion

& Beauty Manitor, and
MarketMakers including

Really. Prior to this Steve was
responsible for Centaur's
Media and Events portfolios
and Home Interest Division,
Before joining Centaur in 2015
Steve held Managing Director
roles at WGSN, i2i Events,
Emap Communications (now
Ascential) and Emap Consumer
Media (now Bauer), He has
experience of runnhing multi-
media, international businesses
in key sectors across both B28
and consumer markets.

Andy is Managing Director of
The Lawyer. He joined Centaur
in 2017 and has over 20 years’
experience of running 828

and B2C online businesses,
including Managing Director
positions in onling acquisitions
and start-ups at ITV, Trinity
Mirror and Guardian Media
Group. Prior to joining Centaur,
he was Managing Director of
Public Sector at EMAP, part of
Ascential, where he successfully
transformed the market-leading
Heaith Service Journal from
print to digital-cnly, and from
advertising to subscriptions.

At Centaur he has successfully
delivered substantial new digital
products and accelerated
growth in subscriptions. Andy
holds a first-ciass degree from
Oxford and an MBA from iMD
Business School, Switzerland.

Jacquie is the Group Head of
HR and joined the Executive
Committee in January 2020.
Prior to joining Centaur in 2015,
Jacquie worked for Lloyds
Banking Group, where she
undertook a number of senior
HR roles. She also spent five
years working for Lloyd's Retail
Banking Division in Customer
Experience and as Head of
Engagement in the London
2012 Sponsorship Team. Tatent
and performance are critical to
get right in any business and
Jacquie is particularly interested
in the role that diversity, culture
and engagement play in
ensuring that Centaur achieves
to its highest potential.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Centaur Media Pl ('the Company’ or ‘the Group’),
a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales,
present their report on the affairs of the Group and Company
together with the audited Company and consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

There are no significant events since the balance sheet date for
disclosure in the financial statements.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business
information and specialist consultancy to selected professional and
commercial markets within the marketing and legal professions, cur
two sectors. The principal activities of the Company are those of a
holding company.

Business review

The Strategic Report, incorporating the CEQ's Review, on pages

4 to 31 sets cut a summary of the Group strategic objectives,
business model, key performance measures, operating and financial
reviews, future developments, principal risks, S172 statement and
the corporate responsibility statement.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Details of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are included in the
Corporate Responsibility section on page 31.

Research and development activities

The Group invests in systems and website development activities —
see note 11 to the financial staterments for the internally generated
amounts capitalised during the year. The Group does not incur any
significant research costs.

Dividends

A final ordinary dividend under the new dividend policy in respact

of the year to 31 December 2019 of 0.5p per share {2018: 1.5p} is
proposed by the Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at
the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 29 May 2020 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 11 May 2020.
Cn 25 October 2019, Centaur paid a special dividend of 2.0p

per share as a distribution of the proceeds from the divestments
aleng with the interim dividend of 1.5p per share. The Directors are
proposing a final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share in May 2020.
The total ordinary and special dividends paid to sharehclders relating
to the year will therefore be 4.0p per share (2018 3.0p}.

Swagatam Mukerji 80,289
Simon Longfield {appointed 6 Novermber 2019) -
Colin Jones -
William Eccleshare -
Robert Boyle 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800
Carot Hosey (appointed 5§ February 2020) -
Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1 March 2020} -
Neil Johnsen {resigned 30 June 2019) -
Andria Vidler (resigned 30 September 2019) 186,190

1 Or date of resignation if earlier

)

Share capital and substantial shareholdings

DCetails of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

24 to the financial statermnents. As at 31 Decermber 2019, and 17
March 2020 (being the last practicable date prior tc publication),
notifications of interests at or above 3% in the issued voting share
capital of the Company had been received from the following:

31 December

2019

Aberforth Partners LLPT 24.86% 24.86%
Artemis Investment Management

LLP* 9.62% 9.52%
Chelverton Asset Managementtt 8.10% 8.10%
Quaerc Capital (Argos Funds)t 7.82% 7.82%
Gresham House Asset

Management 5.94% 8.09%
Graham Sherrentt 5.73% 5.73%
Fidelity Internationaitt 4,78% 5.26%
Aberdeen Standard Investmentstt 4.21% 4.27%
Harwood Capitaitt 3.46% 3.46%
Herald Investment Managementtt 3.16% 3.16%

1 This includes Wellcome Trust Limited which is managed by Aberforth Partners LLP

©n 22 August 2018 Artemnis announced that its positions in the Company had been
historically over-reported. The correct percentage of voting rights attached to their
shareholding 1s 9.52% rather than 14.18%

1t Figures derived from share register analysis

At 17 March 2020 and 31 December 2019, 6,964,613 (31
December 2018: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in
treasury, representing 4.60% (2018: 4.60%; of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2019, there were 800,000 (2018: 800,000) deferred
shares of 10p each which carry restricted voting rights and carry no
right o receive a dividend paymant.

Directors and Directors’ interests

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are detailed below. All Directors served from 1 January
2019 unless otherwise stated. The Board has decided to continue
observing best practice by offering themselves for re-etection annually.

56,312 136,601 137,754
34,499 34,499 34,499
120,000 120,000 120,000
- 117,037 117,037

- 14,800 14,800
100,000 100,000 N/A
4,348 189,538 N/A

The Directors’ interests in long-term incentive plans are disclosed in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 45 to 61.
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Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions

By virtue of article 217 of the Articles of
Association of the Gompany, a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision {within

the meaning given by section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006) is in force at the date
of this report in respect of each Director of
the Company and was in force throughout
the year.

The Company has purchased appropriate
insurance in respect of legal actions against
Directors and officers.

Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made donations
of £75,125 to The Aizheimers Society its
nominated charity for 2018, which included
third party donations collected at events
{2018: £71,443 donation to Macmillan
Cancer Support and £25,713 to The
Connection at St Martin-in-the-Fields).

No pelitical donations were made during the
year (2018 £nil).

Employment policy

The Group is an egual opportunities
employer and appoints employees without
reference to age, sex, ethnic group or
religious beliefs.

It is the Group’s policy to give full
consideration to suitable applications

for employment by disabled perscns.
Opportunities also exist for employees of the
Group who become disabled to continue in
their employment or to be trained far other
positions in the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee
involvement at all levels, both through
monthly employee briefings and by direct
access to managers and the Executive
Commiittee. In 2019 a workforce advisory
panel known as DICE was set up and more
details can be found in the Strategic Report
on page 11. In addition, the Share Incentive
Plan as described in note 25 encourages
employees’ participation in the Group’s
performance.

All employees are regularly briefed on the
financial and economic factors affecting the
Group's performance and new initiatives
through monthily town hall meetings and
management cascade communication.

Significant agreements

The Group’s bank facility agreement is a
significant agreement that is terminable
on a change of control of the Company.

In addition, awards under certain of the
leng-term incentive plans, details of which
are set out in note 25, will vest or may be
exchanged for awards of a purchaser’s
shares upon a change of control of the
Company.

Conflicts of interest

Following the implementation of legislation
on conflicts of interest, refiected in the
changes to the Company’s Articles of
Association in 2008, procedures are in place
to deal with such conflicts and they have
operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation te the financial
risk management and use of financial
instruments by the Group is presented in
note 28 to the financial statements.

Information required under the
listing rules

In accordance with the UK Financial
Conduct Authority's Listing Rules (LR
9.8.4C), the information to be included in
the Annual Report and financial statements,
where applicable, under LR 9.8.4, is set out
in this Directors’ Report, with the exception
of details of transactions with shareholders
which is set out on page £8,

Going concern

The Directors have carefully considered the
Group’s net current liability pasition, have
assessed the Company's ability to continue
trading, and have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operaticnal existence for

at least twelve months from the date of
this report and for the foreseeable future.
This includes consideration of downside
scenarios relating to the current immediate
risk from coronavirus. See note 1(a) of the
financial statements for further details and
page 26 for our viability statement.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company
are shown in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

The Directors’ Staternent on Corporate
Governance in respect of the Group’s
compliance with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code is set
out on page 37.

Auditor and disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors confirm that, so far as the
Diractors are aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware, and the Directors
have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Directors in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

This confimation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions
of 8418 of the Companies Act 2006,

The Directors’ responsibility statement is
included on page 62.

Approved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of tho Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

17 March 2020



www.centaurmedia.com

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to high standards
of corporate governance and supports the
UK Corporate Governance Code published
in 2018. The Board sets out its report below
on how the Group has applied the principles
of, and complied with, the UK Corporate
Governance Code during the year.

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the provisions
set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code throughaout the year. The Board is
committed to maintaining a structure which
establishes a sound corporate governance
framework on behalf of the Company's
shareholders. Throughout the year, the
Group has complied with all the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
except for those set out below.

In contravention of Provision 32 of the
Code, Colin Jones remained as Chair of
the Remuneration Committee when he was
appointed as Chair of the Company on 30
June 2019 to ensure continuity following
Neil Johnson's resignation and whilst the
recruitment process for new non-executive
directors took place. Carol Hosey was
appointed as Chair of the Remuneration
Commiltee, in place of Colin Jones, when
she joined the Board on 5 February 2020.

The Board

As at 31 December 2019, the Board had
four Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors {Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer). On 5 Febrary 2020,
Carcl Hosey was appointed to the Board as
an independent Non-Executive Director and
as Chair of the Remuneration Committee.
On 1 March 2020, Leslie-Ann Reed was
appuointed to the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and will become
Chair of the Audit Committee when Robert
Boyle retires on 31 March 2020. In addition,
Rebecca Miskin will also retire from the
Board on 31 March 2020. Biographies for
each currently serving Director are shown

on pages 32 to 33. The Board endeavours
to maintain diversity in its composition

with respect to gender, skills, knowledge
and length of service in order to ensure
the balanced and effective running of the
Company. Colin Jones is Chair of the Board
and was independent on appointment, He
leads the Board and ensurss that bath
Executive and Nen-Executive Directors
make available sufficient time to carry out
their duties in an appropriate manner, that
all Directors receive sufficient financial and
operaticnal information, and that there is
proper debate at Board meetings.

The Board is responsible for the leadership
of the Company and the Group, and in
discharging that responsibility it makes
decisions objectively and in the best
interests of the Group and its stakehoiders.
The section 172 Statement is set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 27 to 28. The
Board sets the vision, cuiture, values and
standards for the Group. The balance of the
Board, together with the advice sought from
the Executive Committee members and the
Company's external advisors, ensures that
no one individual has unfettered powers

of decision. The Board delegates day-to-
day responsibility for the running of the
Company to the Chief Executive.

The Chair is responsible for the effective
performance of the Board through a
schedule of matters reserved for approval
by the Board {comprising issues considered
most significant to the Group in terms of
financial impact and risk} and control of the
Board agenda. The Chair conducts Board
and shareholder meetings and ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed. The
Chief Executive, supported by the Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Committee,
is responsible to the Board for running

the business and implermenting strategy.
The Board reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors and the Group against
agreed budgets and against the Group's
objectives, strategy and values.

The Senior independent Director is William
Eccleshare, who is also a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company Secretary is Helen Silver.

The Company Secretary assists the Chair

in ensuring there is efficient communication
between all directors, the committees

and senior management, as well as the
professional development of Directors,
Independent advisors including lawyers,
remuneration specialists and external
auditors are available to advise the Non-
Executive Directars at the Company’s
expensea. All of the Non-Executive Directors
are independent, and the Chair was
independent on appointment. Cormmittee
meetings are held independently of Board
meetings and invitations to attend are
extended by the Committee Chair to

other Directors, the Group’s advisers and
management as appropriate. The terms

of reference of the Audit Committee,

the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, including their
roles and the authority delegated to them by
the Board, are available on request from the
Company Secretary and will be available at
the AGM.
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* DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board meetings
During the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows:

Colin Jones * Chair - Member Chair
Wiliam Eccleshare Senior Independent Director - Member Member
Rebecca Miskin Non-Executive Director Member Mamber Member
Robert Boyle ? Non-Executive Director Chair Member Member
Carol Hosey Non-Executive Director - Chair Member
Lesiie-Ann Reed 2 Non-Executive Director Member Member Member
Swagatam Mukerji Chief Executive - - -

Simon Longfield Chief Financial Officer - - -

(appointed 6 November 2019)

Andria Vidler Chief Executive - - -
(resigned 30 September 2019)

Nail Johnson Chair - - -
{resigned 30 June 2019)

! Carol Hosey was appointed as Chair of the Remunerahon Committee and Golin Jones stepped down as Charr of the Remuneration Committes on 5 February 2020.
Colin Jones replaced Neil Johnson as Chair of the Board on 30 June 2019.

? Leslie-Ann Reed was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2020, She will replace Robert Boyle as Chair of the Audit Committes when he retires on 31 March 2020

Ihe number of scheduled tull Board meetings and committee mestings during the year along with attendance of Directors was as follows:

Number of scheduled 7 5 4 3
meetings held:
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Meetings eligible to Meetings eligible to Meetings gligible to Meetings eligible to
attended attend attended attend attended attenc attended attend
Colin Jones 7 7 3 3 4 4 3 3
William Eccleshare? 6 7 - - 4 4 2 3
Rebecca Miskin 7 7 5 5 4 4 3 3
Robert Boyle 7 7 5 5 4 4 3 3
Swagatam Mukeriji 7 7 - - - - - -
Simon Longfield (appointed 6
November 2019) 1 1 - - - - - -
Neil Johnson {resigned 30 June
2019 3 3 - - - - 1 1
Andria Vidler {resigned 30
September 2019) 5 5 - - - - - -

Carol Hosey {appointed 5
February 2020)

Leslie-Ann Reed (appeinted 1
March 2020}

1 7 additional unscheduled Board meetings were held mainly refating 1o the divestments. 3 additional Remuneraticn Committea meetings and 1 additional Nomination Committee
meeting were also held.

2 William Eccleshare was due to dial into two meetings but was unablé to do so due to technical issueas.
a Andria Vidler's married surname is Gibib and she appears as Andria Gibb on some records kept by Companies House
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If a Birector is unable to attend a mesting
he or she is provided with the same level
of information as the other Directors in
advance of the meeting and given the
opportunity to express views, which will
then be shared at the mesting.

In addition to the key items identified for
discussion by the Committees above, the
Board discussed the following matters at
the Board mestings during the year:

Review of financial performance against
budget and prior year;

Review of Group strategy leading to
the divestment of various parts of the
business;

Review of dividend policy and
payments;

Review and approval of budgets;

Review of Group key performance
indicators;

Approval of divestments;

Approval of financial reports and
communication to shareholders and
investors; and

Approval of the Group's internal control
policy, including a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks and
corporate governance environment.

Board assessment and Directors’
performance evaluation

The Board undertakes a formal evaluation
of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors.
Individual evaiuation aims to show whether
each Director continues to contribute
effectively and to demonstrate commitment
o the role (including commitment of time
for Board and committee meetings and
other duties). Evaluations are undertaken
annually by self-assessment and the
Chair's performance is also evaluated by
the other Non-Executive Directors at a
separate meeting for this purpose each
year. in addition, the Chief Executive is
subject to an annual performance review
with the Chair. New Directors receive an
induction proegramme and all the Directors
are encouraged to undertake continuous
professional development programmes as
appropriate. The Group maintains insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its
Directors.

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day
running of the Company to the Executive
Directors, who in turn share the operationai
running of the Group with the Executive
Committee. Throughout the year, the
Executive Committee was the primary body
implementing operational management
across the Group. The role of the Executive
Committee is to review:

Financial performance, the budget and
forecasts;

Human capital managerment and
resource allocation including capital
expenditure;

Operational efficiency and
developments (including Group 1T,
procurement and facilities);

Product development;

Market development;

Business continuity planning;

Internal and external communications;

Business transformation and change
management; and

Acquisition and disposal plans.

The bicgraphies of the members of the
Executive Committee are set out on
page 34.

Relations with shareholders

The Company encourages meaningful
dialegue with all stakeholders. Shareholder
communication centres primarity on the
publication of annual reports, periodic
press releases, investor presentations

and trading updates. The Chairman

and Executive Directors are available for
discussions with shareholders throughout
the year and particularly around the ime
of results announcements. The Senior
Independent Director is also available
should any shareholder wish to draw any
matters 1o his attention. The Directors

are available for comment throughout

the year and at all General Meetings of

the Company. Centaur Media values the
views of its shareholders and recognises
their interest in the Company's strategy
and performance, Board membership and
quality of management. The Group therefore
has an active programme to meet and make
presentations to its current and potential
shareholders to discuss its objectives.
More details on engagernent with our
stakeholders are set out in the section

172 Statement in the Strategic Report on
pages 27 1o 28. Investors are encouraged
to attend the AGM and to participate

in proceedings formally or sharing their
views with Board members informally

after the meeting. The Chairs of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees
are avallable to answer questions. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each issue 50
that they can be given proper consideration
and there is a resolution to approve the
annual report and financial statements.

The Company counts all proxy votes and
indicates the level of proxies lodged on
each resoclution, after it has been voted on
by a show of hands. All shareholders can
gain access to the annual reports, trading
updates, anncuncements, press releases
and other informaticn about the Company
through the Company's website,
www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the business
are identified and assessed, and appropriate
controls and systems implemented to
ensure that the risk is managed. The
Group's risk register is kept by the Company
Becretary with the input from the Executive
Committee and Head of Legal and is
reviewed by the Audit Committee regularly
with appropriate mitigation actions also
being reported to and cverseen by the
Committee.

Principal and emerging risks

The principal and emerging risks facing the
Group, with associated mitigating controls,
are detailed on pages 22 to 26 within the
Strategic Report.

Ethics

The Group carries out its business in a

fair, honest and open manner, ensuring

that it complies with all relevant laws and
regulations. The Company has specific
policies on fraud, director conflict, bribery,
whistleblowing and slavery and human
trafficking, which are widely distributed and
compliance with these policies is monitored.
The HR team ensures that new job
opportunities are made avaitable to existing
employees as well as to outside applicants
and that all employees are able to benefit
from training, career development and
promotion opportunities where appropriate.
The recruitment of new personnel is made
without prejudice. and the Group believes in
equal opportunity and encourages diversity.
The analysis of the Group's workforce and
Board by gender is set out in the Corporate
Responsibility Report on page 29.
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"DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Through all our interactions with cur
customers and partners we ensure that we
treat them fairly and openly while abiding

by the terms of contracts and relevant law.
Equally, we treat our suppliers fairly, and

do not exploit them or their employees,
including the objective of paying all suppliers
within the agreed payment terms.

Monitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group's system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are regutarly monitored by the Audit
Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
Cornmittes in this financial year can be
found in the Audit Committee Report on
pages 41 to 43.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclasure in respect of the greenhouse
gas emissions of the Group that are
attributable to human activity in tonnes of
carbon dioxide is set out in the Corporate
Reaponsibility Report on page 31.

Fraud

While the Group cannot guarantee to
prevent fraud, an internal control framework
is in place to reduce the likelihood of fraud
arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy
is available to employees on the Company’s
intranat, should any employee becoms
aware of any incidence of fraud.

Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary Directors are required
to notify their employing company of all
directorships they hold. Annuat conflict

of interest disclosures require them to
disclose such directorships or other
relationships, which they or a person
connected to them may hold. These are
reviewed by the Board 1o assess the impact
on the Gompany and whether it would
impair the Group's objectives.

Bribery Act 2010

In respanse to the Bribery Act 2010, the
Board performed a risk assessment across
the Group and formalised its policy to
prevent bribery. The Board has in place
processes to prevent corruption or unethical
behaviour, The policy explains what is
considered a bribe or facilitation payment,
which are prohibited, and provides guidance
over the levels of gifts, entertainment and
hospitality that are considered reasonable.
Training is mandatory for all employees.
During 2019, an online training programme
was made available to all employees. The
Group's policy is communicated to all
appropriate third parties. The maore rigorous
processes around declaring Directors’
interests and identifying potential confiicts
have improved the regular monitoring of the
Group’s policy.

Whistleblowing

The Company is committed to the highest
standards of integrity and honesty. Along
with other policies which encourage this
behaviour, the Group's whistleblowing
policy is available to employees on the
Company's intranet. This policy allows all
employees to disclose openly, in confidence
or anonymously, any concerns they may
have about possible improper practices,

in financial or other matters. An escalation
process has been communicated to
employees. Any matters raised will be
investigated and resolved. The Audit
Committee will be notified of any issues
raised through this process and appropriate
action taken. However, no incidents were
noted during the year.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Company is committed to implementing
and enforcing effective systems and
controls to ensure modern slavery is not
taking place anywhere in its business or in
any of its supply chains. The Company's
slavery and huran trafficking statement

for the purposes of section 54 of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 is available on the
Company's website, www.centaurmedia.
com. The Group has in place an anti-slavery
and human trafficking policy which has
been made available to employees on the
Company’s intranet and is notified to all new
joiners. Training has been provided to key
employees and the policy is communicated
ta suppliers and ather third parties where
appropriate.

Capital structure

Information on the share capital structure
is included in the Directors’ Report on
page 35.

Approved by the Board of Directors and
signed hy order of the Board.

Company Secretary
17 March 2020
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the
Audit Committee (‘the Committee’) for
the year ended 31 December 2019, my
last as Audit Chair. This report details the
Audit Committee’s responsibilities and
key activities over the period. The role of
the Committee is to protect the interests
of sharsholders regarding the integrity

of financial information published by the
Group and to oversee the effectiveness
of the external audit. It does this through
reviewing and reporting to the Board on
the Group's financial reporting, internal
controls and risk management processes
and the performance, independence
and effectiveness of the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC').

Committee composition

During the year, the Committee comprised
Non-Executive Directors, Robert Bayle
{Chair}, Rebecca Miskin, and Colin Jones
until he became Chair of the Board on 30
June 2019. Their bicgraphies are shown
on pages 32 to 33. The membership of the
Committee is balanced and is considered
to contain the appropriate combination of
recent, relevant financial experience through
the Chair, as well as competence relevant
to the sector. On 5 Febiruary 2020, it was
announced that | will be retiring frorm the
Beard on 31 March 2020 after more than
10 years of service and will be replaced by
Leslie-Ann Reed, who will become the new
Chair of the Committee. | wish her every
success.

The Executive Directors, representatives

of the external auditor and other Group
executives regularly attend meetings at the
invitation of the Committee. The Committee
met five times during the vear, with all
members attending. Mestings are held
throughout the year and timed to align with
the overall financial reporting timetable. At
least cnce during the year, the Committee
meets separately with the external auditor
and with managernent, and as Chaiman |
am in regular direct contact with the external
auditors and with the Chief Financial Officer.

Roles and responsibilities

The main roles and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are to:

Monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any public
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, reviewing (and
approving) significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

Review and monitor the external
auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit
process, taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements;

Review and assess the Annual Report
in order to determine that it can advise
the Board that, taken as a whole,

the Annual Report is fair, balanced

and understandable, and provides
shareholders with the information they
need to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business model and
strategy as required by provision 27 of
the UK Corporate Governance Code;

Make recommendations to the Board in
refation to the appointment and terms of
engagement of the external auditor and
o review and approve levels of audit
and non-audit remuneration;

Develop and implement policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal financial control and risk
management systems;

Review the Group's financial and
operational policies and procedures
to ensure they remain effective and
relevant;

Oversee the whistleblowing
arrangements of the Group and to
ensure they are operating effectively;
and

Report to the Board on how it has
discharged its responsibilities.

Financial statements

During the year and up until the date of this
report, the Audit Committee undertook the
following activities 1o ensure the integrity of
the Group's financial statements and formal
announcements:

»  Regularly met with management and
the Chief Financial Officer to discuss
the results and performance of the
business;

Received reports from management
on the internal controls covering the
financial reporting process;

Reviewed and agreed the external
auditor's strategy in advance of their
audit for the year,

Reviewed compliance with requirements
under the UK Corporate Governance
Code, and in particular its impact

on the Strategic Report and Viability
Statement;

Discussed the report received from the
axternal auditor ragarding their audit in
respect of the prior year, which included
comments on significant financial
reporting judgements and their findings
on internal controls;

Met with other management personnel;

Reviewed and discussed with
management and the Chief Financial
Officer each financial reporting
announcement made by the Group; and

Reviewed compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’}).

The most significant financial reporting
judgements considered by the Audit
Committee and discussed with the external
auditor during the year were as follows:

Carrying value of goodwill,
intangible assets and investments

The Audit Committee has reviewed
management's assessment of the
recoverability of the Group's goodwill

and intangible assets and whether there
is a need for any resulting impairment.
The recoverable amount of goodwill has
been determined through value-in-use
calculations of each cash-generating unit
('CGU’) based on Board approved forecasts
for the first three years of the value-in-use
calculation and applying a terminal growth
rate of 2.5%.

Management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the Group's goodwil and
intangible assets resulted in no impairment
being recognised. At 31 December 2019
the Committee reviewed management's
assessment of the recoverability of the
Group's goodwill and intangible assets. The
Committee has paid particular attention

to the judgements and assumptions used
to forecast cash flows, particularly around
revenue and adjusted EBITDA growth
rates. The Committee was satisfied that
the forecasts reflect the CGUSs’ historical
budgeting performance and that reasonable
sengitivities were performed, that the value-
in-use calculation reflects management’s
best estimate, and that the booking of

no impairment against any segment

is appropriate. As a result, the Audit
Committee was satisfied with the carrying
value of goodwill and intangible assets in
the Group balance sheet.
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Following the disposal of Centaur Travel and
Meetings Ltd, Centaur Human Resources
Ltd, Centaur Engineering Ltd and Centaur
Financial Platforms Ltd in 2019, a detailed
review of the carrying value of Centaur
Media plc’s investments in its subsidiaries
was performed. This identified a reduiction
in carrying value of £35.7m in the parent
company books.

Further details on goodwill and the
impairment testing are included in note 10
to the financial staternents.

Going concern and viability

The Audit Committee received a report
setting out the going concern review
undertaken by management which forms
the basis of the Board's going concern
conclusion. Buring the year, the Group
completed a major divestment programme
which reduces the short-term earnings
generated by operations. The Group

has consequently reported an adjusted
operating loss for 2019. The Committee has
therefore carefulty considered the capability
of the Group to generate positive operating
cash which is dependent on the Group
making targeted cost savings in 2019 and
2020, combined with profitable revenue
growth.

Following the divestment programme, the
Group has a strong balance shest with over
£9m cash at the balance sheet date and

a small net current liability. The Committes
has reviewed forecasts to cover the twelve
months from signature date with various
downside scenarios explored, including
scenarios specifically related to the current
coronavirus. The Committee has concluded
that the adoption of the going concern basis
is appropriate.

In addition, the Commitiee has assessed
the statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group and of the Group's
principal risks to viability, including reviewing
the long-term financial projections for the
period over which the statement is made,
and reviewing gualitative and quantitative
analysis and scenario testing prepared by
management. The Committee concluded
that the statement in retation to the longer-
term viability of the Group in the Strategic
Report is appropriate,

Adjusting items
The Audit Committee has challenged

management strongly over recent financial
reporting pericds with regard to the

presentation of exceptional items and
other alternative performance measures.
Adjusting items disclosed in the year include
signfficant exceptional costs arising in
relation to restructuring activities and the
divestment programme. The Committes
notes that the restructuring activities (both
staff-related and corporate) arise from
specific change programmes during the
year, and that they are material and could
therefore distort the user's view of the
Group's results. The Committee is satisfied
that it is appropriate to present these
items as adjusting items on the basis that
they assist the user in assessing the core
operating performance of the Group.

The Committee assesses the
appropriateness of all alternative
performance measures disciosed as
adjusting and the impact these have on the
presentation of the Group's results and is
satisfied that they do not inappropriately
replace or obscure IFRS measures.

Further details on adjusting items are
included in notes 1(b) and 4 to the financial
statements.

Completion of Divestment
Programme

In October 2018, the Group announced
that it would be exploring the sale of certain
businesses. In 2019, the Group completed
the sales of our financial, engineering,
human resources and travel and meetings
business units. The Committee is satisfied
that the accounting for the disposals,

the classification as these business as
discontinued under IFRS 5, and the
treatment of the applicable transiticnal
services arrangements are fair and
appropriate. The Group also disposed of
Venture Business Research Limited. This
business has been defined as outside of the
scope of IFRS 5 as it does not represent

a significant separate line of business

or geographical area of operations. The
Committee is satisfied that this treatment is
fair and appropriate.

Other areas of judgement discussed with
the external auditor were as follows:

New accounting standards

IFRS 16 has besn adopted for the current
reporting period. An impact assessment
was performed in 2018 which indicated
that the operating lease arrangements, for
properties from which the Group operated,
be treated as finance leases from the

effective date. Theretore, a right-of-use
asset of £2.3m and a related lease liability
of £3.3m were recognised and recorded
at 1 January 2019.

For further details of IFR3 18, please see
note 1 and 20 to the financial statements.

Risk management

The Group’s management is responsible
for the identification, assessment and
management of risk, as well as for designing
and operating the systemn of internal control
as set out in the Strategic Report on pages
4 to 31, The Committes has assessed
management’s identification of risk and
concluded that appropriate mitigating
actions are being taken. The auditor has
also detailed certain risks in their report
and set out the work performed to satisfy
themselves that these have been properly
reflected in the financtal statements.

The Committee has worked closely

with management and received detailed
information to assess the effectiveness

of internal financial control and risk
assessment and management systems, and
report on them to the Board (which retains
ultimate responsibility}. Details of financial
risks are set out in note 28,

Having monitored the Group's risk
management and internal control system,
and having reviewed the effectiveness

of material contrals, including financial,
operational and compliance controis, the
Committee confirms on behalf of the Board
that it has not identified any significant
control failings or weaknesses at any time
during the year and to the date of this
report.

Risk of fraud

The Committee considered the risk of
fraudulent financial reporting in the business,
and through its review of the effectiveness
of internal controls and reporting from
management, has concluded that adequate
controls were in place during the year.

Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the Group’s
whistleblowing policy and is satisfied that
this has met FCA rules and good standards
of corporate governance. Further details of
the whistleblowing policy are set out within
the Directors' Statement on Corporate
Governance on page 40.
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Internal audit

The Committee considered whether it was
appropriate to appoint internal auditors
and concluded that this is not currently
required given the size of the business, its
relatively centralised operations and the
risks identified together with the mitigating
controls.

External audit

The Group's external auditor is
PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP. The
Committee monitors the external audit
process to ensure high standards of quality
and effectiveness. This was assessed
throughout the year using a number of
measures, including:

Reviewing the quality and scope of
planning of the audit and the level of
fees;

Monitoring the independence ang
transparency of the audit; and

Obtaining feedback from management
and the Directors on the quality

of the audit team, their business
understanding and audil approach, and
approving reappointment.

PwC have been the Company's external
auditor since its incorporation in 2004.

The appointment was subject to competitive
tender in 20186.

The Audit Committee has considered the
independence and cbjectivity of the external
auditor through a careful review of their
terms of engagement, scope of work and
level of fees {which are shown in note 3

to the financial statements). This included
reviewing the nature and extent of non-audit
services supplied by the external auditor to
Centaur, seeking to balance objectivity and
value for money.

The external auditor is excluded from
providing any non-audit services that
individually, or in aggregate, may impair the
independence of the auditor. Pricr approval
from the Audit Committee is required for any
permitted audit related or other services in
accordance with the reguiations.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP provided ng services to the Group other
than audit and audit-related {interim review}
services.

The external auditor's report to the Directors
and the Audit Committee alsoe confirmed
their independence in accordance with
auditing standards and the Committee

concurred. Should non-audit services
be required in the forthcoming year, we
are likely to use suppliers other than
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Self-assessment

During the period the Audit Committee
performed a formal, questionnaire based,
self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee with satisfactory resuits,

Report to the Board

The Beard has requested the Committee
to confirm that in its opinion the Board

can make the required statement that the
Annual Report taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandakle and provides
the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy.
The Committee has given this confirmation
on the basis of its review of the whole
Annual Report, underpinned by involvement
in the planning for its preparation, review

of the processes to ensure the accuracy of
factual content and by assurances from the
Remuneration Committee.

Independent auditor

A resolution is to ke proposed at the Annual
General Meeting for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of
the Company.

Chair of the Audit Commitiee
17 March 2020
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the
Normination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2019. This report details

the Committee’s ongoing responsibilities
and key activities over the period. The
Committee comprised of myself, William
Eccleshare, Robert Boyle and Rebecca
Miskin, ensuring that there is a majority of
independent Non-Executive Directors on the
Committee.

Nomination Committee
Responsibilities

The Committee’s key responsibilities
include:

Reviewing the Board’s structure, size
and composition;

Reviewing the composition of Board
Commiittees;

Defining the role and competencies
required for appointments to the Board;

Identifying, nominating and reviewing
candidates for appointment to the
Board;

Putting in place plans for succession
for the Chairman and other members of
the Board, the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer; and

Reviewing the leadership needs of the
organisation, including Executive and
Non-Executive Directors as well as
senior management.

The appointment of Direclors is a

matter for the Board, which considers
recommendations of the Nomination
Committee, The Cornmittee is responsible
for ensuring that the Board and the Board
Committees are properly constituted and
balanced in terms of skills, experience and
diversity. Qur policy on Board diversity is set
out in the Directors’ Repont above and for
the majority of the year we had two female
Board members, representing one-third

of the Board. Following the year end, we
appointed Carcl Hosey and Leslie-Ann
Reed as Non-Executive Directors to replace
Robert Boyie and Rebecca Miskin who
retire on 31 March 2020. Femnale Board
members represent one-third of the Board
from 1 April 2020. Details of diversity/gender
in the Company are set out in the Corporate
Responsibility Statement on page 29.

Annual Report and Financiat Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Activities during the year

During 2019, the primary focus of the
Committee was the changes 1o the
Executive management team and the
appointment of two new independent Non-
Executive Directors in preparation for the
retiremenits from the Board of Robert Boyle
and Rebecca Miskin. For all appointments
the Commiittee followed a rigarous process
that was approved by the Board.

It was agreed with Andria Vidier that she
would step down as CEO in September
2019. Following a review of patential internal
and external candidates, the Committee
recommended to the Board that Swagatam
Mukerji be appointed as CEO with effect
from 4 September 2019 as he had played
an important role in Centaur’s transformation
and had a comprehensive understanding of
the Group which would be of great benefit

in ensuring continuity and delivering value to
sharsholders.

Swag retained overall responsibility for

the finance function while the Committee
searched for a new CFO. The search

was undertaken by Equity FD, and a
number of suitably qualified candidates
waere considered. Following interviews

with members of the Board and Executive
Committee, the preferred candidate was
Simon Longfield who was recommended
to the Board and joined the Company on 6
November 2019, Simon'’s biography can be
found on page 32.

It was a key component of our specification
that new non-executive members of the
Board bring a similar level of expertise and
experience to replace Robert and Rebecca.
Due to its wide network of contacts, the
Committee was able to identify several
potential candidates without the use of

an external search consultancy or open
advertising. Following a short list and
interview exercise, the appointrments

of Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed

were recommended to the Board by

the Committee. A reputed independent
executive search consultant, Inzito,
undertook the referencing process.

Carol was confirmed as a Non-Executive
Director, Chair of the Rernuneration
Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 5 February
2020. Garol is currently Group HR Director
at Mace, the international consultancy and
construction group. 8he has extensive
remuneration experience at executive and
board level and has spent over 20 years in
senior HR roles, including positions at Mitie
Group ple, Nationwide Building Society and
Lloyds Banking Group.Carol's experience
also means she is well placed to become
the sponsor of the workferce advisory
panel, DICE.

Leslie-Ann Reed was confirmed as a
Non-Executive director and a member of
the Audit, Rermuneration and Nomination
Committees with effect from 1 March
2020, She will become Chair of the Audit
Committee when Robert Boyle retires on
31 March 2020,

Leslie-Ann is an experienced non-executive
director and chairs the audit committees

at Learning Technologies Group plc and
Induction Healthcare Group PLC. She is
also a non-executive director and member
of the audit and remuneration committees
of Bloomsbury Publishing Plc. Leslie-Ann's
executive roles have included GFO of the
B2B publisher Metal Bulletin plc and the
online auctioneer Go industry plc.
Following the disposals, the Committee has
determined that a priority for 2020 will be
to review enhanced succession planning to
support and develop a diverse pipeline of
talent across the Group.

Chair of the Nemination Committee
17 March 2020
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- REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Directors” Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2019,
This is my first report as Chair of Centaur's
Remuneration Cornmittee since my
appointment on 5 February 2020,

This report Is In three parts: {i) this

Annual Staterment; (i) the Directors'
Remuneration Policy section, which sets
out the Remuneration Policy approved

by shareholders at the AGM held on 17
May 2019; and {ii) the Annual Report on
Remuneration.,

2019 has been a year of transformation for
Centaur with the strategic objectives set

at the start of the year largely achieved:

the divestment of legacy businesses, the
restructuring of the central functions, and
the creation of a much simpler business
focused on two sectors: the marketing and
legal professicns. Rernuneration for 2020
will be aligned with the new MAP22 strategy
introduced towards the end of 2019.

Neim

Excellence in marketing

THE LAWYER

Committee membership and work
of the Committee during the year

During the year, Centaur's Rermuneration
Gommittee comprised: Colin Jones (Chair
until & February 2020 when Carol Hosey
joined the Board and became Chair of the
Gommittes), Rebecca Miskin, Raobert Boyle
and Williarm Eccleshare.

The Committee had four scheduled
meetings during 2019 and met a further
three times. The main Committee activities
during the year {full details of which are set
out in the relevant sections of this report)
included:

Agreeing executive director base salary
levels from 1 April 2019;

Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2018 annual bonus;
Agresing the performance against the
targets for the 2016 LTIP awards which
lapsed in 2019;

Obtaining shareholder approval for the
new Directors' Rermuneration Policy and
2018 Incentive Plan (‘2019 IP?)

Setiing the performance targets for the
2018 1P;

Agreeing the basis for vesting the 2017
LTIP awards;

Agreeing the award levels and
performance tests for the 2019 LTIP
awards;

Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2019 IP;

Reviewing the Comparny's share dilution
capacity for LTIP awards;

Reviewing and setting remuneration for
the Directors and senior management;

Reviewing workforce remuneration and
alignment of workforce incentives and
rewards;

Reviewing gender pay numbers and
disclosures and the CEQ Pay Ratic
requirements; and

«  Agreeing the cessatiocn agreement and
termination payments for Andria Vidler.

In addition, the Committee has considered
how the Policy and practices are consistent
with the six factors set out in Provision 40 of
the new UK Corporate Governance Code:

Qur Policy (approved by shareholders
in 2019) is understood by our senior
executive team and has been clearly
articulated to our shareholders and
representative bodies (both on an
ongoing basis and when changes are
proposed).

The Committee is mindful of the

need to avoid overly compiex
remuneration structures which can be
misunderstood and deliver unintended
outcomes. Therefare, a key objective
of the Committes is to ensure that

our executive remuneration paolicies
and practices are straightforward to
communicate and operate.

Qur Policy has been designed to
ensure that inappropriate risk-taking is
discouraged and will not be rewarded
via: {i} the balanced use of annual and
long-term pay with a blend of financial,
non-financial and shareholder return
targets; (i) the significant role played
by equity in our incentive plans; and (jii)
malus/clawback provisions.

Qur incentive plans are subject to
individual caps, and our share plans
are subject to market standard dilution
limits.

There is a clear link between individual
awards, delivery of strategy and
long-term performance. In addition,
the significant role played by
incentive/‘at-risk’ pay, together with
the structure of the executive directors’
service contracts, ensures that pocr
performance is not rewarded.

[ERT A I S

Qur executive pay policies are fully
aligned to our culture through the use of
metrics in our incentive plans,
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Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy in 2019

The Committee implemented the
Remuneration Policy in 2019 as follows:

Base salary levels were increased by
2% from 1 April 2018 in line with general
workforce increase;

Swagatam Mukerji's base salary was set
at £320,000 following his promotion to
CEC on 4 Septernber 2019 (previous
CEQC salary £380,744). Simon Longfiedd
joined as CFO on a salary of £175,000
on & Novernber 2018 (previous CFO
salary £260,100};

There were no changes to pension or
berefit provisions, other than aligning
Simon Longfield’s pension with the
workforce from appointment;

The Committee operated the 2019

IP during the year (as approved by
shareholders at the 2012 AGMY. The
performance targets under the 2019 IP
were based on maximising shareholder
value from (j) divestrments of non-core
assets, (i} restructuring the central
functions and reducing overhead costs,
and {iii) achieving profit targets for the
new Xeim business. After reviewing
performance against these targets, the
Committee approved awards equating

0 63% of the maximum for Andria Vidler
and 70% of the maximum for Swagatam
Mukerii;

The Committee agreed to the 2017 LTIP
vesting six months early on the basis
that the Group had been significantly
restructured by the half year, and the
onginal performance tests were no longer
easily measurable. The Committee did
not adjust the EPS targets following the
disposals and awards subject to the EPS
test (50% of total) lapsed in full. The TSR
test was satisfied in full and awards under
this test (509 of total) vested, and

No 2018 LTIP grant was made to Andria
Vidler or Swagatam Mukerii in their roles
as CEO and CFO respectively. Following
his appointment as CEQ, and as part

of a revised remuneration package for
this role including a lower salary than the
previous CEQ, LTIP awards were granted
to Swagatam Mukerji on 3 October 2019
over shares equal to 100% of salary with
perfernance tests based on profitable
revenue growth, Group EBITDA margin
growth and relative TSR (each weighted
one third).

Further details are given on pages 55 to 58.

Implementing the Remuneration
Policy for 2020

The base salaries for the Executive
Directors are expected to inCrease
from 1 April 2020 by 2% in line with the
expected general workfarce increases.
There will be no changes to pensicn
and benefit provisions;

The maximum annual bonus for
Executive Directors will revert to 100%
of salary. The majority of bonus potential
will be measured against financial-
based targets with a minority based on
strategic objectives. Any annual bonus
greater than 75% of basic salary will be
awarded in Centaur Media Plc shares
and deferred for three years; and

LTIP awards are expected to be granted
on a basis consistent with awards
granted in prior years in terms of grant
levels (100% of salary). Performance
targets are expected to be based one-
third on EBITDA performance, one-third
ot RS and one-third on relative TSR.

Shareholder consultation and
AGM approvals

Major shareholders were consulted in
respect of the proposed 2019 Directors’
Remuneration Policy and 2019 IP and
strong support for the proposals was
received. At the 2020 AGM there wil be an
advisory resolution on the Annual Statement
and Annual Report on Remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2019. | hope we
continue to receive your support.

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
17 March 2020
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'DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The following section of the Directors’
Remuneration Report sets out a summary
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM

heid cn 17 May 2019. There have been no
changes to the policy since that date. The
full Directors’ Rernuneration Palicy is set out
below for ease of reference.

Policy scope
The Policy applies to the Chairman,

Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors.

Policy duration

The current Remuneration Policy was
passed by a binding shareholder vote at
the Company's AGM held on 17 May 2019
and became effective from the date of that
meeting. The policy takes into account
the provisions of the new UK Corporate
Governance Code which is effective from

1 January 2019, and other good practice
guidelines from institutional shareholders
and shareholder bodies. All payments to
Directors during the policy period will be
cansistent with the approved policy.

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Centaur recognises the nead to attract,
retain and incentivise executives with the
appropriate skills and talent to manage and
develop the Group’s businesses, drive the
Group’s strategy and deliver shareholder
value. The main principles of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy are:

To achieve total remuneration packages
that are competitive in the sector within
which the Group operates and with the
market in general;

To provide an appropriate balance
between fixed and variable remuneration
which rewards high levels of performance;
and

To incentivise and retain management
and to align their interests with those of
shareholders.

Considerations of employment
conditions elsewhere in the
Group

The Committee considers the base salary
increases and remuneration policies and
practice more generally for all employees
when determining the annual salary
increases and remuneration policy for the
Executive Directors. Employees have not
been consulted in respect of the renewal of
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, although
the Committee will keep this approach
under review.

Consideration of shareholder
views

The Committee considers shareholder
feedback received in relation to the
Annual Report and AGM each vear. This
feedback, plus any additional feedback
received during the course of the year, is
then considered as part of the Company’s
annual review of its remuneration policy.

In addition, the Committee will seek to
engage directly with major shareholders
and their representative bodies should any
material changes be made to the Directors’
Remuneration Policy. Details of votes for
and against the resolution to approve last
year's Remuneration Report and the 2019
Remuneraticn Policy are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy —
summary table

The table below sets out the Remuneration
Policy approved by shareholders at the
AGM held on 17 May 2019.

Note that payments may be made under
arrangements in place prior to this policy
becoming effective (including pension, other
benefits and incentives).

The remuneration offered to employees of
the Group will be adapted to reflect local
market practice and seniority.
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Base salary

2019
Incentive
Plan (2019
IP”} for
2019 only

Reflects the value
of the individual and
their role

Reflects skills and
experience over
time

Provides an
appropriate level of
baslc fixed income
avoiding excessive
risk arising from
over reliance on
variable income

Incentivises delivary
of 2019 strategic
goals

Maodmurm award
only payable

for achieving
dernanding targets

Reviewed annually,
rormally effective

1 April

Paid in cash on a
monthly basis
Pensionable

Benchmarked
against companies
with similar
characteristics and
sector comparalors

Not pensicnable

Deferral of any
award in excess of
75% of maximum
into shares for two
years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable

on deferred share
awards

The Committee has not
set a maximum level

of salary. Increases will
be set in the context

of salary increases
amongst the wider
work force

The Committee retaing
the discretion to make
increases above

this level in certain
circumstances, for
aexample, but not limited
to:

An increase in the
individual's scope
and responsibilities
Alignment to the
external market

An increase to
reflect an individual's
performance and
deveslopment in the
role, e.g. where a
new appointmeant is
recruited at a lower
salary level and is
awarded stepped
increases

200% of salary

Not applicable

Measured over 2019

Based on maximising
shareholder value from
divestments of non-core
assets, achieving stretch
profit and operating
margin targets for the
ongoing Xeim business
and reducing central
cverhead costs by the
end of 2019

Clawback provisions
apply
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Annual
bonus

(2020
onwards)

Long term
incentives

Pension

Incentivises annual
delivery of financial
and strategic goals

Maximum bonus
only payable

for achieving
demanding targets

Aligns to main
strategic objectives
of delivering

profit growth and
shareholder return

Provides
competitive
retirement benefits
Provides an
opportunity for
Executive Directors
to contribute to their
own retirement plan

Targets reviewed
annualty

Not pensionable

Deferral of any
bonus over 75%
of base salary into
shares for three
years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable

on deferred share
awards

Annual grant of
conditional awards
or nil cost options

Dividend equivalents
may be payable on
shares to the extent
awards vest

Defired
contributions made
to the Executive
Director's own
pension plan. Cash
alternatives may alsc
be paid

100% of salary

Awards capped

at 100% of salary
(200% in exceptional
circumstances)

Up to 15% of base

At 0

salary, afthough pension

provision in respect
of future Executive
Director appointments
will be aligned to the
workforce where
possible
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Normally measured over
a cne-year performance
pericd

Primarily based on
Group's annual financial
performance (majority, if
not all}

Personal and/or strategic
objectives {mincrity)
Measures for the following
years will be set out in
the Annual Report on
Remuneration of the
relevant year

Clawback provisions
apply

Normally a three-year
performance period

Performance is based
on financial and/or share
price-based measures
{e.g. EPS and relative
TSR)

The Committee may alter
the weighting and targets
for each grant annually

if it determines that it is
appropriate to do so

Targets for the following

years will be set out in

the Annual Report on

Rernuneration

Awards vest as follows:
Threshold performance:
25% of award
Maximum performance:
100% of award

Clawback provisions

apply

Not applicable
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iy
Other Aids retention and Executive Directors There is no maximum. Not applicable
benefits recruitment are provided with Set at a level which the
private medical Committee considers
insurance is appropriate in
Other benefits the context of the
including compary circumstances of the
car allowance rolefindividual and
and car parking local market practice
may be provided
if considered
appropriate by the
Commitiee
Share To provide 50% of the net of 200% of salary Not applicable
ownership aligniment of tax vested LTIP

interests between

shares required to

be retained until the
guideline is met

Executive Directors
and shareholders

1 The Annual Report on Remuneration sats out how the Company implernented the policy presented above in 2019 and will apply it in 2020.

2 Not all employees have a bonus opportunity, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are lower. Participation in the 2019 IP was limited to Executive Directors and
participation i the LTIP was iimitec to Exectiive Directors and certain selected senior management. Other employees are eligible 10 participate in the Company's all émployee share
plan. in general, these differences arise to ensure remuneration arrangements are competitive In the market, together with the fact that remureration of the Executive Directors and
senior executives typically has a greater emphasis on performance related pay. All bonus schemes are discretionary.

3 The choice of performance metrics applicable to the 2019 IP reflecteq Centaur's strategy to simplify the business and maximise sharehoider value dunng 2019 while ensuring that there
was an appropriate focus on the remaining business.

4 The choice of performance metrics applicabls to the annual bonus plan reflsct the Committes’s belief that any incentive compensation should be appropriately challenging and primarily
tied to financial measuras.

5 The EBITDA, EPS and TSR perormance conditions applicable to the 2020 LTIF awards were selected by the Committee on the basis that they are consistent with rewarding the
delivery of long-term returns 1o shareholders and the Group's financial growth.

6  Executve Directors may paricipate In any all-employee share plan, in line with HMAC limits, and 1o the extent offered.
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Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would

be set in accordance with the terms of the Company’s prevailing
approved remuneration policy at the time of appeintment and would
take into account the skills and experience of the individual, the
market rate for a candidate of that experience and the importance
of securing the relevant individual.

On recruitment, salary may (but need not necessarily) be set below
the normal market rate, with phased increases as the executive
gains experience. Pension provision will be aligned to that provided
to the general workforce where possible. Incentive awards weuld
ba no more than set out in the Policy table above. In addition, on
recruitment the Company may compensate for amounts foregone
from a previcus employer (using Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary)
taking into account the quantum foregone and, as far as reasonably
practicable, the extent to which performance conditions apply, the
form of award and the time left to vesting.

For an internal promation, any variable pay element awarded in
respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay out according
to its terms. Any other ongoing remuneration obligations existing
prior to appointment may continue, provided that they are put fo
shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity.

The Committee may agree that the Company will meet relocation,
legal fees or incidental costs where appropriate.

Service contracts and loss of office payments

The current Exacutive Directors have service contracts which have
a 12-month notice period, dated 21 September 2016 for Swagatam
Mukerji and 6 November 2019 for Simon Longfield. In respect of
these service contracts, at the Board's discretion, a payment in

lisu of any unexpired notice may be paid, comprising an amount
for base salary, pension and any accrued holiday entiterment. The
amount may be paid in one lump sum or in twe instalments and
mitigation will be applied to the second instalment. If termination

is within six months of a change of control, a payment equal to

12 months’ salary, pension and accrued hofiday pay is payable.
Where the Company terminates the contract in any other manner,
any damages shall be calculated in accordance with common

law principles including those relating to mitigation of loss.
Notwithstanding the abave, the Company is entitled to terminate
employment without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of
notice in specified circumstances (e.g. serious misconduct).

An annual incentive will normally be payable for the period of the
financial year served, although it will normally be pro-rated and paid
at the normal pay-out date. Any share-based entiterments granted
to an Executive Director under the Company’s share plans will be
determined based on the relevant plan rules. However, in certain
prescribed circumstances, such as death, disability, retirement or
other circumstances at the discretion of the Committee, ‘good
leaver' status may be applied. For good leavers, awards wil
normally vest at the vesting date set out in the relevant award,
subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions
at the time and reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the
performance period actually served. However, the Committee has

discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employment
or to dis-apply time pro-rating.

In addition to the above, cutplacement support may be provided
and legal fees or any other minor incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable.
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee is determined by the Remuneration Committee {other than the Company Chairman, if he sits on the
Committes). The fees for the Non-Executive Directors are set by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors. The table summarises
the key aspects of the Remuneration Policy for the Chainman and Non-Executive Directors:

RGBTl

.
R
g, @’m‘%\
‘92«;,?} B

. g

Chairman Reflect time Cash fee normaily There is na prescribed Not applicable
and Non- commitments and paid on a monthly maxitnum annual fee or
Executive responsibil_itie_s of basis {fee increase
Directors each rofe, in fine Reimbursement of The Committee and

with those provided incidental expenses Board are guided by
fees by simiarly sized where appropriate the general increase

companies Reviewed in the Non-Executive

periodically market, but may decide

to award a lower or
higher fee increase to
recognise, for example,
an increase in the scals,
scope or responsibility
of the role or take
account of relevant
market movements

An additional
amount will be
paid for Chairing a
Committee

Letters of appointment

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year period with
the option for an extension for a further three-year period and provide for a notice period of three months. All of the current Non-Exsacutive
Directors have chosen to submit to annual re-election at each AGM.

Colin Jones 1 September 2018 1 September 2018 1 September 2021
William Eccleshare 1 July 2016 1 July 2019 1 July 2022
Robert Boyle 8 Jdanuary 2010 8 January 201§ 18 March 2020
Rebecca Miskin 13 January 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020
Carol Hosey 5 February 2020 5 February 2020 5 February 2023
Leslie-Ann Reed 1 March 2020 1 March 2020 1 March 2023

Robert Boyle and Rebecca Miskin agreed to remain on the Board until their retirement on 31 March 2020 in order to provide a handover
following the appointments of Carol Hesey and Leslie-Ann Reed,

Approach to fees on recruitment

For the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, the fee will be set in accordance with the approved remuneration policy
in force at that time.
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- ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

A summary of how the Directors' Remuneraticn Policy will be applied during the year ending 31 December 2020 is set out below.

Base salary
The Executive Directors’ current and proposed salaries are as follows:

Swagatam Mukerji ’ £326,400 £320,000 £260,100 2%
Simon Longfield 2 £178,500 £175,000 N/A 2%
' Swagatam Mukeri became CEQ on 4 Septembar 2019. At this time the Remuneration Committee determined that his salary should ba increased to £320,000pa with effect from 4
September 2019 in line with his new responsibilities.
2Simon Longfiekd was appointed Chief Financial Offcer on & November 2019 and his salary on employment was £175,000pa.
1 The Executwe Directors are expected to receive a 2% salary increase fromn 1 April 2020 in line with the expected general workiorce increase.
Pension and benefits
Pension and benefits provision will be in line with the policy. Swagatam Mukerji receives a pension allowance equivalent to 9% of annual
salary. Simon Longfield receives a pension allowance equivalent to 5% of annual salary, in ine with the pension arrangements for the
waorkforce.
Annual bonus for 2020
The maximum bonus for Executive Directors will be 100% of salary. The majority of bonus potential will be measured against financial-based
targets with a minority based on strategic objectives. Any annual banus greater than 75% of basic salary will be awarded in Centaur Media
Plc shares and deferred for three years.
Long term incentives for 2020
LTIP awards will be granted to Executive Directors in 2020 under the 2016 LTIP as follows:

One-third of the 2020 award will be based on adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA threshalds and targets will be set for the year ending 31

Decamber 2022 in line with the Company's long-term business plan.

One-third of the 2020 award will be based on absolute EPS targets. The EPS target range for these awards will be set in line with the

Company's long-term business plan.

One-third of the 2020 award will be based on relative TSR measured against the constituents of the FTSE SmallCap (excluding

investment trusts). 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper quartile TSR

over the three years ending 31 December 2022, In addition to the TSR performance condition, the Committee will need to be satisfied

that the Company’s TSR performance reflects the underlying financial performance of the Company for this part of an award to vest.
The performance targets for the above awards will be disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report to the 2020 Annual Report subject to
any commercial senstivity.

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The fees for the Company Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors from 1 April 2020 are as follows:

Cqlin Jones {appointed as Chairman 30 June 2019)' 100,000 43,775 128%
William Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Rebert Boyle {to retire 3% March 2020) - 43,775 N/A
Rebecca Miskin {to retire 31 March 2020) - 43,775 N/A
Carol Hosey (appeinted 5 February 2020)? 45,000 - N/A
Leslie-Ann Reed {appoeinted 1 March 2020)3 45,000 - N/A
Neil Johnson (resigned 30 June 2019) - 125,000 N/A

' Colin Jones joined the Board on an annual fee of £43,775 which increased to £125,000 from 30 June 2019 following his appointment as Ghaman.
His feas were reviewed following the completion of the simplification programme and it was determined that they would be reduced to £100,000 with efiect from 1 January 2020,

? Carol Hosey was appointed as Non-Executive Direclor and Chair of the Remuneration Cornmittee on 5 February 2020. Her annual fees are £40,000 plus £5,000 for chairing the
Remuneration Cornmittes.

* Leslie-Ann Reed was appointed as Nen-Executive Director on 1 March 2020. Her annual fees are £40,000 and she will receive an additonal £6,000 from 31 March 2020 for chairing the
Audit Committee.
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Remuneration received by Directors for the year (audited)
Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

Salary Total Total

and fees Benelits Bonug? Pension LTiP? Total Fixed Variabie

g £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Swagatam Mukeriji 2019 278,177 3,660 404,426 19,783 115,195 821,241 301,620 519,621
{CEQ from 4 September 2019) 2018 253,750 8,416 - 19,686 - 281,852 281,852 -
Sirmon Longfieid 2019 27,428 - - 729 - 28,157 28,157 -
{appointed 6 November 2019) 2018 - - - - - - - -
Calin Jones 2019 84,388 - - - - 84,388 84,388 -
(appointed as Chairman 30 June 2019} 2018 14,582 - - - - 14,582 14,592 -
William Eccleshare 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -

Robert Boyle 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -

Rebecca Miskin 2019 43,775 - - - — 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -

Andria Vidler 2019 283,691 11,076 481,866 30,166 168626 975425 324,933 650,492
{to 30 September 2019} 2018 371,448 17,360 - 40,024 - 428,832 428,832 -
Neil Johnson 2019 62,500 - - - - 62,500 62,500 -
{to June 2019) 2018 125,000 - - - - 125000 125,000 -

Nates:
' The bonus amounts redate to remuneration under the 2019 IP as set out on page 55.
2 The LTIP amounts relate to the vesting of the 2017 LTIPs as set out on page 56.
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Annual bonus for the year {audited)

As approved by shareholders at the 2319 AGM, the 2019 incentive Plan (2019 IP") for Andria Vidler {CEQ) and Swagatam Mukerji (CFC)
was capped at 200% of base salary based on financial performance to 31 December 2019 with amounts delivered in the form of a cash
award with partial deferral intc shares. This arrangement operated instead of the normal 100% of salary bonus and 100% of salary LTIP.

The three elements of the 2019 IP were:
50% of the award based on maximising shareholder valus from the divestment of non-core assets;

25% of the award based on significantly reducing central overnead costs by the end of 2019; and
25% of the award based on achieving stretch profit and operating margin targets for the ongoing Xeim business for 2019.

Up to 75% of the 2019 IP was to be paid in cash following the end of the 2019 financial year with any amount earned in excess of 75%

of the maximum deferred into Gentaur Media plc shares for two years from the date that the cash element is paid. Targets and actual
performance were as follows:

a) : ok T S ‘

A target range of proceeds was set for the divestment programme. Following a strategic decision to retain The Lawyer, the target proceeds
were reduced and the maximum potential for this part of the award was reduced from 50% to 35% of the original total award. The total
gross proceeds from the disposals, before working capital adjustments, were £21.75m, which was 92.8% of the target, equal to 32.5% of
the 2019 IP. As all the disposals had been completed before Andira Vidler stepped down from the Board, the Committee did not reduce her
entitlement under this element of the 2018 IP.

b)

The Board set an ambitious target of removing over £5m of annualised central overhead costs by the end of 2019. As the Group has
successfully reached this target, 100% of this opportunity was payable, equal to 25% of the 2019 IP award.

As the cost reduction target was not fully completed at the time that Andria Vidier left, the Committee awarded her 87% of the available
opportunity equal to 21.9% of the 2019 IR

C) . . . N PR . - X . . Lo

The Board set stretch profit targets for the new Xeim business on the basis of contribution after portfolio (CAP) costs from a low end of
£12.83m to a high end of £14.26m paying between 50% and 100% respectively of this part of the award. Xeim's actual CAP result for the
year of £13.50m resulted in a 47.2% pay out equal to 23.6% of the 2C19 IR,

As Andria Vidler left after nine menths of the year, her award was reduced by 25% equal to 17.7% of the 2019 IP.

A summary of the 2019 IP amounts payable for the Executive Directors is as follows:

a) bonus based on divestrnent of non-core assets 247,928 168,938
b) bonus based on reducing central overhead costs 166,575 160,000
c) bonus based on achieving stretch targets for Xeim business 67,363 75,488
Total bonus 481,866 404,426

As the bonus awards were less than 75% of the maximum, no share deferral will cperate.
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Vesting of 2017 LTIP awards

The Committee agreed to the 2017 LTIP vesting six months early on the basis that the Group had been significantly restructured by the
half year, and the original performance tests were no longer easily measurable. The Committee did not adjust the EPS targets following the
disposals and awards subject to the EPS test (50% of total) lapsed in full. The TSR test was satisfied in full and awards under this test (50%
of total) vested. Further details relating to these awards are:

EPS 50%

Relative TSR vs FTSE 50%
SmallCap index (excluding
investment trusts)

Total LTIP vesting

0% vesting below 6.5 pence Below threshold EPS
25% vesting at 6.5 pence

100% vesting at 10.5 pence
Straight-line vesting between these
points

0% vesting below median Upper Quartile
25% vesting at medifian

100% vesting at upper guartile

Straight-line vesting between

these points

These awards vested on 26 September 2019 following the announcement cf the Interim Results, as follows:

Andria Vidler 802,982

Swagatam Mukerji 548,546

26 September

50% 401,491 2019 42 pence
26 Sepleniben

50% 274,273 2019 42 pence

0%

50%

50%

168,626

115,195

In respect of the requirement to estimate the amount of any LTIP award which is attributable to share price appreciation, the share price on
24 April 2017, the date of grant, was 45.8p. The share price on 26 September 2019, the date of vesting, was 42.0p and at 31 December

2019 it was 36.5p.
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Grant of LTIP awards in 2019

No 2019 LTIP grant was made to Andria Vidler or Swagatam Mukeriji, in their roles as CEOC and CFO respectively. Following his appointment
as CEQ, and as part of a revised remuneration package for this role, including a lower salary than the previcus CEO, LTIP awards were
granted to Swagatam Mukerji on 3 Octaober 2019 over shares equal to 100% of salary with performance tests based on prefitable revenue
growth, Group EBITDA margin growth and relative TSR (each weighted one third). Details of this award are set out below:

Swagatam Mukerji

3 October 2019 758,263

100% of
base salary

£320,000

See below

' The share price used to calculate the face value of the award was the average share price for the 5 working days pnor 1o the date of grant.

The performance conditions for this award are set out in three parts below:

Profitable revenue growth' 33.3%

Group EBITDA rmargin growth 33.3%

Relative TSR vs FTSE SmallCap 33.4%
index {excluding investment trusts)
at 1 January 20192

3 years to
31 December 2021

3 years to
31 December 2021

3 years to
31 December 2021

50% — Median?

100%°

Between Median and 100%
Bottom %?

Top %2
Between bottom and top

Median

Upper Quartile or above

Betweaen Median and Upper
Quartite

1 January 2019 1o 31
December 2021

25%

100%

Straight-line basis
between 25% and
100%

Nil

10C%

Straight-line basis
between Nil and 100%

25%

100%

Pro-rata on a straight-
line basis between 26%
and 100%

' PRG is defined as growth in aggregate Business Unit EBITDA as a % of revenua comparad with 2018 base. If this ratio 1s flat or declines, then no award will be made under this

performance condition.

2 The performance targets for revenue growth and EBITDA growth for the three years are commergially sensitive and are not disclosed . They will remain commercially sensitive during the
three-year period of performance until the calculation is performed and disclosed in the 2027 Annual Report.

* Tha TSR element will only vest if there has been sustained improvement in the Company's underlying financial performance over the performance period.

Andria Vidler purchased 2,800 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares on a 1 for 2
basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 1,450 matching shares being awarded in the year.

Swagatam Mukerji purchased 4,208 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these sharescna 1
for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 2,104 matching shares being awarded in the year.
Board changes and payments for loss of office (audited)

Andria Vidler stepped down as CEQ on 4 September 2019 and stepped down from the Board on 30 September 2018. Details of her
termination arrangements are set out below:

salary and pension paid up to 30 Septemnber 2019. Healtheare benefit continued until 31 December 2019,

an amount of £392.642 was paid in respect of payment in lieu of her 12 month notice period. No further payment in respect of loss of
office was or will be made.

award under the 2019 IP, pro-rated tc date of departure where appropriate, to be paid on the normal payment date in 2020 as detailed
on page 55.

2017 LTIP award vested on 26 September 2019 following the completicn of the divestment programme, as described on page 56.
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treated as a good leaver for her 2018 LTIP award of 740,807 shares which will vest on the third anniversary of the grant, subject to
performance conditions and pro-rating. No LTIP awards were made to Andria Vidler in 2019.

Swagatam Mukeriji was appointed as CEQ on 4 September 2019. Details of changes to his remuneration on appointment were as follows:
annual salary increased from £260, 100 to £320,00C;

pension equivalent of 9% of salary as previously provided when he was CFQ;
2019 (P calculated based on a weighted average salary, for his period as CFO and CEC (see page 55}; and
LTIPs granted as set out on page 57.

Simon Longfield was appointed as CFO on 6 November 2014, Details of his remuneration on appointment were as follows:
annual salary of £175,000; and

pension equivalent to 5% of salary in line with the pension provided to the workforce.

In respect of the Non-Executive Diractors, Colin Jonas replaced Neil Johnson as Chairman from 30 June 2019. Neit Johnson retired from the
Board cn 30 June 2019 and Ron Sandler retired from the Board on 3 January 2019. No payments for loss of office were paid or are payable
to Neil Johnson or Ron Sandler.

Payments to past Directors (audited)

Consistent with a long-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, was paid £3,000 duting the
year (2018: £3,000) for advisory services performed.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests {audited}

Share ownership plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders. The Executive Directors are expected
to build up and maintain a shareholding in the Company equal to 200% of salary from the date of the 2019 AGM. Where an executive does
not meet this guideline, they are required to retain at least 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the Company's LTIP until the guideline
is met.

The tables below set out details of Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards under LTIP schemes (which will vest in future years,
subject ta performance and continued service), Under each scheme the exercise price is £nil.

Andria Vidler 674,194 - 674,194 - 30/3/16 1/1/16 - 30/03/19 — 52.7p
31/12/18 29/09/19
B02,982 - 401,481 401,4917 24/4/17 17 - 24/04/20 - 45.8p
31/12/19 303/06/20
740,807 - - 740,807 6/4/18 1/1/18 - 06/04/21 - 50.2p
31/12/20 05/10/21
2,217,983 - 1,075,685 1,142,298
Swagatam Mukerji 573,394 - 573,394 - 4/10/16 1/1/16 - 04/10/19 - 43.6p
31/12/18 03/04/20
548,546 - 274,273 274,273 24/A17 1117 - 24/04/20 — 45.8p
311219 30/086/20
506,072 - - 506,072 6/4/18 1/1/18 - 06/04/21 — 50.2p
31/12/20 a5/10/21
- 758,293 - 758,203 3/10/19 11118 - 03/10/22 - 42.2p
3112/21 02/04/23

1,628,012 758,293 847,667 1,538,638

! As detailed above, the LTIP awards granted to Andria Vidier and Swagatam Mukerji in 2016 lapsed m 2019 as a result of the threshold EPS and TSR targets not being met. Awards made
in 2017 were accelerated following the completion of the drestment programme. The TSR part (50%} of the Award vested, whereas the EPS part {80%} of the award lapsed.

2 The exarcise penad for the 2017 LTIPs was shorlenad following their earty vesting from 23 Cotober 2020 to 30 June 2020.
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The table below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by Directors (including their connected persons where relevant).

Andria Vidler
Swagatam Mukerii
Simon Longfield (appointed 6 November 2019)

Colin Jones

Neil Jehnson
Wiliiam Eccleshare
Robert Boyle
Rebecca Miskin
Carol Hosey
Leslie-Ann Reed

* Or on date of cessation, if earlier

185,190
80,289

100,000
117,037
14,800

7 0On 9 October 2019 Swagatam Mukerji transferred 120,000 shares to his wife Rina Mukenji

? includes LTIPs granted in 2017 which vested In 2019 {see above).

Performance graph

189,538
136,6012
34,499

120,000
100,000
117,037

14,800

No
Mo

N/A
N/A
N/A
NZA
NZA
N/A
NZA

1,142,298°
1.638,638°

1,331,836
1,675,239
34,499

120,000
100.000
117,037

14,800

The graph below shows the TSR of Centaur Media plc compared to the performance of the FTSE SmaliCap index (excluding investment
trusts) over the last ten and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis that it is the index against which performance for

the purpose of share awards made under the LTIP is assessed. Cwing to the change to the financial year end in 2014, there was no financial

year ended 30 June 2014 and, instead, TSR performance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 is shown.
The graph shows the value of £100 invested in Centaur Media plc on 1 July 2009 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE

SmallCap index (excluding investment trusts) at each financial period end.

[
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History of remuneration for the CEQ
The table below sets out the CEC single figure of total remuneration over the past ten and a half years.

31 December 2019 Swagatam Mukeriji

{from 4 September 2019) 268,743 70 N/A
31 December 2019 Andria Vidler

(until 30 September 2019) 975,4257 83 50
31 December 2018 Andria Vidler 430,859 0 0
31 December 2017 Angdria Vidier 558,526 37 8]
31 December 2016 Andria Vidler 422,605 0 o]
31 December 2015 Andria Vidler 416,607 2 N/A
31 December 2014 Andria Vidler 670,077 56 N/A
(18manth period} (frorm 14 November 2013}
30 June 2013 Geoff Wilmot 514,920 0
30 June 2012 Geoff Wilmot 363,321°2 7 o]
30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmot 568,673 58 Q
30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot 450,180 45 0

' Based on salary and benefits for the period from 4 September 2019 to 31 December 2019 and a pro-rated portion of the 2019 IP refating to that period. Excludes the LTIP part of his
remuneration on the basis that this related to his role as CFO,

Based on total remuneration inciuding salary, benefits, 2019 IP and LTIP remuneralion {as set out on pages 54 to 56}, but excluding £392,642 contractual notice payment as detailed on
page 57.

*Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual notice payment as detaled in the 2013 Report and Accounts.
Change in the CEC’s remuneration

The tabie beiow shows the movement (n safary, benefits and annuai bonus for Swagatarm Mukerii fas CEO) batween the current year and
Andria Vidler (as the previous CEQ) for the previous financial year compared to all employees of the Company.

Salary' CEO {14)%
Employees 7%
Benefits? CEQ (59)%
Employees {5)%
Annual bonus CEOQ Note?
Emplovees 15%

! Swagatarn Mukerii annual salary on appointmant as CEO of £320,000 compared 1o Andna Vidler's 2018 annual salary of £372,278.

2 Swagatam Mukerji benefits (health nsurance, pension and other benetits) on appamntment as CEQ compared 10 Andria Vidier's 2018 benefits.

2 No bonus was paid to the CEQ for 2018. Detalls of bonuses paid to Swagatam Mukerii and Andria Vidler relating 10 2019 under the 2019 [P are set out on page 55. On the basis that
bonuses are linked directly to salary, the change in borus potental between Andria Vidier and Swagatam Mukerii will alsc reduce by 14% as per note” relating to salary.

CEQ pay ratio
The tabie below sets out the CEO pay ratios.

2019 Qption C 49:1 34:1 21:1

Option C was selected given that this method of calculation was considlered to be the most efficient and robust approach in respect of
gathering the required data for 2019 and the salaried employee data is considered representative of the relevant quartiles.

25th %tile Madian 75th %tile 25th %tile Median 75th Y%tile
2019 £20.509 £27.674 £43,997 £20,509 £29,058 £46,618
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Change in remuneration of the CEO

2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change
CEQO! £363,691 £371,448 2)% £47,105 £57.384 {(18)% £616,675 £ N/A
Salaried employees? £36,799 £38,469 {7)% £1,541 £1,625 51% £2,329 £2,022 15%

1 Calculated based on 9 month's salary, benefits and bonus for Andria Vidler up to the point of stepping down from the Board on 30 September 2018 and 3 month's salary, bonus and
benefits for Swagatarm Muketji thereafter.

2 Galkeulated based on all employees in the Group (including discontinued operations).

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The following table sets cut the percentage change in distributions te sharehclders and employee remuneration costs,

Employee remuneration costs £29.0m £31.5m {B)%
Dividends paid and share repurchases £7.7m £4.7m 64%

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committes is responsible for monitaring, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least annually on the
bread policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chairman, Company Secretary and management tier below the Board,

It also determines their individual remuneration packages, including pension arrangements, bonuses and all incentive schemes and the
determination of targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. In addition, the Commities reviews pay and
conditions across the workforce and takes this into account when considering executive remuneration. Minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee.

External advisors

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers it appropriate. During the year, the Committee sought
advice relating to executive remuneration from FIT Remuneration Consultants {'FIT"), whe were appointed by the Committee. The Committee
is satisfied that the advice received from FIT in relation to executive remuneration matters during the year under review was objective and
independent. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of
Conduct. The fees charged by FIT for the year, based on time and materials, amounted to £16,820.

Statement of shareholder voting

The voting results for the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2019 AGM) and last year's Directors’ Remuneration Report were as follows:

Approval of Directors' Remuneration Policy in 2019 102,537,475 {87.8%) 14,247,400 (12.2%) 116,784,875 3,233

Approval of Directors’ Remuneration Report in 20193 118,764,376 (99.98%) 20,600 (0.02%) 116,784,876 3,233

' Objections were raised by ISS to the 2019 IP. under which Andria Vidler and Swagatam Mukerfi would be entitled to increased annual bonuses for one year only. While we respect the:
views of IS5, the Board feels that 1SS has falled to recagnise the unusual circumstances of the past year during which the Group ernbarked on a fundamental reshaping of its pertfolio
that is critical to the delivery of shareholtder value.

Approval

The Board of Directors has approved this Rernuneration Committee Report, including beth the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the
Annual Repert on Remuneration.

Signea on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
17 March 2020
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 STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prapare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the prefit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them congistently;

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial statements and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Gompany will
continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate ascounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whale, Is tar, balanced ahd underslarddble anwd provides the
information necessary for shareholders tc assess the Group and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Governance Report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

the Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial positicn and result of the Comparny.

the Group financial staterments, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and
Cornpany, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
s0 far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are unaware; and

they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

By order of the Board

Company Secretary
17 March 2020
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“ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Qpinion
In cur opinion, Centaur Media plc's Group finangial statements and Company financial statements {the “financial statements"):
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group’s profit and
the Group's and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the Company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements {the “Annual Report™), which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019; the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the Consclidated and Company cash flow statements, and the Consolidated and Company statements of changes
in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knewledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not providec to
the Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the Group or the Company in
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Our audit approach
Overview

COverall Group materiality: £244,000 based on 0.5% of Revenue (2018: £245,000 based on 5% of
Adijusted profit before tax).

Qwerall Company materiality: £236,000 (2018: £222,000), based on 1% of Total Assets capped at a
level below Group materiality.

The twa significant compeonents of the Group were based in the UK and have both been audited by the
UK audit team.

Impairment of goodwill {Group)
Accounting for disposals {Group)

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (Company}

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstaterment in the financial statements.
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Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
refated to GDPR, health and safety in relation to events and tax, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation

of the financial statements such as the Cormpanies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to
posting inappropriate journal entries to increase the expenses allocated as adjusting iterns, posting inappropriate journal entries to increase
revenue and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the Group engagement team included:

enquiries with management and the Group’s internal legal teams, including consideration of known or suspected instances of fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations;

understandirkgg and evaluating the design and implementation of management’s controls designed to pravent and detect irregularities,
including whistleblowing arrangements;

+  inspecting management reports and Board minutes in relation to any regulatory matters; and

identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations, postings by
unexpected users and key word searches,

There are inharent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and reguiations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the rigk of

not detecting a material misstatermnent due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate coricealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to iregularities, including fraud. As in all our audits we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal contrals, including testing journals and evaluating whether thers was evidence of bias by the Directors that
represented a risk of material misstaterment due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the audilots’ piofessional judgement, wera of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaternent {whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thergon,
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide
& separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complate list of all risks identified by our audit.
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o e
impairment of goodwill

Refer to pages 41 to 43 {Audit Committee
Report), pages 88 to 89 (Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements} and
pages 100 to 101 (Note 10).

IFRS requires that management perform an
impairment test on goodwill annually. At 31
December 2018 the carrying value of goodwil
is £52.2m {2018: £62.6m}, with no impairment
charge recognised in the year (2018: £13.1m).

Management aggregates operations into Cost
Generating Units ('CGUs’} which represent the
level at which the cash flows {and goodwill}
are monitored and therefore this is the level at
which management performs s impairment
assessment.

Determining if an impairment charge is required
for goodwill involves significant judgement
regarding the ongoing structure of the business,
future results and cash fiows of the business,
including forecast growth in future revenues
and EBITDA margins, as well as determining

an appropriate discount factor and long-term
growth rate {'LTGR'}. Market conditions remain
chaltenging and the remaining businesses have
experienced varying levels of profitability.

Management used a Value in Use ('VIU') model,
which included the factors and judgements
referred to above, to compute the present value
of forecast future cash flows for each CGU
which were then compared to the carrying
value of the net assets of each CGU {including
goodwill, tangible and intangible assets} to
determine if there was an impairment.

Due to these factors and the judgements
invoived, we consider this to be a key audit
matter.

(Group)

We checked and confirmed that the allocation of CGUs was consistent with internal
management monitoring and included: Marketing (Xeim) and Legal (The Lawyer).

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these
included appropriate consideration of historical variances and uncertain market
conditions, and we also considered the appropriateness of sensitivity disclosures
provided in the financial statements, given that an impairment could arise from
reasonably possible changes to the model’s key assumptions, particulariy around
EBITDA forecasts.
We evaluated the Board approved forecasts for each CGU and understood the
process by which these were calculated. We also obtained evidence of the Board
approval of these forecasts 10 2022.
As part of our assessment we considered:

management’s key assumptions used in the cash flow farecasts including

the cost savings, revenue and EBITDA growth rates, and overhead levels by
comparing them to Board approved budgets and historical results;

s

forecast scenarios, including sensitivities surrounding potential cost savings to
be achieved and contribution growth;

the discount rate applied, by involving our valuations experts in assessing the
cost of capital for the Group and comparable organisations; and

LTGR applied, by involving our valuations experts in comparing management’s
rate to forecast long term GDP growth in the UK and industry growth reports.

We benchmarked the Group's discount rate {12.8% pre-tax) and LTGR (2.5%)
against external market data and considered our own independent range of
estimatas. The long-term growth rate applied in management's madel was
considered optimistic based on our expectation of 2%. However, as a result
management factored a reduction in their LTGR into their applied sensitivities which
didt not result in an impairment

After consultation with our valuations experts, we have determined that the discount
rate applied by management is within our expected range.

In our view, the judgements made by management in preparing the impairment
model are acceptable. We note, however, that while management’s base case
forecasts and sensitivities indicated no impairment, there are certain reasonable
downside scenarios that would result in an impairment to both CGUs. We have
therefore evaluated the disclosure of sensitivity analyses performed by management
{as set out in Note 10) to ensure that these sensitivities are appropriately disclosed
in the financial statements and present a balanced view of reasonabidy possible
changes to assumptions in the VIU models.

We agree with management’s assessment that goodwilt is not impaired and that
appropriate disclosures have been presented in the financial statements.
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£ s

Accounting for disposals

Refer to pages 41 to 43 (Audit Committee
Report), page 83 to 89 (Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements) and
page 98 (Note 8.

The Group disposed of Financial (FIN), Travel
and Meetings (T&M), Human Resources (HR)}
and Engineer (ENG). These disposals fall

under the scope of IFRS 5 'Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued operations’ and are
disclosed in the year-end financial statements as
discontinued operations. The Group recognised
a profit on disposal of £7.8m during 2018 in
connection with these disposals.

Judgement is required to allocate the costs
relating to the disposals, the split between
continuing operations and discontinued
operations and net asset value of the porticlios.

During the year, a small entity, Venture Business
Research (VBR), was also disposed which did
not qualify as a discontinued operation under
IFRS 5, with the resulting loss on disposal of
£0.1m included within continuing operations.
The Lawyer, despite being initially marketed for
sale and receiving offers did not meet the Asset
Held for Sale {' AHFS" criteria at 31 December
2019.

Woe consider the accounting for disposais

to be a key audit matter as the application

of IFRS § is significant to our audit given the
assassment of the classification is campiex, the
transaction and its accounting is non-routine,
involves significant management judgement and
specific disclosures are required in the financial
statements.

(Group)

ol g, g

Our audit procedures included the following:

reviewed Sales and Purchase Agreements and recalcuiation of the gain on
disposal workings prepared by management, with consideration agreed to cash
receipts;

tested the net assets of each business;

tested the allocation of disposal costs including professional fees and
transaction bonuses to ensure the profit/loss on disposal is correct;
cansideration of the allocation of financiat statement balances between
continued and discontinued operations to ensure it is appropriate:;
reviewed the related disclosures in the financial statements to ensure they
comply with the requirements of IFRS 5;

assessed management’s judgement that The Lawyer did not meet the IFRS 5
criteria for assets held for sale at year-end and VBR did not meet the IFRS 5
criteria for discontinued operations.

As a result of the above procedures, we:

agread with management’s assessment that the disposals of FIN, T&M, HR and
ENG met the criteria of discontinued operations, In addition, we agree that the
Lawyer did not meet the assets held for sale criteria at year-end and VBR did
not constitute discontinued operations;

agreed with management's caleu'ation and presentation of the profit on
disposals of FIN, T&M, HR and ENG as part of discontinued operations and
loss on disposal of VBR as part of continuing operations;

agreed the way in which costs directly attributable to the disposals were
allocated to the profit / loss on disposals; and

considered the related disclosures in Note 8 and other sections of the financial
staternents with respect to the disposals to be sufficient and appropriate.
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Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Refer to pages 41 1o 43 {Audit Committee
Report}, pages 88 to 88 (Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements) and
pages 104 to 105 {Note 13).

1AS 36, Impairment of Assets, requires
management to consider whether there are any
indicators of impairment. The Company has
investments in subsidiaries, with a total carrying
amount of £80.1m at 31 December 2019 (2018:
£125.8m}. An impairment charge of £35.7m has
been recognised in the year (2018: £13.1m).

Determining if an impairment charge is required
for investments in subsidiaries involves
significant judgement regarding the ongoing
structure of the business, future resulis and cash
flows of the business, including forecast growth
in future revenues and EBITDA margins, as well
as determining an appropriate discount factor
and long-term growth rate ('LTGR'). Market
conditions remain challenging and different parts
of the businesses have experienced varying
levels of profitability.

Management used a VIU model to compute

the present value of forecast future cash flows
of the Group's operations which was then
compared to the carrying value of the underlying
investment. An impairment charge of £35.7m
has been recognised as the VIU medel used to
cormpute the present value of forecast future
cash flows of the Group did not support the
carrying value of investments.

We consider this to be a key audit matter given
the size of the balance and the significant
judgements and estimates involved to determine
whether the carrying value of the investment is
appropriate.

{Company)

We considered management’s assessment of indicators of impairment and whether
the actual impairment recognised in 2019 is appropriate. Factors considered in our
assessment were the results of the VIU model used for the impairment test over
goodwill {referred to above) and market capitalisation of the Group compared to the
investment carrying value.

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these
included appropriate consideration of historical variances and uncertain market
conditions, and we also considered the appropriateness of disclosures provided in
the financial statements to explain the amount impaired.

We evaluated the Board approved cash flow forecasts for the Group and
understood the process by which these were prepared. We obtained evidence of
the Board's approval of these forecasts to 2022,

As part of our assessment, we considered:

management's key assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts including
the cost savings, revenue and EBITDA growth rates and overhead levels, by
comparing them to Board approved budgets and historical results;

forecast scenarios, including sensitivities surrounding potential cost savings to
be achieved and EBITDA growth;

the discount rate applied, by involving cur valuations experts in assessing the
cost of capital for the Group and comparable organisations; and

- LTGR applied, by involving our valuations experts in comparing management's
rate to forecast long term GDP growth in the UK ang industry reports.

We benchmarked the Group's discount rate (12.8% pre-tax) and LTGR (2.5%)
against external market data and considered our own independent range of
estimates. The LTGR applied in management’s model was considered optimistic
based on our expectation of 2%. However, as a result management factored

a reducticn in their long-term growth rate into their applied sensitivities. After
consultation with our valuations, we have determined that the discount rate applied
by management is within our expected range.

There are a range of possible impairment cutcomes when management’s forecasts
are sensitised. However, we consider the impairment recognised by management
and the related judgements to be acceptable and in the range identified. We also
note that there are certain reasonable scenarios that would result in an increased
impairment charge and we have therefore evaluated the disclosure of the sensitivity
analyses performed by management (as set out in Note 13) to ensurs that these
sensitivities are appropriately disclosed and present a reflection of reasonably
possible changes to assumptions in the VIU model.

We agree with management’s assessment rasulting in an impairment charge of
£35.7m and that the disciosures in the financial statements as set out in Note 13
surrounding the impairment are appropriate.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and contrals, and the industry in which
they operate.

The Group maintains all of its books and records of its operations in the London head office with the exception of the MarketMakers
Incorporated Limited entity {‘MarketMakers'), which was acquired in 2017, which is managed from its Portsmouth office.

MarketMakers, alongside the rest of Centaur Group, have been identified as two in-scope componerts. Both required full scope audits as
they are financially significant.

The Group audit team performed audit procedures over both components.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative threshoids for materiality, These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on

the individual financial statement line items and disciosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatemenits, both individually and in aggregate
on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materiality £244,000 (2018: £245,000). £236,000 (2018: £222,000}.

How we determined it 0.5% of Revenue (2318: 5% of Adjusted 1% of Total Assets and capped at a level
profit before tax) below Group materiality

Rationale for benchmark applied We believe that revenue is a key The principal activity of the Company is
benchmark for the Group for 2019 given that of a holding entity, and this benchmark
the current environment of Chiariyge fur e is an acceptable and normal materiality

Group, and we have therefore changed our  basis to adopt.
benchmark from 2018,

For each companent in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range of
materiality allocated across the two in-scope components was between £106,000 and £236,000. One component was audited 10 a local
statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we wouid report to them misstaterments identified during our audit above £12,200 (Group audit)
(2018: £12,250) and £11,800 {Company audit} (2018: £12,000} as well as misstaternents below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for gualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with I1SAs (UK) we report as follows:

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.

draw attention to in respect of the Directars’ statement in the However, because not all future events or conditions can be
ﬁnancnaI‘ statements about \A_fhether the Direqtors constde_red 'rt pradicted, this staterent is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in Company's ability to continue as a going concern. For example,

preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of 1 terms of the United Kingdom's withdrawal from the European
any material uncertainties to the Group’s and the Company’s abilty  Unjon are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential

to continue as a going concern over a period of at least twelve implications on the Group's trade, customers, suppliers and the
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. wider economy.
We are required to report if the Directors’ statement relating We have nothing to report.

to Gaing Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the infermation in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and cur auditors' report
thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s0, consider whether
the other information is materialty inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears t0
be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
cenclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial staterments or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors” Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities descriped above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 (CADB}, ISAs
(UK} and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority {FCA) require us also to repcrt certain opinions and matters as described below
{required by 1SAs (UK} unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our cpinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements. (CA0B)

Iniight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment abtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. {(CAOE)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement (on
pages 37 to 40) about internal controls and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital
structures in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA (“DTR") is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CAOG)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we dic
not identify any material misstatements in this information, (CAQG)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement (on
pages 37 to 40) with respect to the Gompany’s corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR. (CADB)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
Company. (CAQB}

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the
solvency or liguidity of the Group
We have nothing material o add or draw attention to regarding:

+  The Directors' confirmation on page 22 of the Annual Report that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

+  The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

The Directors' explanation on page 26 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, cver what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the peried of their
assessment, inciuding any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group. Our review was substantially less in scope
than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the Directors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the
statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Code™; and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit. {Lisling Rules}
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Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

- The statement given by the Directors, on page 62, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Group's and Company’s pesition and
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company obtained in the
course of performing our audit. |

The section of the Annual Report on pages 41 1o 43 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

The Directors’ statement relating to the Company's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2008. (CA08)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such intemal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's abiiity to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Diractors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalenienls ds 2 whivie are free from naterial misstatement,
whether due to fraud cr error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in acecrdance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibitity for any
other purpose or 1o any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appeinted by the Directors to audit the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2004 and subsequent financial periods. The pericd of total uninterrupted engagement is 16 years, covering the years ended
30 June 2004 to 31 December 2013. A competitive tender grocess for the audit was undertaken for the year ended 31 December 2017
during 2016.

{Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

17 March 2020
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" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Restated® Restated? Restated?

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory

Results’ tterms? Results

2018 2018 2018

! £m £m Em
e 2 . . 50.3 - 50.3

Other operating income 2 0.8 - 0.8
Net operating expenses 3 : . (53.3) (18.1) (71.4)
. {2.2) (18.1) (20.3)
Finance costs 6 : ’ 0.2 - 0.2)
. (2.4) {18.1) {20.5)
Taxation 7 ' 0.4 07 1.1
g (2.0} {(17.4) (19.4)

Profit / {loss) for the year from discontinued

operaticns after tax 8.14 : 6.0 0.8 52
4.0 {18.2) {14.2)

4.0 (18.2) (14.2}

9

Basic from continuing operations (1.4p) (12.1p) (13.5p)
Basic from discontinuing operations : o 4.2p {0.6p) 3.6p
2.8p (12.7p) {9.9p)

Fully diluted from continuing operations (1.4p) (12.1p) (13.5p)
Fully dituted from discontinued operations 4.0p {0.4p) 36p
2.6p {12.50} (9.9p)

'Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1 ()
“See note 1 {a) for descnption of prior year restaternent

The notes an pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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“ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

Loss for the year and total
comprehensive l0ss

Dividencds

Acquisition of treasury
shares

Fair value of employse
services

BN

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income

Dividends

Acquisition of treasury
shares

Exercise of share awards
Fair value of employee
services

Foreign currency on
transtation

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.,

Note

26

24

25

26

24
25

25

Own
shares

£m
(6.5)

0.4)

6.9)

Foreign
currency
reserve
£m

Retained
earnings
£m

74.0

(14.2)

{4.3)

565

Total
Equity

84.9

(14.2)

(4.3)

0.4)

07
66.7
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t COMPANY STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shares
Share Own Share to be Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premium issued shares earnings equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2018
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss - - - - - (13.7)
Dividends 26 - - - - - (4.3
Fair value of employee services 25 - - - 0.7 - -
Loss for the year ang total
comprenensive loss - - - - - {40.2) (40.2}
Dividends 26 - - - - - @71 7.1
Exercise of share awards 25 - - - .1 - 0.1} (0.2}
Fair value of employee services 25 - - - 0.1 - - 0.1

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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~ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Registered number 04948078

Restated?

31 December

2018

Note ' £m

. it .

Goodwill 10 D 62.6
Other intangible assets 1 i 15.5
Property, plant and eguipment 12 1.3
Deferred tax assets 15 : 08
; 80.2

Inventories 16 1.4
Trade and other recelvables 17 v 13.7
Cash and cash equivalents 18 oA
Current tax assets 22 0.2
154

95.6

Trade and other payables 19 s (13.2)
Lease liabilities 20 : -
Deferred income 21 (15.0)
Provisions 23 ©.1)
(28.3)

(12.9)

Lease liabilities 20 : -
Provisions 23 it 0.1)
Deferred tax liabilities 15 C (0.5)
08

66.7

Share capital 24 T 15.1
QOwn shares L 6.9}
Share premium P 1.1
Other reserves S 1.9
Foreign currency reserve o -
Retained earnings LT 65.5
66.7

2See note 1 {a} for description of prier year restatement
The financial statements on pages 72 to 121 wers approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Simon Longfield
Chief Financial Officer

75



Centaur Media Plc Annual Report and Financial Statements for the yea- ended 31 December 2019

“ COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Registered number 04948078

31 December

2018

Note £m

Investments 13 125.8
Deferred tax assets : 041
125.9

Trade and other receivables 17 3.1
Cash and cash equivalents 18 -
3.1

129.0
Trade and other payables 19 (563.8)
(50.7)

75.2

Share capital 24 15.1
Own shares 8.3)
Share premium 1.1
Other reserves 1.9
Retained earnings 834
75.2

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its
own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The movement in retained earnings includes the Company’s loss for
the year of £40.2m (2018: £13.7m) and dividends of £7.1m {2018: £4.3m).

The financial statements on pages 72 to 121 were approved by the Board of Directars on 17 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Simon Longfield
Chief Financial Officer
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 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash generated from operations
Tax refund / (paid)
{

Cash consideration received on disposal of subsidiaries less cash and cash equivalents
disposed of

Directly attributable costs of disposal of subsidiaries
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiary

LY A
Payment for shares bought back
Loan arrangement fees
Interest paid
Repayment of obligations under lease arrangements
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders
Proceeds frorm borrowings
Repayrment of borrowings

o PIS L

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

27

14
14
12
11
23

24

20
26
28
28

18

Year ended
31 December
2018

£m

6.8
(1.2)
5.8
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* COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31 December
2018
Note £m

.
Cash generated from operating activities 27 b a7
Net cash flows used in investing activities -
Interest paid 5] : {0.4)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders 26 ’ (4.3)
Proceeds from borrowings 28 4.5
Repayment of borrowings 28 {4.5)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (4.7

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year -
18 -

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integrai part of these consclidated financial statements.
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“ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated and Company financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Group consisting of Centaur Media Plc and its subsidiaries, and the Company, Centaur Media Plc. Centaur Media Plc is a public company
limited by shares and incorporated in England and Wales.

{(a) Basis of preparation

The consclidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS"} as adopted by the European Union and IFRS Interpretations Committes ('IFRS IC') and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's ability to continue
trading and have a reascnable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and for the foreseeable future.

Net cash {see reconciliation in note 27) at 31 December 2019 amounted to £9.3m (2018: £0.1m}. In November 2018, the Group renewed
its £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland and Uoyds, which runs to November 2021 with the option
to extend for 2 periods of 1 year each. None of this was drawn-down at 31 December 2019. Our reported cash conversion rate for the year
was 100% (2018: 85%).

The Group has net current liabilities at 31 December 2019 amounting to £3.1m {2018: £12.9m). In the pricr year these primarily arose from
its normal high levels of deferred income relating to events in the future rather than an inability to service its liabilities, as deferred income will
not result in a cash outflow. In the current year net liabilities is at a lower level due to the disposal of businesses with high levels of deterred
income during the year. An assessment of cash flows for the next three financial years, which has taken intc account the factors described
above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation which would be sufficient to allow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital
requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its UK subsidiaries, to cover all principal areas of expenditure, including maintenance,
capital expenditure and taxation during this year, and to mest the financial covenants under the revelving credit facility. The Company has
net current liabilities at 31 December 2019 amounting to £62.4m (2018: £50.7m). These aimost entirely arise from unsecured payables 1o
subsidiaries which have no fixed date of repayment.

The preparation of financial staternents in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimatety
differ from those estimates.

Having assessed the principal risks and the other matters discussed in connection with the viability statement on page 26, the Directors
consider it appropriate to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in preparing its consolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019 have been adopted by
the Group:

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 sets out the requirements for lessee and lessor lease accounting. The new standard replaces IAS 17, and eliminates the
classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and instead intreduces a single accounting model
for leases which requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.

Impact

The Group has performed an impact assessment on its existing and any expected upcoeming lease arrangements. On adoption the Group
has taken advantage of the ‘short term lease’ (lease term 12 months or under) and ‘low value items’ {those deemed to be immaterial}
exemptions. The Group has aisc applied the practical expedient on transition where only contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying 1AS 17 are assessed for the purposes of IFRS 16, however the Group does not believe that any contracts other than those taliing in
scope after the practical expedient is applied would be deemed to contain a lease arrangement under IFRS 16.

The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective transition approach where comparative periods are not restated, but the
cumuiative impact of applying IFRS 16 is reflected as an adjustment to the opening balance sheet at 31 December 2019. Arrangements
already constituting finance leases under IAS 17are not impacted by the transition to IFRS 16. At adoption on 1 January 2019 there were
three existing lease arrangements captured by IFRS 16 that were previously accounted for as operating leases under IAS 17. During the
year, one centract commenced that constitutes a lease arrangement under IFRS 16.
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Each lease arrangement has been accounted for over its iease term as outlined in the contract. Where options to extend or terminate exist
in these contracts, the recegnition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets represent the Directors understanding of likely future cash flows
under these contracts. The assets and liabilities will continue to be reviewed and will be revalued where a change in the future cash flows is
indicated.

Right-of-use assets with a value of £5.5m were recognised (£2.3m for existing leases transitioning on adoption of IFRS 16 and £3.2m for a
new lease commencing on 1 October 2019). Lease liabilities with a value of £6.5m were recognised (£3.3m for existing leases transitioning
on adoption of IFRS 16 and £3.2m for a new lease commencing on 1 October 2019). The value of the IFRS 16 impact to the PaL is
immaterial, however the expenses are now classified as depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease
iiability. Please see note 20 for details of these assets, liabilities and expenses. There is no impact to cash flow. All feases discussed here are
property leases.

Disclosures

Disclosures have been made in line with IFRS 16 requirements. The accounting policy for leases is set out in note 1(} and the use of the
incremental borrowing rate as an accounting estimate in calculating the present value of leases is set out in note 1 [t{vii). Further disclosures
on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities can be found in notes 12 and 20.

Other

No other new standards or amendments to standards (including the Annual Improvements {2015) to existing standards} that are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current year or any prior
year and is not likely to affect future perods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
There are no standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the curent or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Prior year restatements

it Discontinued operations

Where the requirements of IFRS 5 have been met, the operational results of subsidiaries disposed of have been presented in discontinued
operatichs in the current period and restated 1o discontinued in the comparative period. See notes 8 and 14 for more details.

i) Correction of prior period accounting errors

Where indicated, restatements have been made to prior year comparatives for trade receivables and other payables {presented in trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position). The restatement is in respect
of credit balances which were reported in trade receivables in 2018, with the result of lowering the balances of both trade receivables

and other payables by £0.8m. This was identified after the authorisation of the 2018 Annual Report, and therefore the balances are being
retrospectively reclassified, This restatement has impacted the balances on the consolidated statement of financial position and notes 18, 20
and 28. This restatement has no impact to periods prior to 2018.

Comparative numbers
Certain prior year comparatives have been updated to reflect current year disclosures.

{b) Presentation of non-statutory measures

In addition to statutory measures. the Directors use various non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group's performance and
consider that presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding of the core trading performance of the
Group. The measures used are explained and reconciled to their equivalent statutory headings below.

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share, split between continuing and discontinued operations, provide
additional useful information on the core operational performance of the Group to shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an
adjusted basis internally. The term *adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titled profit
measurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measurements of profit,

Adjustments are made in respect of:

Exceptional items — the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes them from the adjusted results
whetg the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be non-recurting in nature se as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the results of the core operations of the Group. Details of exceptional items are shown in note 4.

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets — the amortisation charge for those intangible assets recognised on busingss combinations
is excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges arising from investment activities. As such, they are
not considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group. Details of amortisation of intangible assets are shown in note 11.

Share-based payments — share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the Group as the
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Directors believe that the volatility of these charges can distort the user’s view of the core trading performance of the Group. Details of
share-based payments are shown in note 25.
Impairment of goodwill - the Directors believe that non-cash impairment charges in relation to goodwill are generally volatile and
material, and therefore exciude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group. Previous impairment charges were presented
as exceptional iterns. Details of the goodwill impairment analysis are shown in note 10.
Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries — profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from adjusted results of
the Group as they are unrelated to core trading and can distort a user's understanding of the performance of the Group due to their
infrequent and volatile nature. See note 4.
= Other separately reported items — certain other items are excluded from adjusted results where they are considered large or unusual
enough to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year. Details of these separately disclosed items are shown in note 4.,
The tax related to adjusting items is the tax effect of the items above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes (primarily exceptional
items), calculated using the standard rate of corporation tax. See note 7 for a reconciliation between reported and adjusted tax charges.
Further details of adjusting iterns are included in note 4. A recongiliation between adjusted and statutory earnings per share measures is
shown in note 9.

Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating loss as follows:

Restated?

2018

Note ’ £m

?; . o (20.5)
Exceptional operating costs 4 “ e 2.0
Impairment of goodwill 10 i2.8
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 2.5
Share-based payment expense 25 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Venture Business Research Limited) 14 ' -
‘e (2.4}
Finance costs 6 L 0.2
¢ (T 2.2)

LR 0.8)

e . 7 0.7

“See note 1 (a) for description of prior year restatement

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as cash flow from operations excluding the impact of adjusting
items, which are defined above, and including capital expenditure. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile items not related to the cors trading of the Group and includes the Group’s management of capital expenditure.
Statutory cash flow from operations reconciles to adjusted operating cash as below:

1> 2018

Note £m

Reported cash flow from operating activities 27 6.8
Adjusting items from operations . 25
Working capital impact of adjusting items from operations 1.7
Capital expenditure 3 2.8}
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Underlying revenue growth

The Directors review underiying revenue growth in order to allow a iike for like comparison of revenues between years. Underlying revenues
therefore exclude the impact of event timing differences, revenue contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses and other
revenue streams that are not expected to be ongoing in future years.

Statutory revenue growth reconciles to underlying revenue growth as follows:

Reported revenue 2018 42.6 7.7 50.3

Disposed business — Venture Business Research {VBR') - (0.3} 0.3)

Closed event — Marketing Week Live (1.5 - (1.5)

Reported revenue 2019 40.7 8.2 489

Disposed business — Venture Business Research (VBR'} - 0.1) 0.1}

Closed event — Marketing Week Live {1.1) - .
Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible
assets and amortisation and impairment of intangible asssts cther than those acquired through a business combination. It is used by

the Directors as a measure to review performance of the Group and forms the basis of some of the Group's financial covenants under its
revolving credit faclity. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

Restated?

2018

Note £m

Adjusted operating loss (as above) 2.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 0.9
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 -
Amortisation of computer software 11 2.7
Impairment of computer software 11 T -
Adjusted EBITDA 14

“See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

Net cash/{debt)

Net cash/{debt) is not a measure defined by IFRS, Net cash/{debt) is calculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the
Group’s financing arrangements. The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clarity over the Group's liquidity as a whole. A
reconciliation between net debt and statutory measures is shown in note 27.

{c) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial staterments of Centaur Media Plc and all of its subsidiaries after elimination of
intercompany transactions and balances.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returna from its involvement with the entity and has the abiiity to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group until the date that the Group ceases to control
them. In the statement of comprehensive income, the results of subsidiaries for which control has ceased are presented separately as
discontinued operations in the year in which they have been disposed of and in the comparative year.

On the disposal of a subsidiary, assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are de-recognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position, earnings up to the date of loss of control are retained in the Group, and a profit/{loss) on disposal is recognised measured as
consideration received less the fair value of assets and liabilities disposed of.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.
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(d} Foreign currency translation

i} Functional and presentation currency

Iterns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The consclidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling,
which is the Group and Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Fereign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and lesses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-rmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

{iii} Group Companies

The results and financial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency differant from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expensss for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates {unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

(e} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in accordance with IFRS 15. Revenue is measured at the transaction price, which is the amount of consideration

to which Centaur expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer. Judgemernt may arise

in timing and allocation of transaction price when there are multiple performance obligations in one contract, however an annual impact
assessment is performed which has confirmed that the impact is immaterial in both the current year and comparative year. Revenue arises
from the sales of premium content, marketing services, training and advisory, events, marketing and advertising solutions, and telemarketing
services in the normal course of business, net of discounts and value added tax. Goods and services exchanged as part of a barter
transaction are recognised in revenue at the fair value of the geods and services provided. Returns, refunds and other similar allowances,
which have historically been low in volume and immaterial in magnitude, are accounted for as a reduction in revenue as they arise.

Where revenue is deferred it is held as a balance in deferred income on the consolidated statement of financial position. At any given
staternent of financial position date, this deferred income is current in nature and is expected to wholly be recognised in revenue in

the following financial year, with the exception of returns and credit notes, which have historically been low in volume and immaterial in
magnitude, Additionally, in the current year, deferred income held in a subsidiary at the point of its disposal will not have been recognised in
revenue for the Group for the year.

The Group recognises revenue earned from contracts as individual performance obligations are met, on a stand-alone selling price basis.
This is when value and control of the product or service has transferred, being when the product is delivered to the customer or the period in
which the services are rendered as set out in more detall below.

Premium Content

Revenus from subscripticns is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over the subscription period reflecting the continuous
provision of paid content services over this time. Revenue from individual publication sales is recognised at the point at which the publication
is delivered to the customer. In general the Groug bills customers for premium content at the start of the contract.

Marketing Services

Revenue from campaign work and consultancy contracts is recegnised when the Group has obtained the right to consideration in exchange
for its performance, which is when a separately identifiable phase (milestone) of a contract has been completed and the value and benefit

of the services rendered have been transferred to the customer. In general the Group bills customers for marketing services up front on a
milestone basis.
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Training and Advisory
Revenue from training and advisory is deferred and recognised over the period of the training or when a separately identifiable milestone of a
contract has been delivered to the customer. In general the Group bills customers for fraining and advisory up front on a milestone basis.

Events
Consideration received in advance for events is deferred and revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the event takes place. In
general, the Group bills customers for events before the event date,

Marketing and Advertising Solutions

Marketing Solutions revenue from display and bespoke campaigns is recognised over the pericd that the service is provided. Sales of online
advertising space are recognised over the penod during which the advertisements are placed. Sales of advertising space in publications
are recognised at the point at which the publication occurs. In general the Group bills customers for marketing and advertising solutions on
delivery.

Telemarketing Services

Revenue from telemarketing services is deferred and recognised over the period that the service is delivered generally according to the
number of hours expended as a proportion of the total hours contracted. In general the Group bills customers for telemarketing senvices in
advance.

(f} Other operating income
Cther operating income includes revenue fram all other operating activities which are not related to the principal activities of the Group.

Included in other operating income is rental incorme and transitional services agreement income.

Rental income is for the sub-lease of properties under lease, which is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term using the
exemption available for short-term ieases under IFRS 16, see note 11}

Transitional services agreement income relates to services provided to the buyers of the Group companies disposed of during the year,
which is recognised at the point in time at which the service Is delivered. The costs associated with this Income are included within net
operating expensas on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

{g) Investments
In the Company's financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value.

Investrments are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the investments fair value iess cost of disposal and its value-in-use.
An asset’s value-in-use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital. Any
impairment is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. If there has been a change in the gstimates used to determine the
investment’s recoverable amount, impairment losses that have been recognised in prior periods may be reversed, This reversal is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

{h} iIncome tax
The tax expense reprasents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based an the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxabls or deductible irt other years, and it further includes iterms that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group and Company's liability for current tax is calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or the initial tecognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and iiabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred fax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates 1o items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is recognised in other cormprehensive income.,
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(i) Leases

Lessee accounting

Under IFRS 16, leases are accounted for on a ‘right-of-use model' reflecting that, at the commencement date, the Group as a lessee

has a financial obligation to make lease payments to the lessor for its right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. The financial
obligation is recognised as a lease liability, and the right to use the underlying asset is recognised as a right-of-use (ROU") asset. The

ROU assets are recognised within property, plant and equipment on the face of the consolidated statement of financial pesition, and are
presented separately in note 12.

The lease lability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments using the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be
readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate {(see note 1{ti(vil)}. Subsequently the lease liabitity is measured at amontised cost, with
interest increasing the carrying amount and lease payments reducing the carrying amount. The carrying amount is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The RCU asset is initially measured at cost which comprises:
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
any initial direct costs; and
an estimate of costs 1o be incurred at the end of the lease term.

Subsequently the ROU asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost on a straight line-basis cver the lease term.

Using the exemption available under IFRS 16 the Group elects not to apply the requirements above to:
Short-term leases; and
Leases for which the underlying asset is of a low value.

In these cases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, or another systematic
basis if that basis is more representative of the agreement.

Lessor accounting

The Group had contracts for the sub-lease of arsas of its Welis Strest property lease. These arrangements were exempt from the
requirements of IFRS 16 under the short-term lease exemption as they all had a lease term of under twelve months from the date of
transition. As such, the income derived from these sub-leasing arrangements is recognised on a straight-line basis and is presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in ‘other operating income’. All arrangements in which the Group acted as a lessor
ceased during the year.

{j} Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amcertisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. An impairment 10ss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset's fair value less cost
of disposal and its value-in-use. An asset's value in use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted
average cost of capital,

{k} Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publications and
exhibitions pricr to the publication date or the date of the event. Cost is measured as all costs of purchase ang other costs incurred in bring
the inventories to their present location and condition.

(I} Property, plant and equipment

See naote 1{) for right-of-use assets. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The historical cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of
acquisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight line-basis over the expected
useful economic lives to the Groug over the following periods:

Leasehold improvements — 10 years or the expected length of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings -5to 10 years

Computer equipment -3 to 5 years

Right-of-use assets - over the lease term

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methads are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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{m} intangible assets

{i) Goodwili

Where the cost of a business acquisition exceeds the fair values attributable to the separable net assets acquired, the resulting goodwill
is capitalised and allocated to the cash-generating unit {{CGU’} or groups of CGUSs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combinaticn. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment annually on a Group level or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Each segment is deemed to be a CGU. Goodwill and acquired intangible assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value of the segment is compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Any impairment
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income {in net operating expenses) and is classified as an adjusting item. Impaiment of
goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of a CGU, the attributable amount of gocdwil is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(i) Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships ond non-compete arrangements

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost. Brands and publishing rights, customer refationships and
non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(i} Software

Computer software that is not integral to the operation of the related hardware is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Costs
associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group that will generate probable future
economic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when the criteria of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are met. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

{iv}) Amortisation methods and periods
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the expected usetul economic
lives to the Group over the following periods:

Camputer software -3to 5 years

Brands and publishing rights - 510 20 years

Customer relationships — 3to 10 years or over the term of any specified contract
Separately acquired websites and content - 3 to 5 years

MNon-compete arrangements - Over the term of the arrangement

(n) Employee benefits

(i} Post-employment obligations

The Group and Company contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employess. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in net operating expenses when emplayer contributions become payatile.

(ii) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees. The fair value of the share-based
compensation expense is estimated using either a Monte Carlo or Black-Scholes option pricing mode! and is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in eguity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

Including any market performance conditions;

= Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions {for example, profitabiiity, sales growth targets,
cash flow performance and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

= Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specitied vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on
the non-market vesting and service ¢conditions. [ recognises the impact of the revision to criginal estimates, if any, in the statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury
shares to settle share-based compensation awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its equity instruments to the empioyees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution, only if it is left unsettled, The fair valus of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
cormesponding credit to equity.

R6
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(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions for deferred contingent consideration are measured at fair value. Where the deferred consideration is contingent on the continued
employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight line
basis over the period of the arrangement.

{p} Equity

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity. The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over the nominal
value of those shares is recoegnised in the share premium account. Incremental costs diractly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buyback or share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incrementai costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contributed equity. The Company
also holds a nen-distributable reserve representing the fair value of unvested share-based compensations plans.

Own shares

Own shares consist of treasury shares and shares held within an employee benefit trust. The Company has an employee benefit trust for the
granting of shares to applicable employees.

Own shares are recognised at cost as a deduction from equity shareholders’ funds. Subsequent consideration received for the sale of such
shares is also recognised in equity, with any difference between the sale proceeds and the original cost being taken to retained eamings. No
gain or loss is recognised in the financial statements on transactions in treasury shares.

{q) Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the year in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company’s final dividend for the year, approved by the
sharehclders in the Annual General Meeting.

{r) Segmental reporting

Operating segrments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. In light of the disposals of subsidiaries, the reportable segments of the Group have changed since
the year ended 31 December 2018. In the vear then ended (and in previous years) the three reportable segments of the Group, each of
which were allocated a proportion of corporate income and costs, were:

Marketing {renarmed to Xeim);
»  Financial Services {disposed 31 March 2019); and
+  Professional, which comprised the following portfolios:
Legal, which consisted of The Lawyer and Venture Business Research ('VBR') (VBR was disposed on 13 May 2019);
Human Resources (disposed 30 April 2019);
Travel & Mestings (disposed 30 April 2019); and
Engineering (disposed 31 May 2019).

Consequently, the core operations are now organised arcund the two continuing reportable market-facing segments Xelm and The Lawyer
{the remaining compoenent of the previous Legal portfolio), with corporate income and costs presented separately as "Central”.

Certain prior year comparatives have been updated to reflect current year presentation.
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{s) Financial instruments
The Group has applied IFRS 9, Financiat Instruments as outlined below:

{i} Financial assets

The Group classifies and measures its financial assets in line with one of the three measurement models under IFRS 9: at amortised cost,
fair value through profit or loss, and fair value through other comprehensive income. Management determines the classificaticn of its financial
assets pased on the requirements of IFRS 9 at initial recognition.

They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial position date. These are
classified as noh-current assets. The Group's financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the
staternent of financial position. Please see the following sections.

(i} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are accounted for under IFRS 9 being recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost less any
allowance for expected lifetime credit losses under the *expected credit loss” model. As mandated by IFRS 9, the expected lifetime credit
losses are calculated using the ‘simplified’ approach.

The allowance for expected lifetime cradit losses for trade receivables is established by considering, on a discounted basis, the cash
shortfalls it would incur in various defaults scenarios for prescribed future pericds and multiplying those shortfalls by the probability of each
scenaric occurring. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macrosconomic factors
affecting the ablity of the customers to settle the receivables. The allowance is the sum of these probabillity weighted outcomes. The
allowance and any changes to it are recognised in the statement of comprehensive incorme within net operating expenses. A provision
matrix is used to calculate the allowance for expected lifetime credit losses on trade receivables which is based on historical default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward locking estimates. When a trade receivabie is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group defines a default as failure of a debtor to repay an amount
due as this Js the time at which our estimale of Juluse cash NTuws hos the debtor is affected.

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash gquivalents inciudes cash in hand and depaosits repayable on demand or maturing within three months of the statement of
financial position date.

(iv) Financial liabilities

Debt and trade payables are recognised initially at fair value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and subsequently at
amortised cost,

Interest expense on debt is accounted for using the effective interest method and is recognised in income.

(v} Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{vi) Borrowings

Borrowings are initialty recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carried subsequently at amortised cost. Costs of
borrowings are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred or, where appropriate, across the term of the related
borrowing.

{vii) Receivablies from and payables to subsidiaries
The Company has amounts receivable from and payable to subsidiaries which are recognised at fair value. Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries are assessed annually for recoverability under the requirements of IFRS 3,

{viil} Derivative financial instruments
The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges.

(t) Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires management to
exercise its iudgement and to make estimates. The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant tc the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

(i) Carrying value of goodwill, ofher intangible assets and Company investment estimate

In assessing whether goodwill, other intangible fixed assets and the Company’s investment are impaired, the Group uses a discounted
cash flow model which includes foracast cash flows and estimates of future growth. If the results of operations in future periods are lower
than included in the cash flow model, impairments may be triggered. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-calculations.
Further details of the assumptions and sensitivities in the discounted cash flow model are included in notes 10 and 13.
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Intangible assets arising on business combinations are identified based on the Group’s understanding of the acquired business and previous
experience of similar businesses. Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and
appropriate, using information reviewed at Board level where available, Discount rates applied in calculating the values of intangible assets
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are calculated specifically for each acquisition and adjusted to reflect the respective risk profile of
each individuai asset based on the Group's past expertience of similar assets.

(i} Recoverability of trade receivables estimate

The allowance for expected lifetime credit losses for trade receivables is calculated in line with IFRS 9. This is established by considering on
a discounted basis the cash shortfalls it would incur in various default scenarics for prescribed future periods and multiplying the shertfalls
by the probability of each scenario occurring. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. Further details about trade receivables are included in
note 17 and information about the credit risk and expected lifetime credit losses are shown in note 28.

(iif) Adjusting items judgement

The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS. Judgement is required to ensure that the classification and presentation of certain
iterns as adjusting, including exceptional iterns, is appropriate and consistent with the Group's accounting policy. Further details about the
amounts classified as adjusting are included in notes 1(b) and 4.

{iv} Share based payments estimate
The fair value of the share-based compensation expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income requires the use of
estimates. Details regarding the deterrnination of fair value of these costs are set out in note 1{n){i}.

(v) Deferred tox judgement and estimate

The calculation of deferred tax asssts and kabilities requires judgement. Whers the ultimate tax treatment is uncertain, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on an estimate of future taxable income and recoverability. Where a change in circumstances
occurs, or the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax balances in the year in which that change or outcome is known. The accounting policy regarding deferred tax is set out above
in note 1{h).

(vi) Valuation of intangibles estimate
Intangibles assets acquired in a business combination are required to be recognised separately from goodwill and amortised over their useful
life. The Group has separately recognised computer software, brands and customer relationships in the acguisitions made (see note 11).

The fair value of these acquired intangibles is based on valuation techniques that require inputs based on assumptions about the future and
estimates related to current market conditions.

The Group also makes assumptions about the useful life of the acquired intangibles as outlined in note 1{mj(iv).

fvii) Lease incremental borrowing rate estimate

The adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 20192 requires the use of an incremental borrowing rate ('IBR') to discount minimum future lease
payments to present value. The IBR is an estimate used in accounting for leases under IFRS 16 where the interest rate impilicit in the lease
cannct be readily determined. The IBR is the rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. This
is calculated by using LIBOR as a reference rate and adjusting for the Group's specific borrowing rate on its existing revolving credit facility.
Additionally, for each individual contract a lease specific adjustment is made where necessary by using market yields on similar assets as a
data point.

2 Segmental reporting

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, reviewing the Group's internal reporting on a monthly
basis in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

In light of the disposals of subsidiaries in the current year, the reportable segments of the Group have changed since the year ended 31
December 2018, In the year then ended (and in previous years) the three reportable segments of the Group were as follows, with corperate
income and costs allocated to each on an appropriate basis:

#  Marketing (renamed Xeim);
+  Financial Services {disposed 31 March 2018} and
Professional, the aggregate of the following portfolios:
Legal {which consists of The Lawyer and VBR (until disposal of VBR on 13 May 2019);
Hurnan Resources (disposed 30 April 2019);
Travel & Meetings (disposed 30 April 2019); and
Engineering (disposed 31 May 2019},
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2 Segmental reporting continued

Consequently, the core operations are now organised around the two continuing reportable market-facing segments: Xeim and The Lawyer
{the remaining component of the previous Legal portfolio). Corporate income and costs have been presented separately as “Central”. The
Group believes this is the most appropriate presentation of segmental reporting in order for the user to understand the core operations of
the Group. There is no inter-segmentai revenue.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwill, inventories and trade receivables.
Segment liabilities comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income.

Corporate assets and liabilities primarily comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, current and deferred tax balances, cash
and cash equivalents, borrowings and lease liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and includes additions resuiting from
acquisitions through business combinations.

40.7 8.2 48.9 - 7.0
Cther operating income - _ - 1.6 _

Adjusted operating
profit 7 {loss) 1) 4.1 2.3 6.4 {7.5) 2.9

Exceptional operating
costs 4 0.5 (1.0 (1.5) {3.2) : (0.1)

Amortisation of acquired
intangibles 11 2.4) - (2.4) - (0.1}

Share-based payments 25 - - - 0.1 : -

Loss on disposal of
subsidiary 14 - 0.1) (0.1) - -

Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries 14 - - - - 78

1.2 1.2 2.4 (10.8) 10.5 !
Finance costs 6 . -
{Loss} / profit before tax 10.5
Taxation 7 : (0.6}

Segment assets 57.8 18.7 76.5 - L -
Corporate assets 10.8 -

Segment liabilities (17.4 3.8 {21.2) - K -
Corporate liabiiities (4.8) - -

Capital expenditure
(tangible and intangible
assets) 0.8 01 09 0.6 T -

20
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Other operating income
Adjusted operating profit

Exceptional operating
casts

Impairment of goodwill
Amortisation of acquired
intangibles

Share-based payments

Profit on disposal of
subsidiary

Finance costs

{Loss) / profit before tax
Taxation

Segment assets
Corporate assets

Segment liabilities
Corporate liabilites

Capital expenditure
(tangible and intangible
assets)

2 See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

1{b)

4
10

11
25

14

Supplemental Information

Revenue by Geographical Location

42.6

33

©0.3)
(12.8)

.4
©.2)

{12.4)

56.6

(11.4)

1.9

7.7

20

{0.3)

©.1)

1.6

2.4)

0.3

50.3

5.3

{0-6)
(12.8)

{2.9
{0.2)

(10.8)

74.3

{13.8)

2.2

0.8
7.5}

{1.4)

{©.6)

(9.5)

2.9

&.7)

0.8

20.2

7.4

0.5
0.3

0.3

041
6.4

6.4
(1.2}
5.2
18.4

18.4
(8.4)

8.4}

The Group's revenues from continuing operations from external customers by geographical location are detailed below:

United Kingdom

Europe (excluding United Kingdom)

North America
Rest of world

¢ See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

Restated?
Xaim
2018

£m

34.5
1.7
4.2
2.2

42.6

Restated?
The Lawyer
2018

£Em

6.1
0.7
0.4
0.5
7.7

Restated?
Total
2018

£m

40.68
2.4
4.6
2.7

50.3

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The Cirectars therefore consider that the Group currently

operates in a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom.
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2 Segmental reporting continued

Revenue by type
The Group's revenue from continuing operations by type is as follows:

Restated?® R d? Restated?

b Xeim The Lawyer Total

1o 2018 2018 2018

N £m £m £m

Pramium Content { K 11.2 3.2 14.4
Marketing Services 1 45 - 45
Training and Advisory . 7 8.0 - 8.0
Events B ’ G 4.7 1.8 6.5
Marketing and Advertising Solutions : 5 4.6 2.7 7.3
Telemarketing Services . K 9.6 - 9.6
426 7.7 50.3

2 See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

The accounting policies for each of these revenue streams is disclosed in note 1 {g}, including the timing of revenue recognition. There are
some contracts for which revenue has not yet been recognised and is being held in deferred income, see note 21. This deferred income is
all current and is expected to be recognised as revenue in 2020.

Other operating income
The Group's other operating income from continuing operations by type is as follows:

2018
m

Sale of goods and services
Rental income 0.8
Transitional services agreement income -
0.8

Rental income relates to the sublease of part of the Group's rented property in Londen. There is not expected to be income in respect of this
going forward as this property has been vacated in December 2019. See note 29 for further details.

Transitional services agreement income relates to services provided to the buyers of the Group companies dispesed of during the year.
There is not expected o be income in respect of this going forward as all transitional services agreements have ceased during the year.
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3 Net operating expenses
Continuing operating loss is stated after charging:

Note
Employee benefits expense 5
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 12
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 12
Amortisation of intangible assets 11
impairment of intangible assets 11
Impairment of geodwill 10

Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Menture
Business Research Limited)

Cther exceptional operating costs 4
Property costs .
Repairs and maintenance expenditure ; e

Impairment of trade receivables 28
Share-based payment expense 25
IT expenditure

Other staff related costs
Marketing expenditure C
Other operating expenses - H

Cost of sales ; B
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

! Adjusted results exclude adjusting iterns, as detailed in note 1 (b}
2 See note 1 () for description of pnor year restatement

Services provided by the Company's auditor

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial
statements

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

¢ a 2

Audit related assurance services

-

Restated?
Adjusted
Results’
2018

fm

303

0.9

2.7

3.3
0.1
0.2

3.1
2.5
2.1
8.1
53.3
19.6
0.1
338
83.3

Restated?
Adjusting
tems'
2018

£€m

1.6

2.5

12.8

0.4

Restated?
Statutory
Results
2018

fm

31.9

0.9

5.2

12.8

.4
3.3
0.1
c.z
.8
3.1
2.5
21
8.1
71.4
19.6
0.1
517
71.4

2018
£'000

214

58
272
25
25
297

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial statements include non-recurring fees of

£72,000 {2018: £34,000).

a2
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4 Adjusting items

As discussed in note 1{b}, certain items are presented as adjusting. These are detailed below:

Restated”

2018

Note £m

Exceptional operating costs

Staff related restructuring costs {including external empiloyment advice costs) 5 0.4
Costs relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives 03
Divestment programme related costs 1.3
Exceptional operating costs E 2.0
Impairmen? of goodwill 10 12.8
Amortisation of acquired intangible asssts 1 25
Share-based payment expense 25 T 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 8,14 Y -
Adjusting items to profit before tax ’ 18.1
Tax refating to adjusting items 7 0.7)
. 17.4
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 8,14 0.1)
Exceptional costs 8 0.5
Impairment of goodwill 10 0.3
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets " 0.3
Tax relating to adjusting items 7 0.2
0.8

18.2

?Sea note 1 (a) far description of prior year restatement

Exceptional costs

Staff related restructuring costs (including external employment advice costs)

In the current year staff related restructuring costs of £2.4m related to the Group's cost reduction plan following the completion of the
divestment programme in 2019 and £0.1m of related external employment advice. During 2018 staff related restructuring costs of £0.2m
related to the closure of the E-consultancy Asia Pagific office, £0.1m related to restructuring of the Xeim portfolio and £0.1m related to the
restructuring of the in-house production function.

Costs relating fo strategic corporate restructuring initiatives
In the prior year these relate to professional fees for the corporate simplification programme o restructure the Group ahead of the
divestment programme announced in October 2018,

Divestment programme related costs

In both the current and the prior year divestment programme related costs include professional fees incurred relating to the sales process for
The Lawyer of £1.2m (2018: £0.1m) and management incentives of £1.0m {2018: £1.2m) related to that programme. These managerment
incentives sit in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in Note 3 along with staff related restructuring costs {excluding external employment advice
costs),

Other adjusting items
Other adjusting items relate to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets (see note 11) and share-based payment costs (see note 25} as
well as the items discussed below:

Goodwill impairment
In the prior year, an impairment of £13.1m (£12.8m and £0.3m in continuing and discontinued operations respectively) has been recognised
against goodwill primarily relating to events to be closed and other businesses within the Xeim portfclio. See note 10 for further details,

Loss / profit on disposaf of subsidiaries

In the current year the loss on disposal of a subsidiary in continuing operations of £0.1m related to the disposal of Venture Business
Research Limited (*VBR"). This is not presented in discontinued operations as it does not represent a separate major line of business and
therefore has been included in continuing operations.,
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The profit on disposal of subsidiaries in discontinued operations relates to the subsidiaries sold in the divestment programme. See note 14
for further details. In the prior year £0.1m profit on disposal arose in relation to the 2017 disposal of the Group’s Home Interest segment

following the agreement of final completion accounts.
5 Directors and employees

Note
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Qther pension costs
Adjusted staff costs

Exceptional staff related restructuring costs (excluding
external employment advice costs) 4

Equity-settled share-based payments 25

2 8ea note 1 (a) for description of prior year restatement

Restated?
2018
Group
£m

27.6

3.1
Yk 0.8
3 31.5

G.4
.8
32.7

2018
Company

1.0
0.2
0.1
1.3

0.8
21

The staff costs presented above are for continuing operations and exclude all staff costs relating to the disposed subsidiaries as specified in

note 14, which are presented in discontinued operations.

The average monthly number of employees employed during the year, including Directors, was:

Xeirn

The Lawyer
Central
Discentinued

2018

v Group

Number
605

55

10

88
758

2018
Company
Number

4

4

With the exception of MarketMakers, a brand under Xeim, the Group'’s employees have contracts of service with Centaur Communications
Limited and are paid by Chiron Communications Limited, both of which are Group companies. As the employees provide services to the
Cormpany, their costs are recharged and the relevant disclosures are made in the financial statements. The MarketMakers' employees are

employed and paid by MarketMakers Incorporated Limited.
Key management compensation

Salaries and short-term employment benefits
Termination benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payments

Key management is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members.

Aggregate Directors' remuneration

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind
Termination benefits

Charge under long term incentive schermes
Post-employment benefits

2018
£m

1.8
01
01
0.6
2.6

2018
£m

0.9

0.3
01
1.3
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5 Directors and employees continued
Highest paid Director’s remuneration

2018

£m

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind : 0.4
Termination benefits -
Charge under long-term incentive schemes 0.2
0.6

No Directors exercised share options during the current or prior year. One Directors was paid compensation in respect of loss of office
during the year (2018 — Nil). Further details of Directors’ remuneration are included in the Remuneration Committee Report between pages
45 1o 61.

6 Finance costs

2018

Note s £m

interest payable on revolving credit facility -
Commitment fees and amortisation of arrangement fee in respect of revalving credit facility 0.2
Lease interest 20 -
Total finance costs 0.2

Interest and fees on revolving credit facility

These finance costs are in relation to the £25m revolving credit faciiity, none of which is drawn-down at 31 December 2619 (2018: £nii).
As Ihdicated by the consolidated cash fiow statement, all draw-downs from this facilily during the year were also repaid within the year.
Finance costs in relation to this facility resulted in cash outflows by the Company and Group of £0.2m during the year (2018: £0.4m,.

Lease interest

On the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, lease liabilities were recognised for the Group's property lease arrangements. £0.1m of
interest on these leases was incurred during the year. There was no interest on lease lisbilities in the prior year when these leases were
accounted for under IAS 17 as operating leases. Please refer to notes 1 (a} and 20 for further details.

7 Taxation
2018 2018 218
Continuing Discontinued Total
Note ; £m £m £m
22
UK Corporation Tax N : ©.6) 1.4 0.8
Overgeas tax 0.3 - Q.3
(0.3) 1.4 1.1
15
Current period ’ o 0.7 0.2) 0.9
Adjustrments in respect of prior
years ; ©.1) B 0.)
{0.8} {0.2) (1.0)
’ : ) (1.1} 1.2 0.1
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the {loss) / profit in the staterment of comprehensive income as follows:

(Lossg) / profit before tax

Tax at the UK rate of corporation tax of
19.00% {2018:; 19.00%:}

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes

Profit on disposal

Effects of changes in tax rate on
deferred tax balances

Deferred tax adjustment on business
disposal

Deferrad tax not recognised
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Differgnt tax rates of subsidiaries in
other jurisdictions

B

2018
Caontinuing
£m

{20.5)

(3.9)

2.7

0.1
0.1

0.1
{1.1)

2018
Discontinued
£m

6.4

12

1.2

2018
Total
£m

(14.1}

2.7

2.7

0.1
@.n

0.1
0.1

The Finance Act 2015 included legislation to reduce the rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17% from 1 April
2020, This change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The government has announced that the rate of corporation

tax will not be reduced from 1 April 2020 and that it will remain at 19%, but this has not yet been enacted and therefore, the Groug's
deferred tax balances continue to be recorded at 17%.

A reconciliation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense taking account of adjusting items as discussed in note 1(b)

and 4 is shown beiow:

Reported tax {credit) / expense
Effects of:

Armortisation of acquired intangible
assets

Share-based payments
Exceptional expenses
Adjusted tax expense / (credit}

2018
Continuing
£m

¢ (1.1)

0.3
0.1
0.3

(©.4)

2018
Discontinued
£m

1.2

0.1

0.1
1.4

2018
Total
£m

0.1

0.4
0.1
0.4
1.0
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8 Discontinued operations
In the current year, the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:

Centaur Financial Platforms Limited ('FIN’) on 31 March 2019,

Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited {T&M'} on 30 April 2019;
- Centaur Human Resources Limited {'HR"} on 30 Apri{ 2019; and

Centaur Engineering Limited {'ENG') on 31 May 2019,
The disposals were effected in line with the Group's strategy to simplify its structure, to improve operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands.
A profit of £7.8m arose on the disposal of these subsidiaries being the difference between the proceeds of disposals and the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets and attributable goodwill, less transaction costs. Details of these disposals can be found in note 14.
In addition to the above named subsidiaries, the Group disposed of its Venture Business Research Limited ('VBR'} subsidiary on 13 May
2019 to an employee of VBR. A loss on disposal of £0.1m arose on this disposal as detailed in note 14. The loss on disposal, as well as the
operational results of VBR have not been included in discontinued operations as it does not represent a separate majer line of business and
these have therefore been included in continuing operations.
In the prior year £0.1rm profit on disposal arose in relation to the 2G17 disposal of the Group’s Home Interest segment ('HI') following the
agreement of final completion accounts.
The results of the discontinued operations, which were included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
cash flow statement, were as follows:

FIN T&M HR ENG HI Total
Year ended
31 December 2018
£m
Revenue s 8.3 6.4 3.2 2.3 - 20.2
Expenses ‘ . (5.4) {4.8) {2.2) (1.5} - {13.9
{Loss) / profit on disposal : - - - - - 0.1 01
. 29 1.6 1.0 0.8 0.1 6.4
Attributable tax expense (0.6} 0.3} 0.2} (0.1} - (1.2)
23 1.3 0.8 0.7 0.1 52
Loss / {prefit) on disposal ‘ - - - - 0.1} {0.1)
Exceptional costs : 0.3 0.1 0.1 - - 0.5
Impairment of goodwill 0.3 - - - - 0.3
Amortisation of acquired

intangible assets ; 0.2 - 0.1 - - 0.3
Tax relating to adjusting items' 0©.2) - - - - {0.2)
o . - . < 0.6 0.1 0.2 - (0.1) 0.8
2.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 - 6.0

FIN T&M HR ENG HI Total

Year ended
31 December 2018
£m

Operating cash flows : - - - - - -
Investing cash flows - - - — - -
Financing cash flows - - - - - _ -

. { — - - - - —

3

! Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1 (b}

The attributable tax expense stated in the table above is derived from the profit of discontinued operations. No income tax expense arose on
the profit or loss on disposals.
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9 Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings per share ('EPS’) is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number

of shares in issue during the year. 1,573,134 (2018: 857,931) shares held in the employee benefit trust and 6,964,613 (2018 6,964,613}

shares held in treasury have been excluded in arriving at the weighted average numbser of shares.

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares. This comprises share options and awards (including those granted under the share save plan} granted to Directors

and employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share have alsc been presented on an adjusted continuing and discontinued basis, as the Directors believe
that these measures are more reflective of the underlying performance of the Group. These have been calculated as follows:

Restated?
2018
' Eamings
7 (Loss)
attributable to
owners of the
. parent
Note ‘ : £m
Continuing operations <0 (19.4)
Cantinuing and discontinued operations - ' (14.2}
Options: Continuing operations -
Options: Continuing and discontinued
operations s -
Continuing operations 3 : (19.4)
Continuing and discontinued operations . (14.2)
Continuing operations
Basic Ty (19.4)
Other exceptional costs 4 o 2.0
Impairment of goodwill 10 - 12.8
Amortisation of acquired intangibles i i1 25
Share-based payments 25 8 0.8
Loss on disposatl of subsidiary 14 4 -
Tax effect of above adjustments 7 ' I {0.7)
Discontinued operations
Basic . $ ) 5.2
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 14 L (0.1)
Other axceptional costs 4 - . v 0.5
Impairment of goodwill 10 . - 0.3
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 11 [ ' 0.3
Tax effect of above adjustment 7 - 0.2
[N Y P
Continuing operations [ : 2.0)
Continuing and discontinued operations 4.0
DR o4 £r B N
Options: Continuing operations - -
Options: Continuing and discontinued
operations : -
Continuing operations : . L} (2.0
Continuing and discontinued operations St L 5 4.0

Restated?
2018
Weighted
average
nurmber of
shares
millions

143.9
143.9

143.9
143.8

143.9

143.9
143.9

10.8

143.89

154.7

Restated?
2018
Earnings /
{Loss) per
share
Pence

13.5)
(9.9

(13.5)
©.9

(13.5)
1.4
8.9
1.7
0.8

{C.5)

3.6
o1
0.4
0.2
0.2
@1

(1.4
2.8

.4
28
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9 Earnings/{loss) per share continued

Restated Restated” Restated?

Adjusted Adjusted Statutory

Results’ [tems! Results

2018 2018 2018

£m £m £m
Fully diluted from continuing operations {1.4p) {(12.1p) (13.5p)
Fully diluted from discontinued operations 4.0p (0.4p) 3.6p

Fully diluted from continuing and

2.6p (12.5p) {9.9p)

discontinued

! Adjusted resulis exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1 (b}

? See nota 1 (a) for description of pror year restatemant

In 2019 and 2018, there was no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and diluted loss per
share for continuing operations as the effect of all potentially dilutive shares outstanding was anti-dilutive,

10 Goodwill

Note
At 1 January 2018 159.4
Additions in the year 0.1
At 31 December 2018 159.5
Cisposal of subsidiaries 14 48.4)
At 1 January 2018 83.8
Impairment for the year 131
At 31 December 2018 96.9
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 (38.0)
At 31 December 2018 B2.6

Additions in the pricr year relate to the additional consideration paid for the acquisition of MarketMakers in 2017 following the finalisation of
contingent consideration paid during the year.

In the prior year, the largest adjusting item of £12.8m relates to the impairment of goodwill which primarily related to events to be closed and
other businesses within the Xeim portfolio. Following a review of expected cash flows from the Financial Services portfolio, the carrying value
of its goodwill was impaired by £0.3m,

Disposals in the current year relate to the disposal of Centaur Financial Platforms Limited {net book value £4.8m), Centaur Media Travel and
Meeting Limited {net book value £5.6m), Centaur Hurman Resources Limited (net book value Enil} and Centaur Engineering Limited (net book
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value £nil). See note 14 for further details.

Goodwill by segment

Each brand is deemed to be a Gash Generating Unit ('{CGLU"), being the lowest level at which cash flows ars separately identifiable.

Goodwill is attributed to individual CGUs and has historically been reviewed at the operating segment level for the purposes of the annual
impairment review as this is the level at which management menitors goodwill. In light of our simplification plan, Financial Services and Other
Professional segments have been disposed of and the remaining segments are Xsim and The Lawyer:

Note
48.9 16.0 5.1 5.6 75.6
Additions 0.1 - - - 01
Impairment charge {12.8) - {0.3) - (13.1)
36.2 18.0 4.8 5.6 62.6
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 - - 4.8) (5.6) (10.4)

Impairment testing of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

At 31 Dacember 2018, goodwill and acquired intangible assets (see note 11) were tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value of the segment is compared with
its recaverable amount. Recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use {"VIL').

The Group estimates the VIU of its CGUs using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the
assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% (2018: 11.3%}. The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's weighted
average cost of capital and is used across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered to have similar risks
and rewards.

The key assumptions used in calcuiating VIU are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calculation and appilied a terrninal growth rate of 2.6%
(2C18: 2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues.

The assumptions used in the calculaticns of VIU for each segment have been derived based on a combination of past experience and

management’s expectations of future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business

where management have identified the key growth and focus areas which will detiver the targets, and conversely which areas of the

business will be de-prioritised over that pericd. The forecasts reflect the transformed Group which is more focussed and streamlined in erder

to deliver higher margins and profits.

In the prior year, before impairment testing, goodwill of £48.9m, £21.6m and £5.1m was allocated to the Xeim, Professional, and Financial

Senvices segments respectively. Prior to a full impairment test, the goodwill of each segment was reviewed. This led to an impairment

in 2018 of £12.8m to be recognised in Xeim primarily related to events to be closed and other businesses within the portfolio, and an

impairment of £0.3m in the Financial Services segment following a review of expected cash flows.

In the current year the goodwill and acguired intangible assets carrying values of the two continuing segments, Xeim and The Lawyer, have

been compared with their recoverable amount in the impairment tests. The forecast used in the calculation is the Group's MAP22 plan which

Is discussed in the Strategic Report. The key assumptions and variables in this plan are sensitised in isolation and in combination. The main

sensitivities applied to the key drivers are cutlined below.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the VIU calculations, holding all other variables constant, to:

i}  apply a 10% reduction to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash flows. No impairment would occur in either of the
segments.

{il apply a 1% increase in discount rate from 12.8% to 13.8%. No impairment waould occur in either of the segments.

{iiy reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2.5% to 1.5%. No impairment would occur in either of the segments.
A key sensitivity is EBITDA growth in both Xeim and The Lawyer, which is driven by a combination of segment profit growth and the Group’s

disclosed annualised overhead cost savings target of £5m. As the Group has already achieved the run-rate savings for this target by the end
of December 2019, further sensitivities have been performed only over the profitable revenue growth from Xeim and The Lawyer:

Xeim — In the base case the CAGR of EBITDA for the forecast pericd of 2019 to 2022 is 16%. VIU exceeds the carrying amcunt by £29.2m.
EBITDA CAGR would have to fall by 9% to 7% in order for the VIU to equal the carrying amount,

The Lawyer — In the base case the CAGR of EBITDA for the forecast period of 2019 to 2022 is 12%. VIU exceeds the carrying amount by
£13.8m. EBITDA CAGR would have to fall by 12% to nil in order for the VIU to equal the carrying amount
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11 Other intangible assets

Note

At 1 January 2018 161 56 15.4 4.7 418
Additions - separately acquired 1.8 - - - 18
Additions - internally generated 0.7 - - - 0.7

18.6 5.6 15.4 4.7 44.3
Additions - separately acquired 0.8 - - - 0.8
Additions - internally generated 0.4 - - - 04
Cisposal of subsidiaries 14 1.2) 3.5 (2.4} {1.5) (8.6
At 1 January 2018 9.5 19 7.2 4.6 23.2
Amortisation charge for the year 2.9 0.4 2.2 0.1 5.6

12.4 23 94 4.7 28.8
Amortisation charge for the year 2.6 0.3 2.1 - 5.0
Impairment charge for the year 0.3 - - - 0.3
Disposals of subsidiaries 14 (1.1) (1.7) (1.9) (1.5) 6.2)
Net book value at 31 December 2018 6.2 3.3 6.0 - 155
Net book value at 1 January 2018 6.6 37 8.2 0.1 18.6

* Amortisation on acquired ntangible assets from business combinations is presented as an adjustng tem in note 4 {see note 1{b) for further infermation}). Total amortisabion of £2.5m
(2018: £2.8m) on such assels 1s all amortsation on assats in the asset groups “Brands and publishing rights’, *Customer relationships’ and *Separately acquired websites and centent’
of £2.4m (2018: £2.7m) in addition to £G.1m {2018: £0.1m} of amortisation on aoquired ntangible assets in the asset group 'Computer software’. These total amounts have been spit
between continung and discontinued operations in nate 4.

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets is included in net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

The amortisation charge in continuing operations is £4.9m (2018: £5.2m) and in discontinued operations is £0.1m {2018: £0.4m). The
impairment charge for the year is wholly in continuing operations and relates to obsolete software.

Other intangible assets are tested annually for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 at a segment level by comparing the carrying value
with its recoverable amount. Please see note 10 for further details.

The Company has no intangible assets {2018: £nil).
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Note

At 1 January 2018
Additions - separately acquired

Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 (1
January 2019)

Additions - separately acquired

At 1 January 2018

Depreciation charge for the year
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment charge for the year

f
<

Net book value at 31 December 2018
Net book value at 1 January 2018

Leasehold
improvements
£m

2.2

2.2

1.3
0.3
1.6
0.4
0.2

0.6
0.9

Fixtures
and fittings
£m

0.6
0.1
o7

c3
G2
0.5
C.1

0.2
0.3

Computer
equipment
£m

1.3
0.4
1.7

0.2

0.8
0.4
1.2
0.2

0.5
0.5

ROU assets -
property

2.3
3.2

16
0.2

Total
£m

4.1
0.5
4.6

2.3
3.4

2.4
0.9
3.3
2.3
0.4

1.3
1.7

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment is included in net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive

income.

The depreciation and impairment charge for the year is wholly in continuing operations. The impairment relates to leasehold improvernents in

the Wells Street office which was vacated by December 2019.
The Company has no property, plant and equiprment at 31 December 2019 {2018: £nil).
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13 Investments

At 1 January 2018 146.2
Transfer from amounts receivable from subsidiaries 4.9
At 1 January 2018 12.2
Impairment charge for the year 1341
At 31 December 2018 253
impairment charge for the year 35.7
Net book value at 31 December 2018 1258
Net ook value at 1 January 2018 134.0

Following an internal corporate restructure in the prior year, £4.9m of intercompany balances due from subsidiaries of Centaur Media plc
were capitalised.

Impairment testing of the investment

In assessing whether an impairment of the investment is reguired, the carrying value of the investment is compared with its recoverable
amount, The recoverable amount is measured based con value-in-use ('VIU). As outlined in the tables below the carrying value of the
investment represents the Company’s direct ownership of Centaur Communications Limited (*CCL'). COL in turn directly or indirectly controls
the rest of the Group's subsidiaries. Therefore, the VIU of the Company’s investment in CCL is supported by the operations of the entire
Group.

In the prior year the Company impaired its investment following an impairment test which identified the VIU no longer supported the carrying
value of the investment. After this impairment at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the investment was fully supported by the future
cash flows of alf the subsidiaries owned by the Group at that date.

In the current year, due to the disposals of the Group's subsidiaries noted below, the Group’s cash fiows and therefore its VIU was reduced.
This was identified as an indication of impairment of the Company’s investment carrying value and a full impairment assessment was carried
out. Animpairment of £35.7m was identified and recognised in the Company’s staternent of comprehensive income. The remaining balance
is supported by the underlying trads of the Group.

The Group estimates the VIU using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the assets and
discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% {2018: 11.3%). The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's weighted average cost
of capital.

The key assumptions used in calculating VIU are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calculation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5%
(2018: 2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues.

The assumptions used in the calculations of VIU have been derived based on a combination of past experience and management’s
expectations of future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business where
management have identified the key growth and focus areas which will deliver the targets, and conversely which areas of the business will
be de-prioritised over that period. The forecasts reflect the transtormed Group which is more focussed and streamlined in order to deliver
higher margins and profits. Sensitivities are applied to each of the key assumptions and variables in isclation and in combination, in line with
those sensitivities applied for goodwill impairment testing as outlined in note 10.

EBITDA growth is driven by a combination of profit growth and the Group’s disclosed annualised overhead cost savings target of £5m.

As the Group has already achieved the run-rate savings for this target by the end of December 2019, further sensitivities have been
performed only over the profitable revenue grewth from Xeim and The Lawyer. In the forecast applied to derive the VIU which had resuited
in the impairment noted above, EBITDA CAGR for the Group is 11%. If the EBITDA CAGR for the Group were to fall by 5% to 6% then the
additional impairment indicated would be £22.6m.
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The Group disposed of its interest in the following subsidiaries during the year:

Centaur Engineering Limited
Centaur Financial Platforms Limited
Centaur Human Resources Limited
Centaur Media Travel and Meetings
Limited

Venture Business Research Limited

100
100
100

100
100

Other publishing activities
Research data and analysis
Events and information services

Other publishing activities
Research data and analysis

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

31 May 2019
31 March 2019
30 April 2019

30 April 2019
13 May 2019

The net profit on disposals of these subsidiaries was £7.7m (£0.1m loss on the dispesal of VBR and £7.8m profit on the disposal of the

other four subsidiaries). Ses note 14 for further details.
At 31 December 2019, the Group has controi over the following subsidiaries:

Centaur Communications Limited'
Centaur Media USA Inc.2

Centaur Newco 2018 Limited
Chiron Communications Limited
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pty Limited®
E-consultancy Australia Pty Limited*
E-consultancy LLCS
E-consultancy.com Limited
MarketMakers Incorporated Limitea®
Mayfield Publishing Limited

Pro-talk Ltd

Taxbriefs Holdings Limited

Taxbriefs Limited

Thelawyer.com Limited

Xeim Limited
Your Business Magazine Limited

! Directly owned by Centaur Media Plc

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
160

Helding company and agency services
Digital information, training and events
Media representation services

Digital information, training and events
Dormant

Digital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Telemarketing and Research
Investment cormpany

Bigital Publishing

Holding company

Digital and print publishing

Publishing of consumer and business journals and

periodicals
Digital information services
Investment company

2 Registered address is 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400 Wilmington, DE19808, USA. Functional currency is USD.
® Registered address is 30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712, Functionai currency is USD.
* Registered address is Level 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia. Functional currency is AUD.

* Registered address is 41 East, 11 Street, 11FI, New York, NY 10003, USA. Functional currency is USD,

® Ragistered address is 1000 Lakeside North Harbour Western Road, Portsmoutr, Hampshire, POG 3EN

The registerad address of all subsidiary companies, with the exception of those identified above, changed from 78 Wells Strest, London,
W1T 3QIN, United Kingdom to Floor M, 10 York Road, Londen, SE1 7ND, United Kingdom on 2 December 2019. The functional currency
of all subsidiaries is GBF except for those identified above. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all
entities controlled by the Company at 31 December 2019.

United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Australia

United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
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14 Disposal of subsidiaries

In the current year the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:
Centaur Financial Platforms Limited (‘FIN') on 31 March 2019;
Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited (‘'T&M’) on 30 April 2019,
Centaur Human Resources Limited (‘HR") on 30 April 2019; and
Centaur Engineering Limited (ENG’) on 31 May 2019.

The disposals were effected in line with the Group’s strategy to simplify its structure, to improve operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands. All disposals were executed by way of sale of 100% of the equity shares. The results of these subsidiaries have been
included in discontinued operations as detailed in note 8.

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

Goodwill 4.8 5.8 - - 10.4
Other intangible assets 11 - 1.1 - 2.2
Inventories - 1.2 0.1 0.4 1.7
Trade and cther receivables 1.0 1.1 0.4 0.2 2.7
Intercompany 1.3 2.2 0.7 - 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents 0.8 0.3 0.4 0.4 1.7
Trade and cther payables (0.8} 0.6) {0.4) {0.1) (1.9}
Deferred income (1.3} 2.9 {1.0) (1.2) 6.4}
Current tax liability 0.1) 0.3) - - {C.4)
Directly attributable costs of disposal 0.8 086 0.6 0.6 26
(Loss) / gain on disposal {0.8) 3.0 3.8 1.8 78
Cash and cash equivalents 5.3 8.0 50 2.1 204
Settlement of intercompany balances 1.3 2.2 a7 - 4.2
The net cash flow arising on the disposals was as follows:

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 53 8.0 5.0 2.1 20.4
Less:

Directly attributable costs of disposal {0.8) {©.6) {0.8) (0.5) (2.3)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ©.8) ©.3 {0.4) {1.7)

i

0.4

In addition to the above named subsidiaries, the Group disposed of its Venture Business Research Limited ('VBR') subsidiary on 13 May
2019 to an employea of VBR for £1 settled by cash and £31k settlement of intercompany balances. Net assets of £0.2m, consisting wholly
of other intangible assets were disposed of, resulting in a loss of £0.1m.

The loss on disposal, as weil as the operational results of VBR have not been included in discontinued operations as it does not represent a

separate major line of business and these have therefore been included in continuing operations.

In the prior year £0.1m profit on disposal arese in relation to the 2017 disposal of the Group's Home Interest segment (‘HI'} following the

agreement of final completion accounts.
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15 Deferred tax

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below:

B 0.5 (1.4) 0.2 .7)

Adjustments in respect of prior period 01 - - Q.1
Recognised in the staterment of comprehensive income 0.1 0.9 1) 0.9
. S 0.7 0.5) c.1 0.3

Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 0.1} 0.1 0.7 0.7

¥

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are cnly offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the
balances net.

2018

Group

£m

Deferred tax assets within one year 0.8

Deferred tax liabilities within one year {0.5)
s 0.3

At the statement ¢f financial position date, the Group has unused tax losses of £4.2m (2018: £1.2m) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset of £0.8m (2018: £0.1m) has been recognised in respect of £4.2m (2018: £0.6m} of such tax losses. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are expected to be materially utilised after 12 months.

16 Inventories

2018

PN Group

H £m

Work in progress . 1.4

Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publications and exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event.
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year amountad to £0.9m (2018: £1.1m). These were included in cost of sales and
employee benefits expense.

The Company had no inventory at 31 December 2012 (2018; Enil},
There are no provision amounts in respect of inventories (2018; £ni) and there were no write-downs of inventory in the year (2018: Tnil}.
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17 Trade and other receivables

Restated?
2318 A 2018
Group : Company
Note £m . £m
Trade receivables 1.0 -
Less: expected credit loss 28 1.2} -
Trade receivables - net a8 -
Receivables from subsidiaries - 2.0
Receivable from Employee Benefit Trust - 0.4
Other receivables 1.7 : 0.4
Prepayments 1.7 0.1
Accrued income . 0.5 -
Social security and other taxes - 02
13.7 31

2 Ses rote 1 (@) for description of prior year restatement
Receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interast at an annual rate of 2,.53% (2018: 2.67%).

Trade receivables are accounted for under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss model, recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost less any allowance for expected lifetime credit losses. For further detail refer to note 1(s)(i).

Other receivables includes £1.5m in relation to the lease incentive receivable on exit of the Wells Strest property in 2018 and £0.3m
in relation to a deposit on the Waterloo property lease which is fully refundable at the end of the lease term.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

2018

Group

£m

Cash at bank and in hand 0.1
The Company had ne cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).

19 Trade and other payables
Restated”

2018 2018

Group Company

€m £m

Trade payables 2.7 -

Payables to subsidiaries - A 53.3

Social security and other taxes 2.1 -

Other payables 1.6 -

Accruals 6.8 0.5

13.2 53.8

? S8 note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement
Payables to subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.53% (2018: 2.67%).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approximates their fair value.
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20 Leases

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the Group's financial statements and discloses the new accounting
palicies that have been appled from 1 January 2019.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019 but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 pericd, as permitted
under the specific transiticnal provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019,

{a) The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases office spaces. Prior to the adoption of IFRS 16 these leases were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the profit or loss on a straight-fine basis over the period

of the lease.

From 1 January 2018 relevant leases {i.e. excluding those to which a practical expedient has been applied) are recognised as a lease liakility
and a corresponding right-of-use (‘ROU') asset at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Each lease payment is allocated betweaen the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant petiodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The ROU asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assetls and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured cn a present value basis. Lease fiabilities include the net present value {‘NPV’)
of future lease payrments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate (‘IBR’} is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and cenditions.

Adjustments are made to the NPV for the initial measurement of the ROU asset. These adjustrments are for any rental accrual or
prepayments on the balance sheet at 31 December 2018 relating to the asset that arose under the previous accounting standard IAS 17. A
further adjustment has been made in relation to a lease incentive receivable on the exit of a Londen property that had been fully vacated by
31 December 2019, The lease incentive receivable is in other receivables,

All ROU assets currently held by the Group relate to property leases. They are presented on the consolidated statement of financial position
within property, plant and equipment and are split out from other fixed assets in note 12. Lease liakilities are presented as a separate line cn
the face of the consolidated statement of financial position, split between current and non-current.

{b} Adjustments recagnised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019

On adopticn of IFRS 186, the Groug recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the IBR as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s IBR applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.8%.

The Group did not have any material leases previously classified as finance leases.
Lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 7.3
Less operating leases commitments related to contracts with future commencement dates (3.4)
' D N
impact of discounting using the lessee's IBR at the date of initial application 0.6)
TN R T, s
Current 2.3

Non-current 1.0

PP A

Right-of-use assets
The recognised ROU assets were measured at an amount equal to that of the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 and adjusted for items as

outlined above.

RQU assets - property
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20 Leases continued

Additional information

As detailed in the table above, £3.4m of operating lease commitments in relation to a contract with a commencement date of 1 October
2019 wera disclosed as at 31 December 2018. The lease liability and corresponding ROU asset was recognised as an addition during the
year on commencemerd, see section (b} below. The commitments under this contract discounted at the IBR gave rise to a lease liability and
corresponding ROU asset of £3.2m, recognised on 1 October 2019.

The change in accounting policy did not affect any other items on the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019 other
than those discussed in this note.

The Group derived income from sub-leasing one of the properties during the year. This has not been included in the value of the ROU asset
in accordance with the short-term lease practical expedient permitted by IFRS 16. The rental income generated in the period of £0.8m is
presented in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income in 'other operating income' and is recognised on a straight-line basis.
This source of income ceased in the current year, and no rental income is expected in 2020.

Each lease arrangement has been accounted for over its lease term as outlined in the contract. Where options to extend or terminate exist
in these contracts, the recognition of the lease kabilities and ROU assets represent the Directors understanding of likely future cash flows
under these contracts. The assets and liabilities will continue to be reviewed and will be revalued where a change in the future cash flows is
indicated.

{c) As at 31 December 2019
The lease liability and ROU assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3t December 2019 were as follows:

Lease liabilities

Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 3.3
Additions 3.2
Interest expense .t
Cash outflow {2.3)
Current 21
Non-current 2.2
ROU assets
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 2.3
Additions 3.2
L [ S

Depreciation charge for the period 1.6
Impairment charge for the period 0.2
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 2.3

FA i 7

f
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21 Deferred income

Deferred income

2018
Group
em

15.0

Deferred income arises on contracts with customers where revenue recognition criteria has not yet been met, See note 1 (e) for further

details.
22 Current tax assets

Corporation tax receivables

The Company had no corporation tax receivables or payables at 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).
23 Provisions

At 1 January 2018 1.8 0.1
Acquisition related 0.1 -
Utilised in the year {1.8) -

. 0.1 0.1
Utilised in the year 0.1 -
Current - -
Non-current - 01

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration at 1 January 2018 related to the acquisition of MarketMakers. An additional amount of £0.1m contingent

2018
Group
£m

0.2

1.9
0.1
(1.8)
0.2
0.1

0.1

consideration was provided for during 2018 due to MarketMakers achieving a higher EBITDA than expected. £1.8m was settled in cash

during 2018. The remaining £0.1m was settled in cash during the current year.
Other

The other provision relates to the dilapidation provision which was acquired on the acquisition of MarketMakers in relation to the building

leased by the company in Portsmouth.
All amounts represent the Directors’ best estimate of the balance to be paid at the statement of financial position date.
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24 Equity

Authorised share capital - Group and Company

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 20.0 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital - Group and Company
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 15.1 151,410,226

Deferred shares reserve
The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 (2018: 800,000) deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted voting rights and have

no right to receive a dividend payment in respect of any financial year.

Reserve for shares to be issued

The reserve for shares to be issued is in respect of equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The changes to the reserve for shares to
be issued represent the total charges for the year relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees as accounted
for under IFRS 2.

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represents the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At 31 Decernber 2019,
6,964,613 (2018: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 1,573,134 {(2018: 857,991) 10p ordinary shares are held in an
employee benefit trust.

During 2019, the employee benefit trust purchased 1,247,205 (2018: 766,800) ordinary shares in order to meet future abligations arising

from share-based rewards to employees. The shares were acquired at an average price of 51.7p per share (2018: 45.9p), with prices
ranging from 45.6p to 54p. The total cost of £0.6m (2018: £0.4m) has been recognised in other reserves in the own shares reserve in equity.

25 Share-based payments

The Group's share-based payment xpense for the year by scheme:

2018

m

LTIP 08
Total equity-settied incentive plans and share based payment expense 0.8

The Group's share-based payment schemes upon vesting are equity-settled.

The pricr year charge of £0.8m includes £0.1m in relation to national insurance payable on equity settled share-based schemes. This was
included in liabilities as it was to be settled in cash.

The current year charge of £0.1m (2018: £0.8m) includes an immaterial amount of national insurance (2018: £0.1m) payable on equity
settled share-based schemes and is included in liabifities as it is to be settled in cash.

Share based payments in 2019 of £0.1m (2018: £0.8m) have decreased significantly due to the overall reduction in the number of share
options from 10.6m to 7.6m. This is due to forfeitures and lapses of 0.5m and 5.6m share options respectively resulting in a reversal of
charges previously recognised since granted, mainly in 2016 and 2017. This was offset by an expense recognised for 3.6m new share
options granted during the year and an additional charge recognised on truing up the expense for 1.6m share options that vested during
the year.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan
The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’} for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This is an existing
incentive policy and was approved by shareholders at the 2016 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of grant and the consolidated
staterment of comprehensive income is charged over the vesting peried, taking into account the number of shares expected to vest. Full
detaiis of how the scheme operates are included in the Rermuneration Report.

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

Grant date

Share price at grant
date (p)

Fair value {p)
Exercise date
Exercise price (p)

¢

Balance at
1 January 2019

Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year

‘Balance at
31 Decqmber 2ms

‘Exercisable at
31 December 2019

Average share price at
date of exercise (p)

Balance at 1 January
2018

Granted during the year
Forfefted during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year

Balance at
31 December 2018

Exercisable at
31 Decernber 2018

Average share price at
date of exercise (p)

Grant date

Expected volatility (%)
Expected dividend

yield (%)

Risk free interest rate (%)
Valuation of model used

41.50
2277

02.10.2022

nil

995,269

e

32.50
16.25
5.04.2022

nil

128,133

48.00
23.00

03.10.2019 26.10.2019 26.07.2019 25.07.2018

44.40
22.20

5.04.2022 24.07 2019

nil

2,482,366
(245,726)

nil

53,580

51.25

53,590

6.04.2018

50.20
28.65
06.04.21

nit

1,246,879

1,246,879

1,246,879

6.04.2018

50.20
25.10
06.04.21

nif

2,104,890

{141,699

2,145,375
{40,485)

2,104,890

24.04.17

45.75
24.46
24.04.20
nil

1,351,528

Q7.04.17

40.75
21.08
07.04.20

nil

2,958,786

{92,035)
(478,472}

(675,764) (2,006,722)

675,764

1,351,528

1,351,528

381,557

3949

3,589,405

630,619)

2,958,786

04.10.16

44.00
18.04
04.10.19

nil

573,396

(573,395}

573,395

573,395

22.09.16

41.00
16.81
22.09.19

nil

366,667

30.03.16

49.00
20.92
30.03.19

nil

1,883,489

(366,667) (1,983,489)

366,667

366,667

2,058,350

(75,901)

1,983,489

*Schemes granted on the 25 QOctober 2019, 25 July 2019 and 25 July 2018 were nil-cost options with non-rmarket based performance conditions.
These schemes were valued based on the estimated vesting value of the non-market based conditions and expected forfeiture rates.
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25 Share-based payments continued

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a weighted average exarcise price of £nil {2018: Enil) and a weighted remaining life of 1.6
years {2018: 1.4 years).

Shares outstanding and exercisable at the end of the year had an initial expiry date of 25 March 2020, which has been extended to 30 June
2020,

The two schemes granted in 2017 were assessed for early vesting fallowing the sale of four business units resulting in a significant change

in the business. As a result the options refated to the TSR performance conditions vested and options related to ail other performance
conditions lapsed.

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘SELTIP)

The Gentaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive L ong-Term Incentive Plan (the *SELTIP") was introduced during 2011 and was approved by
shargholders at the 2010 AGM. This is not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a three-year period with service and performance
conditions. Awards were granted under this scheme in 2011 for no consideration and no exercise price. This scheme has closed to new
awards,

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summarised in the following table: |

2013 £8.0m £8.6m £0.6m 30% £0.1m £0.1m 118,851

* The Remuneration Committee did not allocate the entire bonus pool in 2013.
“* Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment.

Senjor Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan
Ihese awards were priced using the tollowing medeis and inputs:

Grant date 15.09.11
Share price at grant date (p) 33.88
Fair value (p) 23.76
Exercise date 17.09.14 1
Exercise price {p} il
Balance at 1 January 2019 6,862

Granted during the year -
Forfeited during the ysar -
Exercised during the year _

3 .

Average share price at date of exercise (p) -

Balance at 1 January 2018 6,862
Granted during the period -
Forfeited during the period -
Exercised during the period -
Balance at 31 Decermber 2018 6,862
Exercisable at 31 Decemnber 2018 6,862
Average share price at date of exercise (p) -

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a weighted average exarcise price of £nil (2018: £nil} and a weighted remaining life of 2.7
years (2018: 3.7 years).
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These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

Grant date 15.09.11
Expected volatility (%) 54.00
Expected dividend yield (%) 5.26
Risk free interest rate (%) 0.57
Valuation of model used Black-Scheles

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Share Incentive Plan, which is 2 HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides employees with the opportunity
to purchase shares in the Company. This plan is open to all employees who have been empioyed by the Group for more than 12 months.
Employees may invest up te £1,800 per annum (or 10% of thelr salary if less) In ordinary shares in the Company, which are held in trust,
The shares are purchased in open market and are held in trust for each employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time,
or tax-free after five years. The Group matches the contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased. Other than continuing
employment, there are no other performance conditions attached to the plan.

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group.

2018

Group

Number of cutstanding matching shares S 57,298
26 Dividends

2018

£m

Final dividend for 2017: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 22

Interim dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 2.1

Final dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share . -

Interim dividend for 2019: ordinary dividend of 1.5p and special dividend of 2.0p per 10p ordinary share i -

4.3

In the current year the Board announced a new progressive dividend policy. An interim dividend payment of £5.0m was paid in October
2019. This comprised a £2.1m ordinary dividend at 1.5p per share and a £2.9m special dividend at 2.0p per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 the Board is recommending a final dividend payment of £0.7m at 0.5p per share. The dividend
proposed by the Directors, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 29 May 2020 to all shareholders
on the Register of Members on 11 May 2020.

The interim and final dividends of £5.0m and £0.7m together result in a total dividend pertaining to 2019 of £5.7m.
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement
Reconciliation of loss)/profit for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities:

2018 2018
Group . Company
Note - em s £m
Profit/(loss) for the year {14.2) £ {13.7)
Tax 7 . 0.1 [ 3.2)
Interest expense 6 0.2 ' 16
Depreciation 12 0.8 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 . 5.6 -
Impairment of intangible assets 11 - -
impairment of goodwill 10 131 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 14 0.1} -
Loss on impairment of investment 13 - 131
Share-based payment charge 25 0.8 0.3
Unrealised foreign exchange differences - -
Gther - -
Changes in working capital {excluding effects of
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries):
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables : (1.3} 2.3)
Increase in trade and cther payables 1.4 89
Increase in deferred income 0.3 -
Cash generated from operating activities 6.8 4.7
Analysis of changes in net cash/{debt)
31 Decembgnt'
2018
Note £m
Cash and cash equivalents 18 0.1
Net cash 0.1
At
31 Dacember
2018
. Note £m
Cash and cash equivalents 18 - -
Net cash - -
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management

Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management policies. The Board receives monthly reports from
the Chief Financial Officer through which it revisws the effectiveness of poiicies and processes put in place to manage risk. The Board sets
palicies that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating effectiveness of the Group.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, capital risk and currency risk.
Of these, credit risk and liquidity risk are considered the most significant. This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each
of the above risks.

Categeries of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 1(s}). All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Restated?

2018

Note £m

Cash and bank balances 18 : 0.1
Trade receivables - net 17 9.8
Other receivables 17 1.7
Total financial assets 11.8
Lease liabilities 20 or -
Trade payables 19 * 2.7
Accruals 19 6.8
Provisions 23 0.2
Gther payables 19 1.6
Total financial liabilities - 11.3

2 See note 1 (a) for descrption of pricr year restatement

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables (note 17). Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Credit
risk is managed on a Group basis. The Group does not consider that it is subject to any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Trade receivables

Trads receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industries and gecgraphies. The
Group does not have significant expasure to credit risk in relation to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced predominantly by the circumstances of individual customers as opposed to
industry or geographic trends.

The business assesses the credit quality of customers based on their financial position, past experience and other qualitative and
quantitative factors. The Group’s policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days
from the date of invoice. Under normal trading conditions, the Group is exposed to relatively low levels of risk, and potential losses are
mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the requirement for events and certain premium content subscription invoices to be
paid in advance of service delivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trade receivables
balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.

Any trade receivable balance which is objectively determined to be uncollectible is written off the ledger, with a charge taken through the
statement of comprehensive income, The Group also records an allowance for the lifetime expected credit loss on its trade receivables
balances under the simplified approach as mandated by IFRS 9. The impairment model for trade receivables, under IFSR 9, requires the
recaognition of impairment provisions based on expected lifetime credit losses, rather than only incurred ones as was the case under |IAS 39.
All balances past due are reviewed, with those greater than 90 days past due considered to carry a higher level of credit risk. Refer to note 1
(s} for further details on the approach to allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

The allowance for expectad lifetime credit losses, and changes to it, are taken through administrative expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

The ageing of trade receivables according to their original due date is detailed below:
“See note 1 (a} for description of pnor year restaternent

Restated?

2018 2018

Gross Provision

£m £m

Not due 5.3 0.1
0-30 days past due - 2.3 -
31-60 days past due c.9 (0.1}
61-80 days past due . 0.4 _
Cver 90 days past due 21 1.0
11.0 (1.2)

? See note 1 {a) for descrption of pricr year restatement

Trade receivables that are less than 3 months past due are generally not considered to be impaired, except where specific credit issues or
delingquency in payments have been identified. In making the assessment that unprovided trade receivables are not impaired, the Directors
have considered the quantum of gross trade receivables which reiate to amounts not yet included in income, including pre-event invoices

in deferred income and amounts relating to VAT, The credit quality of trade receivables not yet due nor impaired has been assessed as
acceptable.

The movemnent in the allowance far expected credit losses on trade receivables is detalled below:

2018 2018 2018

Coentinuing Discontinued Toal

£m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 1.5 - 1.5

LHilised 0.8) - (0.8)
Additional provision charged to the

statement of comprehensive income 0.3 - 0.3

Disposal of subsidiaries S - - -

Balance at 31 December 12 - 1.2

The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of
invoice or. in the case of live events related revenue, no less than 30 days before the event. All credit and recovery risk associated with trade
receivables has been provided for in the statement of financial position. The Group's policy for recognising an impairment loss is given in
note 1 (sii}. Impairment (osses are taken through administrative expenses in the staterment of comprehensive income,

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
Cash and cash equivatents

Banks and financial institutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies. We choose only to deal with those with a minimum *A'
rating. We determine the credit quality for cash and cash equivalents to be strong.

Other receivables

Other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. These are primarily made up of sundry receivables, including employee-related debtors
and receivables in respect of distribution arrangements.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk

by maintaining adequate reserves and working capital credit facilities, and by continucusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. In
November 2018 the Group renewed its £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland and Lloyds which runs
to Novernber 2021 with the option to extend for two pericds of one year each. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash of £9.3m
(2018: £0.1m} with a full undrawn lean facility of £25.0m (2018: full undrawn loan facility of £25.0m).

The following tables detail the financial maturity for the Group’s financial hiabilities:

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing

Financial liabilities

Interest bearing - - - -

Nen-interest bearing 11.3 11.3 11.2 Q.1
1.2 11.3 11.2 0.1

% See note 1 {a} for description of prior year rastatement
The Directors consider that book value is materially equal to fair value.

The baook value of primary financial instruments approximates to fair value where the instrument is on a shart maturity or where they bear
interest at rates that approximate to the market.

The following table details the leve! of fair value hierarchy for the Group's financial asset and liabilities:

Cash and Bank balances Lease Liabilities
o Trade Payables

Trade receivables — net Accruals

Cther receivables Provisions
Other payables
Borrowings”

*Borrowings are purely in relation to the Group’s revolving credit facility which is discussed above. The amount drawn down from this facility
at 31 December 2019 was Enil {2018: £nil).

Al trade and other payables are due in one year or less, or on demand.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk when it borrows funds at floating interest rates
through its revolving credit facility. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group evaluates
its risk appetite towards interest rate risks regularly, and may undertake hedging activities, including interest rate swap contracts, to manage
interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility if deemed necessary.

The Group did not enter intg any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and as at 31 December 2019, the only floating rate to
which the Group is exposed was LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities is detailed in the
liguidity risk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable interest rates at the
reporting date.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and ali other variables were held constant, the Group's net profit after tax would
increase / decrease by £nil {2018: £nil) and equity by Enil (2018: £nil)
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that ali entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising return to
stakeholdars, as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt/cash, which includes cash and cash equivalents {(hote 18), and equity attributable

10 the cwners of the parent, comprising issued share capital (note 24}, ather reserves and retained earnings. The Board also considers the
lsvels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the ability to issue new shares for acquisitions, in managing capital risk in the
business.

The Group continues to benefit from its banking facilities {as renewed during November 2018), which features both a working capital facility,
to assist in managing the Group’s liquidity risk, and an acquisition facility t¢ support the Group’s acquisition strategy. The facility, available
until November 2021 with an option to extend for a further 2 periods of 1 year each, allows for a maximum drawdown of £25m.

Interest is calculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage position, which is re-measured quarterly in line with
covenant testing. The Group's barrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. The principal financial covenants under the
faciiity are that the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA {see note 1{b) for explanation and reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA) shall not
exceed 2.5:1 and the ratio of EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1. At 31 December 2019 and throughout 2019 all these
covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially all the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The majority of revenue and profits is generated in the United
Kingdom and consequently foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group continues to monitor its exposure to currency risk, particularly as
the business expands into overseas territories such as North America, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be
sensitive to movements in currency rates.

29 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments

Due to the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the Group's future lease commitments are recognised as lease liabilities and ROU assets.
The movement from the commitments of £7.3m at 31 December 2018 to the recognition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets are detailed

in note 20.
2018
£m
Within che year 2.5
Later than one year and less than five years 4.8
7.3

At 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments in raspect of operating leases on land and buildings.
These arrangements were excluded from the requirements of IFRS 16 under the short-term lease exemption {see note 20 for further details).
All sub-leasing arrangements ceased during the year.

2018

¥ H - ¢ £m
Within one year 0.5
Later than one year and less than five years -
Q.5

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments.

30 Pension schemes

The Group contributes to individual and collective money purchase pension schemes in respect of Diractors and employees once they have
completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the year in respect of these defined contribution schemes is shown in note 5.
Included within other payables is an amount of £0.1m (2018: £0.1m) payable in respect of the money purchase pension schemes.

31 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital commitments. At 31 Decernber 2018, the Group had capital commitments totalling £0.1m
in relation ta fit-out costs for the new WeWork praperty lease.
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32 Related party transactions

Group
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 5. There were no other material related party transactions for the Group in the current
or prior year.

Company
During the year, interest was recharged from subsidiary companies as follows:
2018
£m
Interest payable 1.3

There were no borrowings at the year end.

The balances outstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 17 and 19,

There were no other material related party transactions for the Company in the current o prior year,

Audit exemption

For the year ended 31 December 2019 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 479A-C of Companies Act 2006 over

the liakilities of the following subsidiaries and, as such, they are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual
financial statements, or preparation of individual financial statements, as appropriate, for this financial year.

Centaur Communications Limited 01595235 42.8

Centaur Newco 2018 Limited 11725322 -
Chiron Communications Limited (1081808 67.5
Econsultancy.com Limited 04047149 2.9
Mayfield Publishing Limited 02034820 0.4
Pro-Talk Limited 03939119 0.3
Taxpriefs Holdings Limited 03572089 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247331 Q.7
Thelawyer.com Limited 11491880 3.0
Xeim Limited 05243851 1.3
Your Business Magazine Limited 01707331 0.3

Sea note 13 for changes to subsidiary holdings during the year.
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited will have its statutory audit for the year ended 31 December 2018 performed by PwC.

33 Post balance date events
No material events have occurred after the reporting date.
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“ FIVE YEAR RECORD (UNAUDITED)

Restated*
2015* 2016° 2017+ 2018
Revenue (£m) 69.9 71.9 64,7 50.3
Operating loss (Em} {4.7) (3.9 {0.3) (20.3)
Adiusted operating profit / (loss) m} 10.5 9.1 4.1 (2.2}
Adjusted operating profit / {loss) margin 15% 13% 6% (4%)
Loss before tax (Em) 6.6} {4.4} Q.7) (20.9)
Adjusted profit / loss) pefore tax {£m) 9.8 8.6 3.7 2.4
Adjusted diluted EPS (pence) 5.3 4.5 1.8 (1.4)
Ordinary dividend per share {pence) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Net operating cash flow (£m) 47 14.0 12.1 5.6
Average permanent headcount (FTE) 564 554 589 758
Revenue per head (£'000) 125 131 110 66
*See note 1 (a) for descaption of prior year restatement
Restated”
2015° 2018* 2017 2018
£m em £m £m
Premium Content 20.2 209 19.1 14.4
Marketing Services - - 1.9 4.5
Training and Advisory 3.1 5.1 8.0 8.0
Events 241 257 18.7 6.5 i
Marketing and Advertising Solutions 22.5 20.2 12.8 7.3 ¢
Telemarketing Services - - 4.2 9.6
69.9 71.9 64.7 50.3 b
Restated”
2015" 2016* 2017 2018 -
£m £m em £m
Goodwill and other intangible assets 96.4 B88.8 94.2 78.1
Other assets and liabilities 2.1 (7.6) {13.4} {11.5}
Net assets before net debt 94,3 81.2 B80.8 66.6
Net {debt) / cash (17.9) {14.1) 4.1 0.1
Total equity 76.4 67.1 849 66.7

* 2015 - 2017 have not been restated with regards to discontinued cperations refating to the disposals compteted during 2019. 2018 has
been restated for discontinued operations in line with the comparatives disclosed in these financial statements.
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England and Wales

Registered office
Floor M

10 Yerk Road

London

SE1 7ND

United Kingdom

Directors
Colin Jones {Chairman)

Swagatam Mukeriji (Chief Executive, previously Chief Financial Cfficer)
Simon Longfield (Chief Financial Officer, appointed 6 Novernber 2019}

Williarm Eccleshare

Robert Bayle (retiring 31 March 2020)
Rebecca Miskin {retiring 31 March 2020)
Carcl Hosey (appointed 5 February 2020}
Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1 March 2020)

Company Secretary

Healen Silver

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1 Embankment Place

Londen

WC2N 6RH

Registrars

Share Registrars Limited
The Courtyard

17 West Street

Farnham

Surrey

GUg 7DR

External Lawyers
Dechert LLP

160 Queen Victoria Street
London

EC4V 4QQ
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